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TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

TFEMBHEEBERE

(In HK$ millions unless otherwise specified)

(BRH RIS - LB EE T RE)

Turnover

Gross profit

Gross margin

Operating profit (notes 1 & 2)

Operating margin (notes 1 & 2)

Profit attributable to shareholders (notes 1 & 2)
Return on sales (notes 1 & 2)

Cash and bank balances less bank loans
Working capital (note 1)

Total assets (note 2)

Total liabilities (notes 2 & 3)
Shareholders’ funds (notes 2 & 3)

s

EF

EFIE

g mEA (M1 k2)
BEREME (M1 R2)
FRR A R (B EE1 R 2)
HERIME (1 Kk2)
ReEMBETEFRETER
M‘ﬁ@(%ﬁﬂ
EBE(HE2)
Eﬁ@ 5 (B2 %3)
BREES (MiE2Rk3)

Earnings per share - Basic (HK cents) (notes 1, 2 & 4)
Interim dividend per share (HK cents) (note 4)

Special interim dividend per share (HK cents)

Final dividend per share (HK cents) (note 4)

Special final dividend per share (HK cents) (note 4)

BRARN - EX GBI (M1 2Kk4)
SRR HERS GBI (FFE4)
BRI T ERE GBI
BRORBBE GBI (M EE4)

B RIARBBRE GBAL) (P FE4)

Return on average total assets (notes 1 & 2)

Return on average shareholders’ funds (notes 1 & 2)
Inventory turnover on sales (days) (note 5)

Current ratio (times) (note 1)

THEELBERE (ME1k2)
FHBREESERE (MiE1%2)
FTEHHEEZ RSB R (BE) (HiE5)
MENLL R ((FE) (MIEE1)

Number of shares outstanding (in thousands) (note 4)
Market capitalization

misnBROHEE (TK)(HE4)
B4R

Directly managed stores

Number of stores (note 6)

Retail floor area (in thousands of square feet) (note 6)
Comparable store sales increase/(decrease) (note 7)

EEREEMM
FImE A (FisE6)
ZERBATEIRABER) (FE6)
AL BT 2 S E BRI/ OBl ) (M 7E7)

Total stores (note 6)

PIh 42 2 (P E6)

Inter-segment purchases percentage DEEREZ B DX

Notes: ez

1. Figures from 2004 are adjusted for the adoption of HKAS 17 “Leases” and HKFRS 2 1. =~ ZEZE W # > # F F F K HHKAS17 [ H E) R
“Share-based Payment” which are effective for accounting years commencing on or HKFR S 2 [URGZ AT H ) EHFZ 2 ek
after January 1, 2005 AR = FERF—A—HAUERIEZ S5 FEEN

2. Figures for 2002 are adjusted for the adoption of SSAP 12 “Income Taxes” (revised)

which is effective for accounting years commencing on or after January 1, 2003

3. Figures from 1998 to 2000 are adjusted for the adoption of SSAP 9 “Events after the
Balance Sheet Date” (revised) which is effective for accounting years commencing on

or after January 1, 2001

4. Figures from 1998 to 1999 are adjusted for the effect of the 1-to-2 share subdivision

5. Inventory held at year end divided by full year turnover times 365 days

6. Figures as at year end

7. For stores which were operated for the full 12 months in each of the two fiscal years

under comparison

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED  {£ W BB R 2 7

2. ZET-FIZHFTEEFEKFA SSAP12 [FTiEH | (4 1£5T)
MIEH A%  ZEi EFEAR-FEE=F—A—H=%

KR 82 @a1F R LXK
3. —AANFE
HAHRKFER (4
FE—F— AU EHIRZ B FREH

4. —ANNFE—
H HE

5  FHAZFEER
6. FHAHT
7. ERMEIELL B2 BB F R AL E w1+ = 1872 I

PFEREF=FNTIH

—FETFEHFERRA SSAP 9 [4
FT) MIEML HE -~ % & it B AR =

AANFZEHFERK G — KB =E



TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS
TEMBHEEBERE

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
4,372 4,413 4,003 3,389 3,588 3,479 3,431 3,092 2,609
2,178 2,243 2,035 1,634 1,677 1,544 1,616 1,352 1,029
49.8% 50.8% 50.8% 48.2% 46.7% 44.4% 44.2% 43.7% 39.4%

376 518 491 364 385 372 425 351 70
8.6% 11.7% 12.3% 10.7% 10.7% 10.7% 12.4% 11.4% 2.7%
205 406 387 266 328 377 416 360 76
4.7% 9.2% 9.7% 7.8% 9.1% 10.8% 12.1% 11.6% 2.9%
665 827 689 784 614 494 747 803 340
862 1,029 861 911 861 798 1,014 960 725
2,984 2,970 2,717 2,555 2,419 2,371 2,110 1,913 1,435
894 755 684 685 564 625 511 456 299

1,987 2,122 1,954 1,799 1,794 1,695 1,658 1,449 1,135
13.80 27.50 26.70 18.50 22.80 26.30 29.30 25.65 5.40

4.50 4.50 4.00 1.50 4.50 4.50 4.25 3.25 0.50

2.00 2.00 1.50 3.00 - - - - -

5.00 5.00 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 6.00 5.50 1.75
15.00 15.00 13.00 12.00 10.00 5.00 5.00 8.50 -

7.3% 15.2% 15.9% 11.8% 14.7% 17.3% 21.4% 21.6% 5.3%
10.0% 19.9% 20.6% 14.8% 18.8% 23.2% 27.7% 27.9% 6.9%

35 31 30 24 26 30 32 28 44

2.1 2.6 2.4 2.5 2.8 2.3 3.1 3.2 3.6
1,490,853 1,489,631 1,450,692 1,442,199 1,440,345 1,436,029 1,430,683 1,413,118 1,399,570
6,336 6,480 7,072 5,192 4,393 4,954 5,150 5,652 1,015
962 914 811 550 473 456 367 317 308

957 918 846 650 599 598 466 359 301

(3%) (1%) 7% (9%) (2%) (4%) 4% 21% (13%)
1,767 1,694 1,585 1,363 1,256 1,159 920 740 678
26% 30% 27% 28% 26% 24% 25% 22% 27%
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
QA E R
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LAWYERS

Hong Kong lawyers
Robertsons
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28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
BNP Paribas
Citibank, N.A.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TEHREE

Dear Shareholders:

The Group’s consolidated turnover approached HK$5 billion in 2007,
an increase of 13.2 percent compared with 2006. The Retail and
Distribution Division achieved a sales efficiency increase of 2.4 percent.
Due to stock clearance in the first quarter of 2007 and a lower
manufacturing gross margin the Group’s consolidated gross margin
decreased from 49.8 percent to 47.6 percent. This temporary decline
in gross margin should not cause undue alarm. Reflecting consumers’
acceptance of Giordano’s branding efforts, gross margin at the Group’s
directly managed retail operations recovered from the stock clearance
in the first quarter to post a small increase for the full year. The
Group’s Retail and Distribution gross margin had been stabilized at the
significantly higher level of 50.6 percent for 2007.

Operating profit of the Group was HK$384 million of which virtually
all were attributed to Retail & Distribution activities. Manufacturing
activities managed to attain breakeven, reflecting the hardships faced
by the textile and garment manufacturing industry.

The Group made a comprehensive risk assessment and competence
evaluation vis-a-vis Mainland China two years ago and the Board
strategically identified it as the Group’s focal market. Our Mainland
China Retail and Distribution activities have since posted a 15.2 percent
same store increase in 2007 on the back of an 8.5 percent increase
in 2006, and delivered six consecutive quarters of double-digit
growth since the third quarter of 2006. We will continue to pursue an
aggressive expansion program for Mainland China over the next few
years. In particular, we plan to grow our network in Mainland China
by at least 120 outlets in 2008, with exciting new landmark locations
coming in Guangzhou, Hangzhou and elsewhere. Management has
substantially increased the 2008 capital expenditure budget to between
HK$250 million and HK$300 million to support the program.

The Group’s profit attributable to shareholders was HK$295 million.
After due consideration of the Group’s upcoming investment needs,
especially in light of its significantly more aggressive expansion plan
in Mainland China, the Board has recommended a final dividend of
5.0 HK cents per share and a special final dividend of 10.0 HK cents
per share, in line with the Company’s proactive dividend policy of
returning excess cash to shareholders. | refer you to the Management
Discussion and Analysis section of this annual report for more detailed
information regarding the Group’s operating results and financial
position.
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Generally, two brand management strategies are available in the
apparel retail industry. The first one, branding, involves the building
and nurturing of brands, meaning that management must continuously
rejuvenate brands to fit the changing ecosystem of the apparel retail
industry. The alternative is the portfolio strategy whereby older brands
are continuously being pruned and new ones created to maintain the
vitality of the portfolio. The Group has chosen to build and nurture its
brands and has been successful in establishing a truly distinct brand
Indeed, in the 2006 Annual Report,
| reported that the Group’s 2007 priority was to strengthen branding

identity and equity for Giordano.

and growth, supported by human and financial resource investments
in design, merchandising and marketing. | am happy to report that the
management team has delivered both a heightened brand awareness
and healthy growth in most of our markets. | believe that the Group’s
ongoing efforts in bringing new blood, more creativity and innovation
will bring even better results in the coming years, particularly in
Mainland China.

In 2008, the Group begins its aggressive three-year plan focusing on
Mainland China. At the same time, South Korea and Taiwan should
see their operating environments improve this year and the Group will
closely monitor their recoveries and improvements. The Group will also
aggressively manage the stability and growth of our other key markets
such as Singapore.

Good corporate governance comprises prudence, transparency, social
responsibility, and constructive engagement with shareholders. Your
company is rare among publicly listed companies in Hong Kong by
having a wide and diverse shareholder base. It is therefore critical
that the Board and Management answer to the highest corporate
governance standards to protect the interests of and create value for
our shareholders as well as other stakeholders. This is a responsibility
and a promise that the Board and Management understand and
take with the utmost seriousness. We are most appreciative of our
shareholders who have been very supportive of the Company. Together
with our people who are among the best in the industry, our suppliers
and vendors who have been genuine business partners in every sense
of the word, and not least our loyal but discerning customers who have
time and again spurred Giordano to surpass itself, | am confident of
our continued collective prosperity within a “World Without Strangers”.

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Chairman

March 28, 2008
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEzwmL R oM

RESULTS OF GROUP OPERATIONS

The Group made steady progress executing its brand differentiation
and store expansion plans, delivering sharply better performance
in key markets such as Mainland China, South Korea, Southeast
Asia and the Middle East. Mainland China performed especially
well, recording six consecutive quarters of double-digit top line
growth since the third quarter of 2006, and achieving turnover and
comparable store sales increases of 23.8 percent and 15.2 percent
respectively. Malaysia, Indonesia and Thailand also saw turnover
rising by 20.8 percent in 2007. This helped drive the Group’s
turnover to increase by 13.2 percent to HK$4,950 million (2006:
HK$4,372 million). The strong performance of the Retail & Distribution
Division (which encompasses the Group’s directly managed retail
operations as well as its franchise and wholesale businesses)
drove the Group’s gross profit to increase by HK$179 million or
8.2 percent, despite the Garment Trading & Manufacturing Division
(the “Manufacturing Division”) recording an 11.9 percent decrease in
gross profit. The Retail & Distribution Division achieved a 15.0 percent
increase in its operating profit but this was offset by a much
diminished contribution from the Manufacturing Division so that the
Group’s operating profit increased by 2.1 percent to HK$384 million
(2006: HK$376 million). A strong recovery in profit contribution from
South Korea and the Middle East lifted earnings before interest,
tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”) by 7.6 percent to
HK$552 million (2006: HK$513 million). With increased contribution
from the Group’s jointly controlled and associated companies and in
the absence of the one-time tax charge of HK$66 million recorded in
20086, profit attributable to shareholders of the Company increased by
43.9 percent to HK$295 million (2006: HK$205 million). The Group
added 126 stores in 2007 to bring its global network to 1,895 at the
end of 2007.

Growth momentum remained strong going into 2008 and, with the
help of a cold Chinese New Year, sales in Mainland China surged by
43.2 percent and overall Group turnover increased by 17.1 percent
year-on-year in the first two months of 2008.
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Propelled by the strong results of our Mainland China operations
which delivered turnover growth of 23.8 percent, the Retail &
Distribution Division saw its turnover growing by 10.0 percent to
HK$4,420 million in 2007. The Group’s directly managed retail
outlets recorded a 2.4 percent increase in comparable store sales, a
significant improvement over the 3.0 percent decline recorded in 2006.
Meanwhile, third party sales of the Manufacturing Division grew by
50.1 percent but the increase was offset by a 32.7 percent reduction
in sales to other Group companies resulting in the division posting a
small net decrease in sales of 2.1 percent in 2007. Overall, the Group’s
turnover grew 13.2 percent to HK$4,950 million in 2007.

AEERTEXREXRBRAEBA EXHER
BAZ-t=&/\: WHHEHTE KD HEPT
R-ZETLFEWNEXRERAI>Z T+ 28K
OtOE-TET AREEREEZTEMD
WAL ZHERERAED Z —#0 Bt
“ETREHBEES ZZHKIE - BUSBHBENE -
S—hH REHFINE=SHEERADZET
B AIRERKAEMEEARHEEZHER
THASZ=T B LmiEHE  <HERLMHR
TR LFHERRSEMNER S EAN 2=
B— o BEME  AEER_TTLFNEERE
RAEOZ+=#_— ¥+ AERTET-

YQY Change
(In HK$ millions) (BB FETREN) 2007 2006 H XFRBAE S
Retail & Distribution turnover TENDIHERR 4,420 4,019 10.0%
Garment Trading & Manufacturing MKE 5 KR #iE
turnover EHERE 936 956 (2.1%)
Intra-group elimination KEBARARFEIKHE (406) (603) (82.7%)
Group turnover REBEEERE 4,950 4,372 13.2%
Group gross profit & EEF 2,357 2,178 8.2%
Group gross margin REEFEF & 47.6% 49.8% (2.2)
Retail & Distribution TERDHBPZ
comparable store sales AL PIT 2 HE R 2.4% (3.0%) N/A

Retail & Distribution gross profit increased by 9.4 percent and gross
margin held steady at 50.6 percent (2006: 50.8 percent) despite
heavy winter stock clearance in the first quarter of the year. However,
manufacturing gross profit decreased by 11.9 percent and gross
margin narrowed by 1.4 percentage points due to higher input costs
(exacerbated by the appreciation of the RMB) on the one hand and
continued downward pressure on selling prices on the other. The total
effect then was the Group’s gross profit grew by 8.2 percent, but gross
margin was squeezed by 2.2 percentage points to 47.6 percent.

HARNFEEFTR/RAELFTHFEETEE BETE
Mo #HEF 2 EMDANERED 2 LB - EFEX
ARFBED A THAZREKRF(ZTTRF:
BOZETEN) - A - EEERA LFARARE
THEMERNEZR  EREEBNREBEY T3
B RESERBENTRES 2 T —HNLRE
MERYE—FHEBT SR - WHEREZT » AKX
SEZEMNERADZN\E - BEMRKET =
BB HEAN 2T ERN -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEE WL DM

Operating Expenses, Operating Profit and Earnings before
Interest, Taxation, Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
(EBITDA)

Although the Retail & Distribution Division continued to experience
escalating rental and staff costs, with the former rising by 5.9 percent
and the latter by 16.0 percent (due largely to a 9.1 percent increase
in our sales force) in 2007, they were more than matched by a
9.4 percent growth in gross profit, resulting in the division achieving
a 15.0 percent increase in operating profit to HK$384 million and a
0.4 percentage point increase in its operating margin to 8.7 percent
in 2007. On the other hand, declining gross margins and rising costs
caused the Manufacturing Division to break even on an operating level
in 2007.

For the Group as a whole, operating expenses increased 8.6 percent
to HK$2,081 million (2006: HK$1,916 million). Other income was
HK$108 million, a decrease of HK$6 million from 2006. As a result,
the Group’s operating profit posted a 2.1 percent increase in 2007
to HK$384 million. The Group’s EBITDA increased by 7.6 percent to
HK$552 million (2006: HK$513 million) while the 2007 EBITDA margin
was 11.2 percent (2006: 11.7 percent).

KREER - KRERMRARFTRE -~ BE -
ITER#BHETER 225 (EBITDA)

B2ANKE HeEEIXRAR_ZZTLFNHA
BORER AN CAMARBES Z TR (EEHRN
HEBKWABENBY 2 NE—)  EMEHNIE
READZNHN  HHZMBPAI—FTTLFOL
2EMEAROZTRAEBE=FN\THAET
RERMNETERZHOERSHEAD Z/\H
toB—HE ENETHRERAB  GHEE
MR T L FELERHE DWW T -

AEEBRENKEERLABTD 2/VE X
ERFEBE_TRENT—BEET(ZZEZE X F:
BETNE-—TREBERL) HWAREEK
—EBZENEEBL RZZEEERIBEEE
Lo At AEER R LF2EEMIER
ARz _8— EFB-—ENTHEET A%H
2 EBITDA EHBE P ZEHEAAEZEEAERTA
ET(ZZEEXRTF: B¥RAE—T=Z8&7T)' M
ZTEZLF 7 EBTDA MBEXAE 2+ 2=
(ZEZERF  \AHz2+—%t) -

YOY Change

(In HK$ millions) (KB EETREN) 2007 2006 L A FREAE S
Retail & Distribution EERDH

Operating profit 48 5 7| 384 334 15.0%

Operating margin QD[P 8.7% 8.3% 0.4
Garment Trading & Manufacturing RKE 5 k&iE

Operating profit $ i - 42 (100.0%)

Operating margin K i R - 4.4% (4.4)
Group rEE

Operating profit £ 5 7 384 376 2.1%

Operating margin 4 e I =R 7.8% 8.6% (0.8)
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With improved focus within merchandising and tighter cost control,
our South Korea joint-venture staged a recovery to post an after-tax
profit in 2007 from breakeven in 2006. Meanwhile both our Middle East
associated company and our Dongguan manufacturing joint venture
continued to deliver sales and profit gains. As a result, after-tax
profit contribution from the Group’s jointly controlled companies and
associated company increased 118.8 percent to HK$35 million (2006:
HK$16 million). This helped to generate a 43.9 percent increase in
profit attributable to shareholders in 2007 to HK$295 million (2006:
HK$205 million).

In the absence of a one-time provision for additional PRC Foreign
Enterprise Income Tax, the Group’s taxation expense reverted to a
more normal level of HK$113 million (2006: HK$173 million) and the
Group’s effective tax rate decreased to 29.6 percent in 2007 (2006:
46.1 percent). Although profits in higher tax Mainland China are
expected to increase, the effect on the Group’s effective tax rate is
expected to be mitigated by the implementation of the new Enterprise
Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China, under which
the income tax levied on foreign enterprises will be reduced from
33.0 percent to 25.0 percent with effect from January 1, 2008.

Cash generated from operations increased by HK$103 million but this
was largely offset by a HK$80 million increase in overseas tax paid,
attributable largely to the additional PRC Foreign Enterprise Income Tax
discussed above. As a result, net cash inflow from operating activities
increased by HK$37 million to HK$343 million (2006: HK$306 million).

Net cash outflow from investing activities increased by HK$58 million
to HK$153 million (2006: HK$95 million) due mainly to a HK$31 million
increase in capital expenditure to HK$142 million in 2007 and a
HK$28 million increase in rental deposits, leasehold land and rental
prepayments.

Net cash outflow from financing activities decreased by HK$48 million
to HK$367 million in 2007 due mainly to an additional bank loan of
HK$38 million.

SSELEEEPEE I LTS
#AREZEHAEAANREGNER &
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B AL SRR A AR 2 A AORR Tt
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BRE(-FEAT: BE-TAEER) £YT
—EECAMBREEEUT LA ES 20T =80
EEM_EATRABT (CFEAT BB -ET
TRET) -

AR EENOPEIIEREEEMINELE
IR —RERE AKEZHESLD
EEREENKT REE-—E-—T=ZAET
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ZEBRER _ZETLFEREADZ TN
(ZZ2TRF: oW+ H—)  HATRHR
ARmPEAEMS 2 B2NKEEN  BREEE
HERTE R E AR KMBIINGIRE DRI BT
BPE  BHAKREERREZI ZZEGB R
o REMTOE - BRI ERECEMIINE R E
BURBOMEHNREEH T NF— A — )t
BAZ=t=READZ=—THh-

REEPMEL 2R SEMBE —EZT=8T "
AMEPRRBOKE BB HIAFIEMN B
NTET(EEHR LRI H B IR E B EM
SNBRITREPAISH) HKEH - FEIt - REEBZHRESRA
FREEMBE=TLtEELEER=-RONT=08
T(ZETRF BT AET) -

REFXFBZBRRLFRLTERET N \BELE
AE—RBAT=88T(ZZTXF: B¥LTHER
B FTEHR_FTETLFZEARAIEM
BT BHEIZER —ROT_BET UK
HE#ZS HELHWLESAMNKEENEE
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GROUP FINANCIAL POSITION

On December 31, 2007, the Group had cash and bank balances
of HK$570 million (2006: HK$723 million) and inventories totalling
HK$441 million (2006: HK$422 million). As a result, working capital
decreased to HK$736 million (2006: HK$862 million).
growth helped to reduce inventory turnover on sales to 33 days (2006:
35 days).

Healthy sales

On December 31, 2007, total liabilities were HK$909 million (2006:
HK$894 million). The increase is mainly due to a HK$47 million increase
in trade and other payables and a HK$38 million increase in bank loans
but was offset by a HK$76 million reduction in tax. Shareholders’ equity
was HK$1,927 million (2006: HK$1,987 million). The Group’s current
ratio was 1.9 times (2006: 2.1 times) and its gearing was 5.0 percent
(2006: 2.9 percent) based on shareholders’ equity.

The Group significantly stepped up its store refurbishment and
expansion programs, adding a total of 126 outlets in 2007, up from
the 73 it added in 2006. As a result, capital expenditure during the
year rose by 27.9 percent to HK$142 million (2006: HK$111 million)
to account for 41.4 percent (2006: 36.3 percent) of net cash inflow
from operating activities. In view of our plan to add at least 150 outlets
worldwide in 2008, including the planned procurement and furnishing
of a number of prime flagship locations in Mainland China and
Hong Kong, Management anticipates capital expenditure to increase
substantially to an estimated HK$250 million to HK$300 million in
2008.

The Group had financing facilities totalling HK$368 million at the end
of the year (2006: HK$403 million), of which HK$96 million had been
drawn down and were outstanding.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED & ) B A R & 7

REB M BiRR

RZZEZELFT_A=1+—H FAEE2HZ
METHEGFAEBERELTET( T NF:
EBELE_T=881T) EFELER/EY

MEMNF—a&T(ZEZRF - A¥NE_T=8
&) o Al - EEERRIEBELEBE=FEE
T(ZZETRF : B/ ERTIBERL) - BN
EERER THFEHHERBLXRE=1T=
A(ZZEEARF: =+HA) -
RZZEZ+F+T_A=+—H AEEER/BKE
NEZNEET(ZEZRF BB \EATHES

TC) + FHIE E B PR BR R I EL At FE A BRI A0 R
MFLtEBLUARBITETEMEE=F\EET
T MRBERDABE LT ABETHEE-
REESABETNE-TLEET(ZTTRF
BETNENTFLEETL) - AEEZRBLEES
—HNE(ZTTRF : ZB—F)  MiRBRERE
R ECEARBBEERRBEA CA(ZETRF
BOZZBN) -

$'§.ﬁﬁﬂﬂ’ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ“%ﬁ&ﬂgﬁ:ﬁiﬂ F ZEEAF
BE-—BZTAHETE BRZZEERNFHE+=
RS8R e Fit FRNEARZEMNE D
- TtHENAEEE BT _BET(ZETRE:
BE—RB—T—BEL) GREEXEBHRERA
FEAOZAT —HE(ZZTTRF: AHLZ
ETRED)  c ERAKEGFER T NFEEK
BROEZR—BOTEHE  EPREETBEARER
EANEOMRTEABRERSHERE - B8
Bzt —ZZENEFHNELRAZ G REBRAEZEEE
B_EATELEAB =ErsME-

REERE FAEEBZ2REEEAHRAEY
1u/\¥)\§§_<—7 ?/\E . /%MIZEML 7—§§
) EREBEAT BB LEED SRERMEA

o Sl ||
iﬂﬂ



OPERATIONS HIGHLIGHTS

The Manufacturing Division saw its external sales to third parties rising
by 50.1 percent to HK$530 million but the increase was offset by a
planned 32.7 percent reduction in sales to other Group companies
resulting in the division posting a small overall decrease in sales
of 2.1 percent in 2007. As a result, external sales to third parties
accounted for 56.6 percent of the Manufacturing Division’s 2007
turnover (2006: 36.9 percent) and the division supplied 16.2 percent
of the Group’s merchandise needs (2006: 25.7 percent). The division’s
results were negatively impacted by the continued downward pressure
on selling prices coupled with a sharp rise in raw material and labour
costs which was exacerbated by the steady appreciation of the RMB.
Gross profit decreased by 11.9 percent and gross margin narrowed by
1.4 percentage points to 12.8 percent, resulting in the Manufacturing
Division breaking even on an operating level in 2007. With the
increasingly cloudy global economic outlook and the implementation of
new labour regulations adding to the already strong upward pressure
on wage costs, the Group will curtail new investment in manufacturing
and employ various strategies to reduce its exposure to a challenging
business. In the meantime, the Manufacturing Division will concentrate
on expanding its high value-added product lines.

The Group’s steady push to differentiate and elevate its brands
gained consumer acceptance, with all brands achieving improved
performance in 2007. Mainland China growth was especially strong,
posting six consecutive quarters of double-digit top line growth since
the third quarter of 2006. Overall, the Retail & Distribution Division
saw its turnover growing by 10.0 percent to HK$4,420 million and its
comparable store sales increasing by 2.4 percent in 2007, a significant
improvement over the 3.0 percent decline in 2006. Retail & Distribution
gross profit increased by 9.4 percent and gross margin held steady
at 50.6 percent (2006: 50.8 percent) despite heavy clearance of
winter stocks in the first quarter of the year. As a result, the Retail &
Distribution Division’s operating profit increased by 15.0 percent to
HK$384 million and its operating margin widened by 0.4 percentage
points to 8.7 percent in 2007.
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Giordano Ladies was the Group’s best performer, with turnover
growing by 17.8 percent and comparable store sales up by 9.1 percent
in 2007. Brand elevation continued apace with an 11.0 percent
increase in average selling price which helped gross margin to achieve
a 1.0 percentage point improvement. During the year we launched the
brand in Kuala Lumpur and Jakarta and added a total of eight outlets
to bring the network to 39 by the end of 2007. Turnover increased by
13.2 percent in the first two months of 2008.

Giordano Concepts had performed to Management’s expectation
in its first full year of operations. The launch in Hong Kong in 2006
was followed in quick succession by new stores in Beijing, Shanghai,
Guangzhou, Taipei, Singapore, Kuala Lumpur and Jakarta. The network
grew from three stores in Hong Kong at the end of 2006 to stand at
14 outlets at the end of 2007 and the brand accounted for 4.4 percent
of the Retail & Distribution Division’s 2007 turnover. The brand was
especially well received by Mainland Chinese consumers and as such
we will focus on a rapid roll-out in 2008, with a view to adding at least
ten outlets to the existing network of four in Mainland China. Giordano
Concepts turnover increased 57.0 percent year-on-year in the first two
months of 2008.

Although the spotlight is on growing our premium Giordano Ladies and
Giordano Concepts brands, we have continued to devote significant
resources to re-energize the core Giordano business by expanding and
updating its range, while keeping true to the brand promise of offering
basic, functional and value-oriented casual wear for the all-important
middle market. One of our most important moves was to more than
double our collection to over 3,000 styles a year so as to offer a
wide enough selection to cater to the increasingly sophisticated and
demanding consumers in our disparate markets today. We have also
upgraded our store design to provide a more attractive and comfortable
shopping environment. The revamp has been well received and as a
result turnover increased by 5.7 percent to HK$3,707 million in 2007.
We added a total of 137 Giordano and Giordano Junior outlets in 2007,
bringing our global network to 1,723 by the end of 2007. Giordano and
Giordano Junior turnover increased by 17.1 percent year-on-year in the
first two months of 2008.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED & ) B A R & 7
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Recognising that the lack of a distinctive brand identity and
differentiated product offering has been holding back the performance
of the Bluestar Exchange line, in the first half of 2007 the Group
launched a program to re-brand Bluestar Exchange to BSX which
features a younger, more urban collection presented in a distinctive
and modern shop environment. We converted a total of 17 stores to
BSX and exited from 46 under-performing locations, leading to the
network being consolidated to 117 stores and turnover decreasing
by 9.9 percent to HK$274 million in 2007. However, the fact that we
were able to achieve same store sales growth of 12.1 percent post-
conversion plus an overall 2.5 percentage point gross margin expansion
and a 13.2 percent increase in average selling price during this early
transitional stage is indicative of the potential of this rebranded line.

B R Bluestar Exchange Z7%|ARRE B MmEE
AHEREFENERABRKRE —HEETA - K
SER-_ZTLF L LFHEER - § Bluestar
Exchange 2%/ BSX @ £ITRFH RIMTLAIK
A REEFEOERINEERRRE - NEBDH
AHFEFATES BSX @ RARNT/EX
WRENMPT - At BE-_TTLEFRE - £
BEBAB—BE—TLtHM —STLHELEER
VEPZNBAEBE _BLTNEET - #AE
R EININIFELE - EEAENPIHELRSES Z
TR -KHREHEEER  BREEMNXREA SR
BESS FHEEEABS 2 +=8= + HLLA
RETRIEREBT -

YOY Change

(In HK$ millions) (KB EETREN) 2007 2006 ¥ R F R ERE
Giordano & Giordano Junior

Turnover ] 3,707 3,507 5.7%

Comp store sales AP 2 S E 2.0% (3.4%) N/A
Giordano Ladies

Turnover e 245 208 17.8%

Comp store sales AJLLEP T 2 S E R 9.1% 8.1% N/A
Giordano Concepts

Turnover S 194 - N/A

Comp store sales AL ER P 2 SHE R N/A N/A N/A
Bluestar Exchange/BSX

Turnover e 274 304 (9.9%)

Comp store sales AP 2 S (2.3%) (6.8%) N/A
Retail & Distribution SENRSH

Turnover e 4,420 4,019 10.0%

Comp store sales AJLLEP T 2 S E R 2.4% (3.0%) N/A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEE WL DM

Retail & Distribution Division — Review by Market
Mainland China

Our efforts to elevate our brands and expand our distribution
in Mainland China yielded strong results. On the branding side,
consumers reacted positively to our new and more upmarket
collections, enabling us to raise average selling price by 18.8 percent
and helping us to widen our gross margin by 1.4 percentage points in
2007. On the store growth side, we added 91 stores in Mainland China
to expand our distribution network to 820 outlets. This, coupled with a
15.2 percent increase in comparable store sales, propelled our turnover
to increase by 23.8 percent. As a result, Mainland China increased its
share of the Retail & Distribution Division’s turnover to 30.5 percent
in 2007. Growth remained robust going into 2008 and, with the help
of a cold Chinese New Year, sales surged by 43.2 percent year-on-
year in the first two months of 2008. We plan to capitalize on the
strong momentum to add at least 120 outlets in Mainland China in
2008, including new and exciting landmark locations in cities such as
Guangzhou, Hangzhou and Changchun to showcase our products and
service offerings.

ZERDHIM - RHEEE
B K BE

REENFBEARERA @SSR RARED HEBD

REIGEEERR - LERBAE - BEEEIED
WEERAREREE  BAEER_ZTLEFE
N FHEERS A Z‘H\Eﬁ/\' TEAEHE
ZEMEEA-—HOEASE - FAMERAIE
REBRPRAREZRNT BT §HHES
wERZENB _THEMT: SN EREERMATZ
HERERAS TR THHHFINEERE
EABE 2=t =8N - At —ZETLFHH
AEXBET ’%& f%*BFﬁMﬁﬁﬁ,ZTﬁ%EﬂEE”
ZETEHR c BAZZT)N\F  EBERB KR
O j;u_tﬂﬁg/\\,:}g;ﬁiﬁ,qﬁﬁﬁ THIRR - FE
RER-_ZZN\FEMEANHEEERLZAED
ZO+=B_  AEEHELBELREFLE B
—EENFEFBRAREEER&RD —B ZTRET
ERBEREMN - M ERESHTOEZ MR
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Mainland China PEIARE 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Sales (HK$ millions)' HERE(EKaET) 1,349 1,090 987 952 815
Sales per sq. ft. (HK$)* Y AHREEEGET)? 2,900 2,400 2,400 2,400 3,000
Comparable store sales AT BRI 2 HE R

increase/(decrease)® #hn/ G ) ® 15.2% 8.5% 5.5% 6.9% (12.9%)
Retail floor area (sq. ft.)!  ZTE&®E (FHRKR)* 690,700 605,100 585,600 557,800 484,300
Number of outlets* P& e 820 729 706 671 581

! Including net sales to authorized dealers ! B E TR EER . HEFHE

On weighted-average basis for directly managed outlets

For directly managed outlets that were open for all 12 months in each of the two
years under comparison

Total directly managed and authorized dealer outlets as at December 31
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Overall performance of our Hong Kong operations was affected by
the BSX re-branding program which necessitated the closure of eight
Bluestar Exchange stores in 2007, resulting in sales in Hong Kong
increasing by 2.2 percent only to HK$892 million. However, sales
under the Giordano brands (ie Giordano, Giordano Junior, Giordano
Ladies and Giordano Concepts) grew by 7.0 percent in 2007 while
comparable store sales rose by 8.6 percent, with average selling price
and gross margin increasing by 19.3 percent and 1.0 percentage point
respectively. Although we expect to further consolidate our distribution
network in Hong Kong in light of the continued rental escalation
and the ongoing reorganization of the Bluestar Exchange/BSX store
portfolio, we expect our brand uplift and product improvement efforts
to enable Hong Kong to continue to deliver respectable growth in
2008. Indeed, growth remained on trend with the Giordano brands
posting an 11.8 percent turnover growth and 6.7 percent for the
market as a whole in the first two months of 2008.

BSX E%2 migst&lm&E Z K /\E Bluestar
Exchange FAT# % B T T+ FHEERE?
BER|ZINTE - FAEMGHNHEEREEMES 2
ZE-EBENBATFZB&T - AAff - Giordano
ke (BN Giordano, Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies
X Giordano Concepts) RISHE N T T + F1E
REO 2t AR MCHEERLABTSZ
NES - FHEBHEENETS B EABS 2T
B=Rk—EE E - AENHESFE LHOE
K B 48 Bluestar Exchange/BSX KIFIT4E4 -
REEFEE-—FPBEBFENDHBE  MAKE
JEETE A% Giordano MIEEITHIRF MR X KBk
REMIE  BUEEHESEEXEFER_ZZN\F
BMEAEER -FEL EBDEAD 22T
J\FEME A% Giordano GIEEEE D 2 +—2N
FEXEFER  BEMBEREAD 2B+ -

Hong Kong & 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Sales (HK$ millions) HER (B FET) 892 873 867 810 697
Sales per sq. ft. (HK$)' BEHRBEEET)' 7,800 7,600 7,400 7,100 6,200
Comparable store sales AP Tz I ERE

increase/(decrease)’ #hn/ Cei ) 2 8.1% 5.4% 4.4% 11.0% (15.4%)
Retail floor area (sq. ft.)*  ZEEEE (FHR)® 110,900 117,300 119,500 113,700 112,100
Number of outlets® Lt G 92 98 101 92 75

" On weighted-average basis T BT REE

For outlets that were open for all 12 months in each of the two years under comparison

7 As at December 31

2 BRI R B P B+ = A 2P
¢ R+=A=+—A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEE WK DM

Taiwan

We continued to restructure our store portfolio to exit from under-
performing locations (most of them belonging to Bluestar Exchange)
and to trade up into better ones. In the process, we reduced our
store network by 29 locations to a total of 210 outlets at the end of
2007. In spite of a generally stagnant economy and a reduction in
our retail network, we kept our 2007 turnover more or less even at
HK$654 million (2006: HK$658 million). With the conclusion of the
2008 legislative and presidential elections, we expect market conditions
to begin improving the second half of 2008 or early 2009, especially
in light of the incoming government’s stated focus on improving
economic growth and cross straits relations. In the meantime the year
started strongly for us, with turnover in January and February rising by
13.6 percent year-on-year, and we will focus on optimizing operations
to prepare for future growth.

L HE
==

AEBEESEEHAES  ERRBEXRENM
(K E81D 58 Bluestar Exchange) @ #aHY 7E &%
EARERE - B AEEEDRT Z+ N EH
B O E_TTELFE &HFB-—THEHMAT-
BEREERBRKETS BASEZTEREHE
B BEREEBR_ZTLFNEEFREDAIFT
EBABRAEATHREERL(ZZEZR"GE: B8
AEATFNEERT)  BE_ZZNF/E L
ZEHAMBERERET  URERFTEBRNAE
PEeRINLELER AEMEEEZR KEEME
BERZZEENFTHEEXZZTZTAFYTRAR
PFEE e ERSE AR AEBERNAFEERSHRERSF
i —ARZANEEBEYLEAFREERERES 2
TEEN AEEBFZIBCEETE - BARKE
RETIRE o

Taiwan =¥ 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Sales (HK$ millions) HER (B EET) 654 658 732 707 604
Sales per sq. ft. (HK$)' BEHFREEEETL)' 2,800 2,800 3,000 2,900 2,600
Comparable store sales AT ERPIT 2 SHERE

(decrease)/increase’ G ) /1802 (4.2%) (9.1%) (5.8%) 0.8% (13.2%)
Retail floor area (sq. ft.)° ZEmME(CFAFR)® 218,700 235,800 243,900 245,800 241,500
Number of outlets® Shit G 210 239 237 236 195

" On weighted-average basis " BRI REE

2 For outlets that were open for all 12 months in each of the two years under comparison

?  As at December 31
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Singapore

Our performance in Singapore experienced a temporary setback
in 2007 due to a reorganization of our operations there. The close
monitoring and support from a strong management team brought in
from Hong Kong has reduced the sales decline in the first two months
of 2008.

TEEHE WL R T M

03

AEERFMEOREHREEEMR Rk
—TELFNEBRALRERERR - BFEE
HEANEREK  BYRBYXERMEER  ©
“TEN\FEMEA - HERRDWE -

For outlets that were open for all 12 months in each of the two years under comparison
As at December 31

Malaysia, Indonesia, Thailand, Australia and Other Markets

Buoyed by a pick up in commodity prices and exports, consumer
confidence and spending strengthened in Southeast Asia in 2007,
benefiting our business. Sales in Malaysia,
increased by 20.8 percent in 2007, on a par with the growth we

Indonesia and Thailand

experienced in Mainland China. The three markets saw sales growing
by 12.5 percent in the first two months of 2008.

Although the Australian economy also benefited from the global
commodities boom, our Australian operations did not achieve the
double-digit growth experienced by our Southeast Asian businesses in
2007. We are, however, in the process of improving its merchandising

Singapore i hn3g 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Sales (HK$ millions) HEH (B EET) 390 403 403 391 348
Sales per sqg. ft. (HK$)' BEHFREEEETL)' 6,900 7,700 8,300 8,700 7,700
Comparable store sales APz I ERE

(decrease)/increase’ G ) /18402 (10.9%) (11.9%) (1.2%) 12.6% (14.0%)
Retail floor area (sq. ft.)° ZE®EE(FHR)® 57,300 55,100 50,500 48,600 43,600
Number of outlets® IR 53 53 48 47 43

On weighted-average basis T BT REE

2 IERRIEEL B BB E A E R = 1852 P
¢ RIZA=+—H

BRAD - e ~ FE - BNRHEMTS

BAmERLBNELENRY —TTEFRED
MK HBEEELEBE NIER  ERAEEE
o BRAEE - HIERRER —_ ST LFHHER
BREADZ-THN —Hl KR BRI

Ko L=EmER ST N\FEMEANHER
BEADZTFA -
ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ‘l;}l%&/%ﬁxﬁﬂ HReEgmam o BN E

FREREBENR_ZZELFOHECEY
u ’ i%*ﬂﬁ
BRERESR

KR RE
R %ﬁﬁ RSB FREE @A ERK
TR FRMNEEBRSAESZ=

strategy in order to build on the 3.5 percent turnover growth Australia #—# - &% BB 24BN _ZZLFH
achieved in 2007. Finally, our other markets together recorded a $BEDZ+=ZNMWIEE -
13.9 percent turnover growth in 2007.
YQY increase
Sales (In HK$ millions) SHER (UEKBEETTAEN) 2007 2006 Yitb R FRE EF
Australia BN 235 227 3.5%
Malaysia P i 151 120 25.8%
Indonesia ElfE 169 145 16.6%
Thailand Z= 121 100 21.0%
Others Hithi5 459 403 13.9%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEE WK DM

Jointly Controlled and Associated Companies
South Korea

Although fierce competition and a weak retail environment still
hindered our overall top line performance in South Korea, with full year
turnover down 3.2 percent compared to 2006, sales trend began to
turn in the fourth quarter of 2007 and the first two months of 2008
saw sales growing by 13.0 percent year-on-year. More importantly,
better merchandising discipline at the core Giordano business allowed
South Korea to achieve a 2.4 percentage point expansion in its gross
margin in 2007. This, together with a greater focus on cost control,
enabled our South Korean business to post a profit for the full year
whereas it just managed to break even last year. As a result, our
South Korean jointly controlled company made a profit contribution
of HK$13 million (2006: Nil). On December 31, 2007, the Group held
48.8 percent in its South Korean jointly controlled company.

HEZHRBEQT

FAER

ARG FREPNTENSIDAZERRHEE
RE - FIHEREBIEFEXBR_ZTRF
MIBODZ=F— BHEBRE_TZTLF
ENFCRHE . —TT)\FEMBEAZHER
FHEFRHHERESAZT=Z EEENZ
HAREEEHN Giordano ¥ EITERZENE M
REABE HEBREBE _TTLFOHEMNELE
T EEOE A D o LA EE oK AE
B ERXBEFASRERN mMEFAIRE
BTl At BEZARZEHQFMEL
A —T=A8T (TR F: 8 N&EMNE
Ble RZZEZALF+_A=+—HB x&EEHH
ERBZARZES QAR B 2@+ NAEAD
REh o

South Korea F# 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Sales (HK$ millions) HERE (B HET) 982 1,014 995 895 1,004
Sales per sq. ft. (HK$)" BEAREEE (FL)' 6,700 7,500 6,300 5,900 7,200
Comparable store sales AT LB PIT 2 SRR

decrease” k2 (8.6%) (6.5%) (4.0%) (13.4%) (30.6%)
Retail floor area (sq. ft.)°  ZTEMEE (FHR)® 145,600 135,600 157,000 150,600 139,100
Number of outlets® PATHE B ® 173 148 168 172 172

" On weighted-average basis " BT REE

For outlets that were open for all 12 months in each of the two years under comparison

7 As at December 31
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Aided by the region’s continuing economic and consumption boom, our
Middle East business achieved a 29.5 percent increase in its turnover
to HK$465 million and a 10.9 percent increase in its comparable store
sales. As a result, profit contribution from our Middle East associated
company increased to HK$12 million (2006: HK$8 million). We added
13 outlets during the year to bring the total store count to 142. The
Group held a 20.0 percent shareholding in its Middle East associate
at December 31, 2007. Although growth in the region is expected
to slow from the torrid pace in 2007, we continue to expect good
growth in 2008, with the first two months seeing turnover growing by

11.8 percent year-on-yeatr.

We completed our first full year of operations in India, recording sales
of HK$6 million in 2007. We expanded out of our base in Chennai
with new store launches in Delhi, Mumbai and Ahmedabad so that our
network stood at five at the end of 2007. We plan to at least double
our network in 2008 to ten stores with launches in other key urban

centres such as Bangalore and Hyderabad.

TRWREEREER OHETEEY TR
EBzEERNTERAEOZ-_TABAERK
MERTHEARS T LRI ZHERTER
BoZ TN Bt K’Elqﬂﬁﬁéﬁﬁ/&?zﬁﬂ
BEREAZEAE T _BEL(ZZZTRF Bk
NEETT) - FA - $’§IEEP$m%i‘“+ F'EJFEJ
W ENEREEEE—Ft - RZTRLF
-1— A=1t—0 XEEFEHRBELFANZ
_-Hﬂﬁﬂx% HAXKEFRHEHN —TTLFE

SRR RIMEL  BEAKEBRH _TT)N\F
TD@HX STRBRE . MPRMEEMERZEER

Sl AMERE S 2 T8 -
CEEFLAROREBNERSFEE B3
HEREBEABAT - AEBEAROEAR

Eﬁ@mﬁ FEEEB - ZE LA EDEE R
B R TETFR - HEMSHAEMPITAX -
AEBFENR ST N\FHEUHEGSEE+RE
ERNBEB S ENEEEMEBHMTHORSE

Middle East R 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Sales (HK$ millions) HEE(E¥EET) 465 359 332 288 234
Sales per sq. ft. (HK$)' BEARFEE (Fr)' 3,100 2,700 3,100 3,200 3,000
Comparable store sales AT LLER I 2 SHERR

increase/(decrease)’ #hn/ G )? 10.9% 1.6% 2.4% 6.1% (4.1%)
Retalil floor area (sq. ft.)° ZTE@ERE(FAHR)® 149,900 132,600 107,500 90,800 77,800
Number of outlets® Lt Gh 142 129 107 89 75

" On weighted-average basis T IR RS E

For outlets that were open for all 12 months in each of the two years under comparison
As at December 31

Dongguan Speedy Garment, the Group’s manufacturing joint-venture in
Dongguan, China, just about doubled its turnover to HK$612 million in
2007 (2006: HK$321 million) and made an after-tax profit contribution
of HK$10 million (2006: HK$8 million) to the Group. The Group held
a 49.0 percent shareholding in Dongguan Speedy Garment as at
December 31, 2007.

2 BRI R Z B F R AR S — A2 P
¢ RIZA=+—H

<t

AEBEURPERENAEHXRABARZA
REREEBESHE _ZTTLF2LERBER
BEAE-—T_AET( TR F: 8K
ZR-T-BET) HAKEFELEREENE
MBS —TEL(ZZTRF: B¥N\BETL) - 1
“ETEFE+A=1T—HB  AEBEFERZAE
REBAD 2O+ B -
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HUMAN RESOURCES

On December 31, 2007, the Group had 12,100 employees. Human
resources — how to recruit, retain, develop and motivate high potential
people — have always been a priority for the Company. The Company
offers competitive remuneration packages and generous, goal-oriented
bonuses to different levels of staff. Senior managers are also offered
generous incentive bonus schemes and share options as a means to
reward and retain a high calibre management team. Please refer to
pages 36 to 38 in this annual report for details about the Company’s
Remuneration Policy.

Although a competitive remuneration package is important, numerous
studies and experiences have shown that it is not sufficient in
attracting and retaining staff. Values, fairness and opportunities for
further professional and personal development are also important
considerations for people. As such, the Group invests heavily in a
comprehensive staff training and development program. The program
focuses not only on basic sales and service training for front-line staff,
but also includes topics such as advanced sales training, basic and
advanced management training, leadership seminars and other talent
development programs that are designed to address the all round
personal and professional development needs of our people. The
Company also encourages individual initiative and responsibility for
development and has instituted an Employee Self Learning Program.
Performance in the program is an important consideration in evaluating
an individual employee’s performance for advancement, salary and
bonus.

OUTLOOK

The Group is encouraged by the steady and solid growth it has
achieved this year. Our strategy of measured, profitable growth
through meaningful brand differentiation and targeted geographical
expansion has proven to be the correct one. We will stay the course
in 2008 to focus on further differentiation and elevation of our brands.
We will also push for faster growth in Mainland China and reinforce
the nascent turnaround in South Korea. Our target is to expand our
global distribution network by at least 150 outlets to over 2,000 and to
sustain double-digit turnover growth in 2008. To this end, Management
has substantially increased capital expenditure from the HK$142 million
in 2007 to an estimated HK$250 million to HK$300 million in 2008 to
fund store procurement and furnishing, including a number of new and
exciting landmark locations in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
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In particular, Mainland China with its strong underlying economic
fundamentals and favourable outlook will continue to be the key growth
engine for us. As such, we plan to add at least 120 outlets in Mainland
China in 2008 and will continue to invest heavily in building our design
and management teams there. The first two months of 2008 have seen
turnover in Mainland China increasing by 43.2 percent year-on-year.

Further expansion of our premium Giordano Ladies and Giordano
Concepts brands will also be a priority for the Group. We started the
year on a positive note with Giordano Ladies and Giordano Concepts
together achieving a 29.9 percent year-on-year increase in the first
two months of 2008. Plans are underway to increase store openings
from the 19 achieved in 2007 to a targeted 30 to bring the number of
Giordano Ladies and Giordano Concepts outlets to over 80 by the end
of 2008. The bulk of the growth will consist of new Giordano Concepts
locations in both first tier and selected second tier cities in Mainland
China.

DIVIDENDS

It is the Company’s intention to return surplus cash to its shareholders
through the regular payment of dividends and, in line with its dividend
philosophy, the Company has been paying an ordinary dividend
amounting to about one-third of its earnings plus a special dividend
the amount of which may vary depending on cash on hand, future
investment requirements and other considerations.

After due consideration of the Group’s upcoming investment needs,
especially in light of its significantly more aggressive expansion plan in
Mainland China, the Board has resolved to recommend to shareholders
the payment of a final dividend of 5.0 HK cents (2006: 5.0 HK cents)
per share and a special final dividend of 10.0 HK cents (2006: 15.0 HK
cents) per share for the year ended December 31, 2007. Together with
the interim dividend of 4.5 HK cents (2006: 4.5 HK cents) per share
and the special interim dividend of 2.0 HK cents (2006: 2.0 HK cents)
per share paid on September 14, 2007, total 2007 dividend amounted
to 21.5 HK cents (2006: 26.5 HK cents) per share,
a payout of 108.6 percent of 2007 per share earnings. Subject to

representing

the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting, the final and special final dividends will be payable on or
about Monday, May 19, 2008 to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Wednesday, May 14,
2008.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EENSREBEAEGN

Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Chairman), aged 55, is the Group’s
Chief Executive and a member of the Compensation Committee of the
Company. He joined the Group in 1987, became the Chief Executive on
February 8, 1994, and was elected Chairman of the Board of Directors
of the Group on August 10 in the same year. Dr. Lau holds a Doctorate
degree in Business Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and an MBA degree from the University of Calgary in
Canada. He is a member of The Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, Dr. Lau had over 12 years of
accounting experience in the private and public sectors in Canada.

Mr. FUNG Wing Cheong, Charles (Executive Director), aged 46,
joined the Group in 1988 and has assumed the current position in
the Company since February 11, 1997. Mr. Fung is also the General
Manager of the Group’s operations in Taiwan and director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. He holds a bachelor degree from The
University of Hong Kong and an MBA degree from the National
University of Singapore. Before joining the Group, Mr. Fung had worked
for five years in the real estate business.

Mr. MAH Chuck On, Bernard (Executive Director), aged 58, joined
the Group in 1996 and was appointed to the current position of the
Company on June 14, 1999. Mr. Mah is also the Executive Chairman
of the Group’s operations in Mainland China and Group Executive
Director — Global Business Development. He graduated from the
University of Alberta in Canada with a bachelor degree in Business
Administration and is a member of The Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Mah had gained extensive
experience in industrial and commercial investment sectors and had
held senior government positions in accounting and auditing in Canada
for 15 years.
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Mr. AU Man Chu, Milton (Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 57, joined the Company on December 11, 2000 and is a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Au holds a Bachelor of
Commerce degree from the University of Alberta in Canada and is
a member of The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants. He
has over 25 years of experience in finance and management. Mr. Au
was an executive director of Noble Group Limited, a company listed
in Singapore, from December 1, 1995 to December 31, 2003. He
has been re-designated as one of its non-executive directors since
January 1, 2004. Mr. Au is also a member of the board of directors
of Hong Kong International Film Festival Society Limited, a non-profit
making organization.

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 63, joined the Group in May 1991. He is also chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Compensation Committee
of the Company. He is an independent non-executive director of
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited and Alltronics Holdings Limited.
Mr. Buttifant also serves as a non-executive director of Global-Tech
Appliances Inc. and China Nepstar Chain Drugstore Ltd., both of which
are New York Stock Exchange-listed companies. Mr. Buttifant has
been appointed as the executive director — Finance of Mission Hills
Group (“MHG”) and an executive director of Hsin Chong Construction
Group Ltd. (“HCCG”) in February 2008. He was formerly an alternate
director of HCCG from 2004 to 2007. Prior to joining MHG, he was
the managing director of Hsin Chong International Holdings Limited, a
controlling shareholder of both the construction company HCCG (which
was acquired by MHG in November 2007) and a property management
service company, Synergis Holdings Limited (“Synergis”). Mr. Buttifant
was an alternate director of Synergis from 2005 to 2007. Mr. Buttifant
was an operating partner of Baring Private Equity Asia Limited. He
was also the managing director of Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited
(“Wo Kee Hong”) from 2001 to 2002 and was the Advisor to the board
of directors of Wo Kee Hong from November 2002 to April 2004.
Prior to joining Wo Kee Hong, he was the managing director of IDT
International Limited for over eight years and had worked for Polly Peck
Group and Sime Darby Hong Kong Limited for more than 11 years in
the capacity of finance director and managing director. Mr. Buttifant is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Chartered
Management Institute, the Hong Kong Management Association and
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
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Mr. KWONG Ki Chi,
aged 57,
Director on April 26, 2004 and is a member of the Audit Committee

GBS, JP (Independent Non-executive Director),
joined the Company as an Independent Non-executive

of the Company. Mr. Kwong graduated from The University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor of Science degree in Physics and Mathematics
and was awarded a Master of Philosophy degree in Economics and
Politics of Development by the University of Cambridge, England. He
has served in the Government of Hong Kong for 27 years and held
positions principally in the economic and financial fields. He was the
Secretary for the Treasury from 1995 to 1998, with responsibility
for the public finances, and Secretary for Information Technology
and Broadcasting from 1998 to March 2000, with responsibility for
information technology, telecommunications and broadcasting. He
left the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
in March 2000 to join the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited as executive director and first Chief Executive, following the
demutualization and merger of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, the
Hong Kong Futures Exchange and their associated clearing houses and
retired in April 2003. From January to June 2004, Mr. Kwong was the
managing director of Hsin Chong International Holdings Ltd.. He was
a non-executive director of Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. (“Hsin
Chong”) from August 2004 to August 2007 and Synergis Holdings
Limited (“Synergis”) from September 2004 to September 2007, the
shares of both Hsin Chong and Synergis are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. Prior to acting as a non-executive director of
Hsin Chong and Synergis, he was an alternate director of Hsin Chong
from January to August 2004 and Synergis from January to September
2004. Mr. Kwong was also an independent non-executive director
of CDC Corporation, a NASDAQ listed company, from June 2003 to
September 2005 and the managing director of Hongkong Sales (Int’l)
Limited from July 2004 to July 2006. He is currently an executive
director of Macau Legend Development Ltd., a company based in
Macau and engaged in the leisure industry.

Mr. Kwong is a non-official Justice of the Peace in Hong Kong and
has been awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. He holds a number of public
service positions, including Vice Patron of The Community Chest of
Hong Kong.
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Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen, JP (Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 67, joined the Company on September 10, 1999. He is also a
member of the Audit Committee and the Compensation Committee of
the Company. He holds an honorary degree of Doctor of Engineering
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and an honorary degree
of Doctor of Laws from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Dr. Lee
is a deputy of Hong Kong SAR, the 9th and 10th National People’s
Congress, PRC. He has taken an active role in public service.

Professor LEUNG Kwok (Board Advisor), aged 49, has been
providing consulting services to the Group since 1987. He is also
a member of the Compensation Committee of the Company.
Professor Leung received his Ph.D. in Psychology from University of
llinois, Urbana-Champaign, U.S.A.. He holds a chair in management
at the City University of Hong Kong. In addition to his international
reputation for his scholarly work, he has extensive consulting
experience with a wide range of organizations and government
departments in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Leung, aged 56, is the Managing Director of the
Group’s manufacturing division. He joined the Group in 1990 and has
over 33 years of experience in the garment manufacturing industry.

Mr. LUl Chi Hung, aged 46, is the Group Chief Financial Officer.
He holds an MBA degree from The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology and a Master degree in Finance from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, and an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Certified
General Accountants Association of Canada. He joined the Group in
2002 and has over 25 years of experience in finance and accounting
field.

Dr. NGAN Lei Tjen, aged 45, is the Group Human Resources Director
and Principal Consultant of Lau, Wong & Associates Consultants
Limited. She holds a Doctorate degree in Business Administration
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a BBA degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Dr. Ngan is also a dipldmée
HEC Paris, France. She is a US Certified Public Accountant, a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
the Certified General Accountants Association of Canada. Dr. Ngan is
also a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (UK).
She joined the Group in 2006 and has 20 years of broad experience in
the banking field.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERBESE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to
the highest standard of corporate governance within a sensible and
practical framework in the firm belief that the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence are essential for upholding the
interests of all stakeholders and maximizing shareholder value.

The Board has long been committed to excellence in corporate
governance and has reviewed and upgraded the Company’s Code
on Corporate Governance on a regular basis even before The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)
introduced the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”). The CG Code came into effect during the accounting period
from January 1, 2005 and has two levels of compliance. The Code
provisions are mandatory for listed companies while Recommended
Best Practices are for guidance. Any deviations from the Code
provisions are to be explained. The Board updated the Company’s
Code on Corporate Governance in June 2006 to bring it into closer
alignment with the CG Code. The following items highlight where
the Company’s corporate governance practice surpasses, attains or
deviates from the CG Code:

ARREFE([EFQ ) MO AEREAITHARBS
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MABIES| - EAREET AR 2 BRIFERE -
EZeR _ZTTRFARAEHARRZEEERT
A FZEMEEEERERTIZIRE - U TR
ARBZEEERTRBY  HEHRBELEER
FRSTHI SR

surpassing the CG Code Provisions minimum of three.

° Independent Non-executive Directors comprise the majority of
the Board, exceeding the CG Recommended Best Practices
minimum of one-third.

o The Audit Committee is comprised exclusively of Independent
Non-executive Directors, exceeding CG Code Recommended
Best Practices.

o The Company has a Risk Management Committee that
reviews all material controls and risk management functions
and reports to the Board twice a year, surpassing CG Code
Provisions.

COMPLIANCE BHIER
Surpass BR
. The Board includes four Independent Non-executive Directors, e EEGANBBEUIENITES - BBLE
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Attain HE
o The Company maintains appropriate director’s and officer's e AR AEERSNEBAEEBEAE Y
liability insurance in line with CG Code Recommended Best EERRE - WBEFEEEELERTIZ
Practices. BEREBHRHOBAE
. Any Independent Non-executive Director who serves more e ARG ESeBBNLF 2B ILIERTT
than nine years will be subject to a separate resolution on B BEREUBIIAERMESTT
further appointment to be approved by shareholders in line HE - WRFECEERATHTACER
with CG Code Recommended Best Practices. SEERIRE °
. The Company adopts the CG Code guidelines on the review of e RARREMNTLEERTRTAFTEHA
internal control system. B E N B ST HIE RI4E 3] -
. The Company meets all CG Code Provisions except the e BRIATHEZRE BRI ARBFE
deviations below. FrAEERTHRTRIZ TR -
Deviate i
. The Company deviates from CG Code Provisions by having e KRR ZERRITHRBHE 2 AEREH
the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive performed by —ARE - R T EEEARER TR ZSF
the same person. The advantages of doing so and the BIES o R 2 B2 AR R ARERE
balancing measures that the Company has adopted to protect ) 225 T BRER B ) 7 ) 7 AN SR S [ = FE AT
shareholder interests are discussed in detail under the section e | —sh AR -
Chairman and Chief Executive of this report.
o The Chairman and the Managing Director are not subject e BERAB 2 ABHMA(THA])  =EX
to retirement by rotation according to the Bye-Laws of the EEREBETHERESR -
Company (the “Bye-Laws”).
BOARD ESsg

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. It sets the Group’s overall objectives
and strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and financial
performance and reviews the standard of corporate governance of
the Company. It also decides on matters related to annual and interim
results, major transactions, director appointments or re-appointments,
and dividend and accounting policies. The Directors, individually and
collectively, are committed to act in good faith in the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders.
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As at the date of this report, the Board is comprised of four
Independent Non-executive Directors and three Executive Directors
and advised by an Independent Board Advisor. The Independent Non-
executive Directors bring a diverse range of experience and expertise
to give effective guidance and a fresh, outside perspective to all major
decisions facing the Group. To assist them in discharging their duties,
the Directors have free and direct access to both the Company’s
external and internal auditors and procedures are in place to allow
Directors to obtain independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense. The Company has also arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance in line with CG Code Recommended Best
Practices.

Given the overall composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge
and expertise that each Director brings individually, the Group is of the
belief that the Board is appropriately structured to provide sufficient
checks and balances to protect the interests of the Company and its
shareholders. The Board will review its composition regularly to ensure
that it has the proper balance and diversity of expertise, skills and
experience to continue to effectively guide and oversee the business of
the Company. Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are
set out on pages 24 to 27 of this annual report.

As an important part of good corporate governance, the Board has
established two Board Committees, namely the Audit Committee and
the Compensation Committee. In addition, a Management Committee
and a Risk Management Committee have been set up to support the
Board and the Board Committees. The composition of the Board, the
Audit Committee and the Compensation Committee is given below.
The Management Committee and Risk Management Committee are
discussed in the relevant sections in this report.
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Audit Compensation

Committee Committee
Members of the Board EEEgRE EREE] HEEES
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHTES
Mr. AU Man Chu, Milton BRSO 5 A v
Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT FEENAEE v v
Mr. KWONG Ki Chi BRERSEE v
Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen FERIFELT v v
Executive Directors HITES
Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter SEES LT v

(Chairman and Chief Executive) (FERITEAAE)

Mr. FUNG Wing Cheong, Charles ViFI =P e
Mr. MAH Chuck On, Bernard Skt
Independent Board Advisor BLEEEEM
Professor LEUNG Kwok REHIE v
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The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships with each other except Mr. Buttifant,
Mr. Kwong and Dr. Lau have a number of common directorships.

Mr. Buttifant and Dr. Lau both serve on the board of Hsin Chong
Construction Company Ltd. (“Hsin Chong”) as executive director and
independent non-executive director respectively. Mr. Kwong who also
sat on the board of Hsin Chong as a non-executive director retired
from Hsin Chong on August 17, 2007.

Separately, Mr. Buttifant served as an alternate director to
Mrs. Fung Yeh Yi Hao, Yvette, deputy chairman of Synergis Holdings
Limited (“Synergis”) while Mr. Kwong served as a non-executive
director of Synergis. Mr. Kwong retired from the board of Synergis on
September 7, 2007 and Mr. Buttifant resigned as alternate director of
Synergis effective January 1, 2008.

It is the Board’s opinion that these relationships do not affect the
Directors’ independent judgment and integrity in executing their roles
and responsibilities.

None of the Independent Non-executive Directors owned any shares of
the Company up to the date of this report.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors has confirmed with the Company
in writing his independence from the Company in accordance with
the relevant guidelines. The Company therefore considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

The Board holds four regular meetings a year and additional meetings
as and when required. Regular Board meetings are scheduled in
advance to facilitate the fullest possible attendance. The Company
Secretary assists the Chairman in setting the agenda of the Board
meetings and each Director is invited to present any businesses that
he wishes to discuss or propose at such meetings. Board papers are
circulated to all Directors, the Independent Board Advisor and other
attendees not less than three days before the Board meetings to
ensure timely access to relevant information. Draft and final versions of
the minutes are circulated to all Directors for comments. Any Director
who is unable to physically attend any Board meeting may participate
electronically by conference call or via alternate arrangements in
accordance with the Bye-Laws. Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, Board
approval may also be obtained by way of circulation of a resolution
in writing on urgent matters when convening a Board meeting is not
practicable. Sufficient information and explanatory materials will be
provided to the Directors at the same time when a resolution in writing
is circulated.
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During the year ended December 31, 2007, four full Board meetings
were held during which the Board reviewed the quarterly performance
results and discussed the Group’s strategy going forward, as well as
other business. In addition, three sets of resolutions in writing were

passed.

Attendances of Directors of the full Board meetings in 2007 are as
follows:

EEENBE_TTLF+ _A=1T—"BLZF
B BITHRE %i%ﬁ/;;% Exgnegt

WA FEEERE - B AR B2 RRERRBE A
REMETR o Mo @ LINEB T ZEZERESR -

EERN_FTTLFHNEREFTEERIHLFECH

Meetings attended/held

Board Meeting EEgER HERBISEEBITRE
Independent Non-executive Directors BIKHTES

Mr. AU Man Chu, Milton B SUAE ST 4/4
Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT HYER L4 4/4
Mr. KWONG Ki Chi BREELE A 3/4
Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen FhERiELT 3/4
Executive Directors HITES

Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter I+ 4/4

(Chairman and Chief Executive) (EERITEARZ)

Mr. FUNG Wing Cheong, Charles ir =P e 4/4
Mr. MAH Chuck On, Bernard Y Skitas 4/4
Independent Board Advisor BUEEEEM

Professor LEUNG Kwok REHIX 4/4
In order to facilitate free and open discussion of issues, Independent A T{EEEH L ABARBHRZRAS 0 B IEH

Non-executive Directors also meet without the presence of Executive
Directors from time to time. In addition, the Independent Non-executive
Directors also met with the Chairman without the presence of the other
Executive Directors in 2007.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Instead of establishing a nomination committee in line with CG
Code Recommended Best Practices which would only have limited
representation, the Company intentionally involves the full Board in
the appointment of new Directors. The Board takes into account
criteria such as expertise, experience, integrity and commitment in its
deliberations.
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In accordance with the Bye-Laws, any new Director (other than the
Chairman or the Managing Director) appointed by the Board is subject
to retirement and re-election by shareholders at the next general
meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or at
the next annual general meeting of the Company (in the case of an
addition to their number) following his appointment. At each annual
general meeting, one-third (or the number nearest to but not exceeding
one-third) of the Directors (other than the Chairman or the Managing
Director) will retire from office by rotation and every Director (other than
the Chairman or the Managing Director) is subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Currently, all Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for
a specific term of three years and subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election pursuant to the Bye-Laws. To further strengthen the
standard of corporate governance, the Company follows CG Code
Recommended Best Practices and requires any re-appointment of an
Independent Non-executive Director who has served on the Board for
over nine years to be subject to a separate resolution to be approved
by shareholders. The Board will set out in the annual report the reasons
it considers such Director to continue to be independent and should be
re-elected.

None of the Directors of the Company is aware of information that
would reasonably indicate that the Company is not in compliance
with the CG Code, except that (i) the roles of the Chairman and Chief
Executive are vested in the same person (Code Provision A.2.1); and (ii)
the Chairman and the Managing Director are not subject to retirement
by rotation (Code Provision A.4.2).

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Currently Dr. Lau Kwok Kuen, Peter, holds the positions of Chairman
and Chief Executive. In view of Dr. Lau’s extensive experience in the
industry and deep understanding of the Group’s businesses, the Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
in Dr. Lau provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership,
allows for more effective planning and execution of long term business
strategies and enhances efficiency in decision-making. The Board also
believes that the Company already has a strong corporate governance
structure appropriate for its circumstances in place to ensure effective
oversight of Management. The main elements of this structure include:

° Having Independent Non-executive Directors comprise a
majority of the Board;

° Having the Audit Committee composed exclusively of
Independent Non-executive Directors;
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o Having Independent Non-executive Directors and the
Independent Board Advisor comprise a majority of the
Compensation Committee;

° Ensuring that Independent Non-executive Directors have free
and direct access to both the Company’s external and internal
auditors and independent professional advice where necessary;

° Having a “whistle-blowing” mechanism in place to allow the
Group’s staff members to anonymously and confidentially
report any suspected acts of fraud or gross misconduct by
senior management, including that of the Chairman and Chief
Executive, to the Head of Internal Audit, the details of which are
discussed under the section “Internal Control”.

The Board believes that these measures enable our Independent Non-
executive Directors to continue to rigorously supervise the Group’s
Management and to provide effective control of key issues relating
to strategy, risk and integrity. The Board continually reviews the
effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance structure to assess
whether any changes are necessary.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises all four Independent Non-executive
Directors and is chaired by Mr. Buttifant, a qualified accountant
with extensive experience in financial reporting and controls. The
committee is responsible for the appointment of external auditors,
review of the Group’s financial information and oversight of the
Group’s financial reporting system and internal control procedures.
It is also responsible for reviewing the interim and final results of the
Group prior to recommending them to the Board for approval. To
this end, the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to both the
Company’s external and internal auditors. Its terms of reference are
available on request and also accessible on the Company’s website at
http.//www.giordano.com.hk/web/HK/investors/2005AC. pdf.

The Audit Committee reviews financial reporting and internal control
matters in the Audit Committee meeting which is held at least twice
a year. The Group Chief Financial Officer, the Chairman of the Risk
Management Committee, the Head of Internal Audit, the Company
Secretary and representatives of the External Auditor of the Company
are expected to attend meetings of the Committee. At the discretion of
the Committee, other members of Management may also be invited to
attend its meetings. In 2007, the Audit Committee held three meetings
and the attendance record, on a named basis, is set out below:
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Meetings attended/held

Audit Committee Meeting EREEEER HERBIEBZRITRE
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAEHITES

Mr. AU Man Chu, Milton BN ST S A 3/3
Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT RN THE 3/3
Mr. KWONG Ki Chi BRE RS AE 3/3
Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen FhERIE T 3/3

During the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the audit strategy
summary and the final results for the year ended December 31, 2006
and the interim accounts for the six months ended June 30, 2007 with
external auditors; as well as the activities of the Group’s Internal Audit
Department and its internal audit report, findings and recommendations
on the Group’s business operations.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Compensation Committee to deal
with matters of remuneration. It is composed of two Independent
Non-executive Directors, the Independent Board Advisor and
the Chairman. It is responsible for reviewing and determining the
remuneration, compensation and benefits of Directors and senior
management. The committee members elect one member to act as
chair at the commencement of each meeting. When the remuneration
package of an individual Director is under review, the Director in
question is required to abstain from voting to avoid any conflict of
interest. The terms of reference of the Compensation Committee are
available on request and also accessible on the Company’s website at
http://www.giordano.com.hk/web/HK/investors/2005CC.pdf.
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Meeting attended/held

Compensation Committee Meeting HEZESEE HERBISEETRH
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT RNt E 1/1
Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen FHEARIE L 1/1
Executive Director HITES

Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter 2B T+ 0/1

(Chairman and Chief Executive) (F/ERITEAA)
Independent Board Advisor BUEEEEM
Professor LEUNG Kwok REHIX 11
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In 2007, the Committee held a meeting to review the remuneration and
bonus of the Chairman and Chief Executive, as well as the director’s
fee of an Independent Non-executive Director. The attendance record,
on a named basis, is set out above. One set of resolution in writing
was passed approving the renewal of the service contract of the
Chairman and Chief Executive. The Chairman and Chief Executive
absented himself from attending the Compensation Committee meeting
and abstained from voting on the renewal of his service contract to
avoid any conflict of interest.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company understands that a reasonable and comprehensive
remuneration package is an important factor in attracting, retaining
and motivating high quality personnel. As such, it is the Company’s
policy to ensure that remuneration is competitive and aligns with the
Company’s goals, objectives and performance. The Company takes
into consideration a number of relevant factors including salaries paid
by comparable companies, job responsibilities, duties and scope,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries,
market practices and the Company’s financial and non-financial
performance in determining its remuneration policy.

As discussed in the previous section, the Compensation Committee
reviews and determines the remuneration of the Directors. To ensure
that Non-executive Directors are appropriately paid for their time and
responsibilities to the Company, the Committee considers factors
such as fees paid by comparable companies, time commitment, the
responsibilities and likely workload of the Non-executive Directors, and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Company.

The Company’s remuneration structure for its employees, including
the Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive Directors, is
composed of fixed compensation, cash performance bonuses, variable
cash incentives, long-term incentives, and retirement schemes as
discussed below.
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Fixed compensation includes an employee’s base salary, allowances
and benefits (e.g. medical). Base salary and allowances are set and
reviewed annually for each position taking into consideration the
Company’s remuneration policy, the Company’s and the individual’'s
performance as well as market conditions and practices. Benefits
are reviewed regularly and determined largely on the basis of local
standards and practices.

Employees are also eligible to receive an annual cash bonus based
on business unit and individual performance. The bonuses awarded
to the Chairman and Chief Executive, the Executive Directors and
members of senior management are reviewed annually by the
Compensation Committee. In 2007, the cash performance bonus
component accounted for 58.4 percent of the total remuneration of
the Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive Directors. Please
refer to note 9(a) to the financial statements for details. In addition,
the Company operates sales and business-related incentive schemes
to motivate certain staff such as front-line sales associates to achieve

specific sales or business targets of the Company.

The Company also operates a share option scheme to provide long-
term incentives to reward and retain a high calibre management
team. During the year, the Company granted 8,198,000 options to
selected members of management under the scheme. The details
of the scheme, together with information on options exercised and
outstanding in respect of the Executive Directors as at December 31,
2007 under the scheme are set out in the section of Share Option
Information of this annual report.

Pursuant to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, the
Company participates in an MPF scheme which has been registered
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority.
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The total remuneration of the members of the Board (excluding share-

AT REFEXE ZEFM (N EIE AR MK

based payments) is shown below. FX) o

(In HK$ millions) (BB B ETREN) 2007 2006

Fees we 1 1

Salaries, allowances and other benefits m o FR R EAMEF 8 8

Variable remuneration related to performance VF Bl B 48 280 B 12 10

Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B K - -
21 19

The total remuneration (excluding share-based payments) of Non-
executive, Executive Directors and the five highest paid employees
(three of whom were Executive Directors) fell within the following

FHTES PWTEFLAUKSFRE (EP=A
BPTER) 2BFM (T EE RN M)

RS HERREDT

bands:
2007 2006
Number Number
Remuneration i AE A&
HK$0 - HK$1,000,000 BEEOIT - B%1,000,0007T 4 4
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 7 #1,000,001 7T — ##2,000,0007T - 2
HK$2,000,001 - HK$3,000,000 7B #2,000,001 7T — B #3,000,0007T 3 2
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 73,000,001 7T - % 4,000,000 1 -
HK$13,000,001 — HK$14,500,000 7 #13,000,001 7T - #E# 14,500,000 1 1
9 9

The Independent Non-executive Directors’ emoluments all fell within
the first remuneration band. Please refer to note 9(a) to the financial
statements for details.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to a Management Committee.
The Management Committee is fully accountable to the Board and
comprises the three Executive Directors who currently serve on the
Board and a director of the Group’s Middle East and India operations.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

One of the Board’s main areas of responsibility is the Company’s
system of internal controls. To this end, policies and procedures
have been put in place to safeguard assets against unauthorized use
or disposition; to maintain proper accounting records and enhance
the reliability of financial reporting and to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. Such policies and procedures are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss, and to manage and minimize rather than
eliminate the risk of failure in the Group’s operational systems. The
Group’s internal control system includes following major components:

° An organizational and governance structure with defined
responsibility and delegated authority;

o Operational budgets review prior to being adopted;

o Stringent policies and procedures for the appraisal, review and
approval of major capital and recurrent expenditures;

° Regular report of operations results against budgets to the
Board;
° A “whistle-blowing” mechanism to allow the Group’s staff to

anonymously report any suspected acts of fraud or gross
misconduct by senior management, including that of the
Chairman and Chief Executive, to the Head of Internal Audit
who will refer the report to the Company’s Independent Non-
executive Directors for further action; and

° Strict internal procedures and controls for the handling and
dissemination of price sensitive information.

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for the
Group’s internal control system and the reviewing of its effectiveness
to a Risk Management Committee. The Risk Management Committee
is composed of five members including one Executive Director,
Mr. Mah, together with the Group Chief Financial Officer, the Head
of Internal Audit and two senior management representatives. It
reviews all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions in accordance
with the code provisions on internal control of the Company’s Code on
Corporate Governance and reports to the Board twice a year. The Risk
Management Committee is fully accountable to the Board.

B S 42

ARBZAMEENEBESTENIERE L — -
At - KRB EETHREMGIGTRF - UEREE
CERARERETERNER - BRENSFTILHR
BABEARESMBRE 2 AT - ARERE
SFERZERER o DIBERNIZFEHEA B (1
WIERBE ) RELBERKRERAKIEL  BR
KRR (M0 3FTE 2B ) AR B8 R R KR A
@ o ANEE 2 MEREZIESIZ AT T2 EMAERK -

. ASREEEREENAM N E R RE

. EIRBRRM 2ETRE

. FETZ ~ e RBEHEREARLFE MR

2 BERE R -

¢ EENEFOEREEEARTREF
7%

o RUTEERS]EH - 2 HFA%EETIX

EAFAMAREAHIERRSRERE
AR BREEFERTREHOUFERTET
B REEFTHEEEHAFERERIAR
AIZBIFMTESIBE— 178 &

. FhER IR N BT (B BURE BHR AN R R A B
TR Fr MIESTRIE I

EEeCRRAREEZEERAARE Z A
EEHELRRS AN AREEZEEF AN
KRE  BRE-UHBTEEHFLE  SEMBHHEE -
AMBEA L ETEALMESREEERE - REAX
REZEEEATRRABAGEZA TR -
ZERESRIMAEENER  BREME - 2EMN
ER O UNERAREENE UTEFRAEFTSER
MR- EREEZESHEEFEARE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 & #

39



40

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TREAREE

Co-operating closely with the Risk Management Committee, the
Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring the
internal controls of the Group. It provides specific guidance and
communications on risk and internal control matters. Adopting a risk-
based approach, the Internal Audit Department implements the audit
plan approved by the Audit Committee and Management. Regular
reports are made directly to the Audit Committee and Management.
The Audit Committee has free and direct access to the Head of Internal

Audit without reference to the Chairman or Management.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Directors on terms required by Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules. All directors confirmed that they complied with the
aforesaid code throughout the year.

The Company has also adopted a Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Specified Employees to govern securities transactions
of those employees who may possess or have access to price sensitive
information. The said code covers areas such as prohibitions and
conduct in the dealing of Company’s securities, avoidance of conflict
of interests and confidentiality of Company’s information, etc. These
employees have complied with the aforesaid code throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period to ensure that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, its operational results
and cash flow for that period. The Company’s financial statements are
prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for
ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently, and that where judgment has been applied and estimates
made, they are prudent and reasonable.

The statement by the principal auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers,
the financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 53 to 54.

regarding their reporting responsibilities on
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration charged by the Group’s principal auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliated firms for non-audit and
statutory audit services is set out below:

TRERBES

=

% (A K

AEE T T ERYETR SNBSS EEARE
B B SRR BRI RS I %
o -

(In HK$ millions) (BB E TREN) 2007 2006
Non-audit services IEEZARTE 1 1
Statutory audit VA TE B 3 2
Total FEE: 4 3
INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS HEREERRRZBR

The Company firmly believes that clear and effective communication of
the Group’s business strategies and developments helps to enhance
shareholder value. As such, the Group’s senior management maintains
a constant and open dialogue with the investment community through
company visits, information sessions and participation in major investor
conferences. In all, senior management held over 130 meetings with
institutional investors and research analysts in 2007.

The Company has a wide and diverse shareholder base of institutional
and retail investors. To ensure all shareholders have equal and timely
access to important company information, the Company makes
extensive use of its corporate website to deliver up-to-date information
such as results announcements and press releases. In the interest
of striking a balance between keeping shareholders abreast of the
Company’s performance on one hand and avoiding an unhealthy focus
on short term results on the other, the Company decided against
following the CG Code Recommended Best Practice of publishing
quarterly financial results. Instead, the Company publishes operations
updates for the first three and nine month periods on its corporate
website. Annual and interim reports, together with other stock
exchange filings, are also accessible on the corporate website.

ARBEE  BRARWAINEENEE 2 X
REEMER - ARIRFTRREE - Bt AEEZ
SREEEEBARAED  ERRXRARSERE
BREENN G BREFRTEMNMARALE
BEMS  BREEBER_ZTLFERBREE
ERENTERTTHBB A =TREH

ARAMBEREREZMZ T ABBNEP
BREFEK - RERZERRE A QY KER R
BEERAEM - ARFZEARRABUEIRE K
HE  BMEENHMAER - RTERREZER
NARBMZHBX TG BN EEEIKAE - KRFDR
ETMRREXEEAFRTAZEZHETATES
EHGEE - ARARARBUTIEEE=EA
EAERBREZ &M EHER - REWU ETREAB
Fi - PHIREUAREMAR BHAIEZOER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 & #

41



42

The Board welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting
the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’ meetings
to communicate any concerns that they may have with the Board or
Management directly. The Company’s Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
is an especially important forum. In order to encourage and facilitate
shareholder attendance at its AGM, the Company gives at least twenty-
one days prior notice together with a detailed agenda. To ensure clear
communication, each substantially separate issue is proposed under
a separate resolution. Details of the right of shareholders to demand a
poll and procedures of poll voting at general meeting are stipulated in
the Bye-Laws and included in each circular related to the convening
of a general meeting. The chairman of the meeting will also explain the
poll voting procedures at the commencement of the general meeting.

Investors and shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at
shareholder’s meetings or to make enquiries of the Board may do so
by contacting our Investor Relations Department whose contact details
are listed on page 144 of this annual report.

The Company held its 2007 AGM on May 9, 2007 at Block B, 3rd
Floor, Tin On Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. Five out of seven Directors including the
Chairman attended the meeting as set out below:

EXEeBIRREZEAEBENFEREER - I
SEMMEERRERE  BEUEEMRNESSX
ERERBMMETENEE - ARFZRIBAFK
((RFBFAE]) RLEEENTE - BTER
RAERREERRBAFAE  ~AAFRINRKE
BITHHAIZ T —ABRBEN - UHEFENSH
HEE ABRIBREERE  SHEBUEERNUELR
RERRE - RREERIRMERETT N ETRAMN
ERRBRRAE LREERE T NETREAZER

DAEMAPHFMAETE YA SUKFREZRRER
/\ﬁF%ZRT WK o KREXFIHNSRBREANSHEG

SRR ERE T ETRAZET -

REERBRRMEEERRERARS LRBEFE - XK
MEFGRLEN ABSARAZREERBE

#BFY - HBRFBRENAFRE—AN+HE -

RAAFRZZEZELFRAANBREZTELERD
BBttt EE NIRRT TIERNE - EBEREIT
B FREBAFRG - tREZHELA (B
FRILEER  FBOT

Shareholders’ Meeting TR F Meeting attended/held
(Annual General Meeting) (RRBFEARE) HERBISERTRE
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Mr. AU Man Chu, Milton BA ST e A 01
Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT RN EE 11
Mr. KWONG Ki Chi BEH &S A 11
Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen FhERIE L 11
Executive Directors BITES

Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter 2R L 11

(Chairman and Chief Executive) (FERITEAAE)

Mr. FUNG Wing Cheong, Charles BB EE 0/1
Mr. MAH Chuck On, Bernard BRFE 11
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The Chairman opened formal business at the 2007 AGM by advising on
the voting procedures and the level of proxies received. The following
items of business were considered at the meeting:

o Adoption of the audited financial statements and the reports
from the directors and the independent auditor;

o Resolutions on final and special final dividends;

o Re-election of directors and re-appointment of auditor;

° Renewal of general mandates to issue shares and to repurchase
shares; and

° Extension of general mandate to issue shares.

The 2008 AGM is proposed to be held on May 14, 2008.

There has been no change in the Company’s Bye-Laws during the
year. If any amendment to the Bye-Laws is necessary, according to
the relevant law governing the Company, the Company will propose
the amendment for shareholders’ approval at a general meeting of the
Company.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has long been committed to being a responsible
corporate citizen, with a view to creating a positive impact in the
communities where we do business. Indeed, well before the Company
formally adopted its Corporate Social Responsibility policy statement
it has adhered to the principle of “doing well by
doing good” in the spheres of the workplace, the community and the

in January 2005,

environment.
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The Workplace

The Company is committed to treating our employees with fairness
and respect. We believe in co-operation, teamwork, and trust. We hire
on the basis of ability and merit, and reward and promote on the basis
of performance. Our business partners are required to share in these
values and in particular we expect our suppliers and vendors to comply
with our Core Ethical Sourcing Requirements as listed below:

o The supplier only employs workers that are above the local legal
minimum age.

o The supplier does not use forced or prison labour in any part or
aspects of its facilities.

o The workers are not subjected to physical abuse, or the threat
of physical abuse.

o The supplier does not contravene local environmental laws and
regulations.

o The supplier provides a safe and healthy work environment for
its workers.

o The supplier is committed to rectifying any areas of concern

identified during supplier audits by the Company or its appointed
third party auditors.
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The Community

The Group actively supports various charitable organizations and
causes. For instance, in the last ten years the Group has made over
RMB40 million in cash and in-kind donations to various charitable
organizations in Mainland China alone, about RMB33 million of which
went towards providing emergency relief to victims of natural disasters.
However, we do not confine ourselves to assisting only in emergencies,
but also provide stable and long term support to various charitable
organizations, especially those associated with education, children and
the underprivileged. One such program is the Giordano Hope Primary
School project operating under the umbrella of Project Hope, a public
service project organized by the China Youth Development Foundation
(CYDF). Launched in 2000, the program aims to provide children in
poverty-stricken rural areas of Mainland China with access to primary
school education, and by the end of 2007 the Group has funded the
construction of 18 Giordano Hope Primary Schools in poverty-stricken
areas in rural Guizhou and Guangxi. Another example is the ongoing
Giordano scholarships programs at Zhongshan University and The
Guangzhou Academy of Fine Arts.

The Environment

The Company is also committed to minimizing the environmental
impact of its operations. Convinced that every little effort helps, the
Company pushes its employees to recycle office paper and reduce
wastage. At the end of 2007, the Company began studying the
feasibility of converting its shops to use only energy saving lighting. We
have chosen four stores in Hong Kong for the pilot program, with two
having just been converted in March 2008. The initial results have been
encouraging: the stores experienced energy savings of over 50.0 percent
from more efficient lighting as well as reduced air conditioning usage
without significant impact on the level of illumination and general store
ambience. The Company will closely evaluate the performance of these
pilot stores and make the necessary adjustments and refinements
before embarking on a wider roll-out of the program.

CONTINUOUS CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ENHANCEMENT

The Board will continue to pay close attention to any regulatory
changes and international developments with a view to continually
review and enhance the corporate governance standards of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERES

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
business of the Group is the retail and distribution of casual apparel
and accessories under Giordano, Giordano Concepts, Giordano Ladies,
Giordano Junior and Bluestar Exchange/BSX brands. These brands
offer basic to modern fashionable apparel of quality and value. The
Group also carries on garment trading and manufacturing operation,
supporting the Group’s retail business and supplying products to third
parties.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance by principal activities and
geographical locations of operations for the year ended December 31,
2007 is set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2007 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 55 to 126.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of 4.5 HK cents per share and a special interim
dividend of 2.0 HK cents per share were paid on September 14, 2007.

The directors recommend to shareholders the payment of a final
dividend of 5.0 HK cents per share and a special final dividend of
10.0 HK cents per share for the year ended December 31, 2007 to
those shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on May 14, 2008.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves during the year are set out in the Statements of
Changes in Equity on pages 60 to 62.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2007, the retained profits of the Company together
with the contributed surplus available for distribution amounted to
HK$838 million (2006: HK$1,168 million).
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made for charitable purposes by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$2.1 million (2006: HK$2.2 million).

FIXED ASSETS

During the year, the Group acquired fixed assets of approximately
HK$142 million (2006: HK$111 million). Movements in fixed assets
during the year are set out in notes 14, 15 and 19 to the financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at December 31,
2007 are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS

As at December 31, 2007, the Group’s bank loans of approximately
HK$96 million (2006: HK$58 million) were repayable on demand or
within one year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate percentages of purchases and sales attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers and customers respectively are less than
30.0 percent.

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
ten fiscal years is set out on pages 2 to 3.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are shown in note 22 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

A summary of the share option scheme and details of the movement
in share options of the Company during the year are set out on pages
127 to 132.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws although there are no restrictions against such rights under
the laws of Bermuda.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEgREE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are:

Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter

Mr. AU Man Chu, Milton *

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT *

Mr. FUNG Wing Cheong, Charles
Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, JP *

Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen, JP *

Mr. MAH Chuck On, Bernard

*

Independent non-executive directors

In accordance with Bye-Law 98 of the Company’s Bye-Laws,
Mr. KWONG Ki Chi and Mr. AU Man Chu, Milton will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. AU Man Chu, Milton
will not offer himself for re-election whereas Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, being
eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Biographical details of the directors of the Company as at the date of
this report are set out on pages 24 to 27 of this annual report. Further
information of a retiring director proposed to be re-elected is set out on
pages 142 to 1483 of this annual report.

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACT

The director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting does not have any service contract with the Company
or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

None of the directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance subsisted during or at the end
of the year to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED & ) B A R & 7
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at December 31, 2007, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQO”)), as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO; or as notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

EECHSESR
R-ZFBTLF+-_A=1+—8 ARABEZFRITH
BEGEARNBSERREE (E&LEHFLPEED
FEXVER) et - AR R EEE PR RIEZ
FPIE=aR+ —RBETHEFNELMAHEIRIE
BEBMARIAARAR (TBRAT]) 2 ETEITA
ERETESFRZNRESTR ([EEFR]) BHNE
AN RIMBE A PR 2 (s ROk B 0T

Beneficial
interest in
unlisted
underlying
Beneficial shares Approximate
interest in (Note) aggregate
shares kEmz percentage
(Note) HER 5 of interests
Name of director Nature of interest B ERZER BRER g
EEgE FEmE (H17t) (H13t) B2 EHN
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter Personal 24,118,000 - 1.62%
2|2 4% EA
FUNG Wing Cheong, Charles Personal 1,122,000 5,000,000 0.41%
KB EA
MAH Chuck On, Bernard Personal 1,619,086 5,000,000 0.44%
BH% 1A

Note: Interests in the shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives
were long position. Underlying unlisted shares are share options
granted to the directors pursuant to the share option scheme of the
Company and details of which are set out on page 130.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2007, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or as notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
Furthermore, save as disclosed above, at no time during the year
ended December 31, 2007 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company or
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate.

Wiet : RO RRALTETAZ ERR (#2197
R o HLTZRALTETRZ IR T
EREIRRZERIEAZTR TEEZIBRE
BHENBIIRE—BH="1TH. -

R ERWEIN R_FFLF+_A=+—8"
ARREERTHRARMECEARALERARH
ZE(ERREFRBPEHEOIFEXV #B) MD -
MHRER D R (B A SRR ER B RIE % IR
PIE=BRt _RATEHEFNECMARHKRE
MRS A B A& AR A B ANBE S P 2 AE (T R 2 SO
B oo o B EARERSN - AR E MM EA
ARBE _ZTZLF T _A=T "R LEFAHE
A ERZH - SARBEEHRE ZRBIAR
TA\BRZ FRAFEBARR T REAMERZ RN
BRI o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at December 31, 2007, the following persons, other than directors

and chief executive of the Company, having interests or short positions

of five percent or more in the Company’s shares or underlying shares

were recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:

FERR

R-ZFZFLF+-_A=1t—0 REEHFIHE
GEPIE=B =+ NERERARRFE 2 ELM
THAL (BRARBEERITHRAFSN) HEARF
Z BN AR 2 e EOAR B D < AL ¢

Aggregate Approximate
long position aggregate
in shares and percentage

underlying shares of interests
Name Note HERGR HER
£ iga HER BB ERES %
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc and its associates 1 219,420,018 14.71%
Harris Associates L.P. 2 118,170,800 7.92%
Sanderson Asset Management Limited 3 90,600,000 6.07%
Franklin Resources, Inc. 4 83,857,058 5.62%
Matthews International Capital Management, LLC 5 75,113,000 5.04%
Notes: Mt

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Aberdeen Asset Management Plc and its associates held

219,420,018 shares in the capacity of Investment Manager.

Aberdeen Asset Management Plc and its various wholly-owned

subsidiaries held the following shares on behalf of the accounts they

managed:

Name of subsidiary

1. Aberdeen Asset Management Plc KA ZA
UREKIEFE D IFE —E—FAFMN+ &
TAVRAR 7 ©

1 Aberdeen Asset Management Plc &% 4%
EWEB R A XAEELRFIFH ARG -

Aggregate long position in shares

o) PTR=L HFERGHEE
Aberdeen Asset Management Asia Limited 219,420,018
Aberdeen Asset Management Inc 1,764,000
Aberdeen Asset Management Limited 1,460,000
Aberdeen Asset Managers Limited 48,779,816
Aberdeen Fund Management Limited 27,724,808
Aberdeen International Fund Managers Limited 113,398,000
Aberdeen Unit Trust Managers Limited 39,107,816
Edinburgh Fund Management Limited 14,000,000

Harris Associates L.P. held 118,170,800 shares in the capacity of

Investment Manager.

Sanderson Asset Management Limited held 90,600,000 shares in

the capacity of Investment Manager.

ERAREBEKBRAER

D

El

2. Harris Associates L.P. I 1% E45T1E & (7 1% B
—E—FNE—1+LtEZBRRG -

3. Sanderson Asset Management Limited X #% &
MG BN TENTHBRRD -



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

4, Franklin Resources, Inc. had a deemed interest in respect of
83,857,058 shares held by its wholly-owned subsidiary, Franklin
Templeton Investments Corp., in the capacity of Investment

Manager.

5. Matthews Interational Capital Management, LLC held 75,113,000 shares
in the capacity of Investment Manager.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On March 29, 2006, two subsidiaries of the Group have each entered
into a manufacturing license agreement (the “Manufacturing License
Agreements”) with Placita Holdings Limited (“Placita”) in respect of the
purchases of Giordano branded merchandize by the Group from Placita
and its subsidiaries (the “Purchases”) with a finite term of three years
as required under Rule 14A.35(1) in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange for continuing
connected transactions.

Placita is owned as to 51.0 percent by the Company and 49.0 percent
by Gloss Mind Holdings Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by
Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Leung (“Mr. Cheung”),
Placita is considered a connected person of the Company under the

a director of Placita.

Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Purchases contemplated under the
Manufacturing License Agreements constitute continuing connected
transactions (the “Transactions”) of the Company.

At a special general meeting held on May 9, 2006 (the “SGM”),
shareholders of the Company independent of the Transactions
approved the Transactions with annual cap amounts of HK$400 million,
HK$440 million and HK$484 million for the financial years ended
December 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 respectively.

The Purchases during the financial year ended December 31, 2007

totalled approximately HK$307 million.

FERR(HE)

4. A Franklin Resources, Inc. .2 £ & [ & 2> ]
Franklin Templeton Investments Corp. KX
REKEG G REMIN T8/ \+AE+TFZF
BT/ URRID AR EB T #eam ©

5. Matthews International Capital Management,
LIC UEREXEG GisF+tTaAE —1T—&
=TFRE G ©

=i IE == n,J

AEER - ARAWEETZSHETERMELRRF
E2HNEBXBEBIEERITHAL °

HEREXS

RZEERF= )EJ ThB s NEBMBMME
NAIREBEHMRAES EMRA EmHAR]D &
14A.35(1 )ﬂ%%ﬁii‘“’ FER S5 2HED RIE Placita
Holdings Limited ([Placital) &] 32 &t & & E A
Placita X HEERIE Giordano MmIEE W ([ZEH
B ZEEHFUTAR(TEEHFIER]) XA =F5
MR oo

Placita B A A A K Placita 2 EEERKER k4
(MR%&EHE]) 22 E&HE AT Gloss Mind Holdings
Limited K Bl#BEE22E+—kaszl+hz
2 o ARIE EHIRAI - Placita R ARNA R ZHE
AT e Bt £EFAARE TN 2ZEFRBEXA
NRAIZFHEBEXS ([ZERS]) -

RZEZERNFRAANBETZBRREEIAE
(TEFRRE]) L $“ﬁ2ﬁjﬁiiﬁmﬁt}ﬁ‘
THZERGNEBEZ-_TTRF - —TET+FR

ZZENF+_RA=+—BHLEVBRFEZEE LR

DRl RBEOET
MENTEESTT -

AENRODTETREE

BE_ZZ+F+ - A=+T—HITRFEZSRE
BEAEBE=ZRBZELHET -

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 & #

51



52

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

The auditor of the Company has performed certain agreed-upon
procedures on the Transactions and reported to the Board that during
the year (i) the Transactions have received approval from the Board;
(i) the Transactions have been entered into in accordance with the
terms of the relevant agreements or other order contracts governing
the Transactions; and (i) the cap amount of HK$440 million has not
been exceeded.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the Transactions during the year and confirmed that
they have been () entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (i) conducted either on normal commercial
terms or terms no less favorable to the Group than terms available
to independent third parties; and (i) entered into in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole. The independent non-executive directors have also confirmed
that the Transactions have not exceeded the maximum amount of
HK$440 million capped for the year ended December 31, 2007 in
accordance with the circular of the Company dated April 19, 2006 and
approved by the independent shareholders at the SGM.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers shall retire and being eligible, offer itself for
re-appointment, and a resolution to this effect will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 28, 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

BYZBEHRES

K R g 6 E AT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Giordano
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 55 to 126, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at December 31, 2007, and the
consolidated profit and loss account, the statements of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

RERAREBRERIARR
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
December 31, 2007 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, March 28, 2008

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED & ) B A R & 7

ERSRAITREFAERE BV BHREMEEER
BEEMNEZERE - MEENRERFIURRZEE
HHIE - B R SRR M B B 53Rk
TFEERHERRANER - ErHAZ SRR - 2286
ZREZNBRELEAEM QT W B R KA
FAR A EBIE S - URFHEENERIEF - BXES
BRAHAFHES R BERBR - ERNBEN
BEZEMRANSHTRRNABEELMELOES
ERTEIENE - ARFET B RANEBRIIHm N -

HFIHEGE - RPOMESHNEZERRE R R ME
REFINEZERRHER -

i3

i,

=z
=

BMRE ZEGREAVBRRCBEESH B R
EHAEEMAFIRE BARE BESEER
ZETHF+ZA=+—HNBEHEHRRAR BEE
HEZALFEMNFBERESRE  YEKRRBES
(CREHEDD B TEREZ BRE -

BORUKEETT A SEHAT
HEBEAD

8 —TTN\F=A-1+NA



CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

mEBRER

For the year ended December 31, 2007
WE_TELF+-_A=FT-RILEFE

(In HK$ millions, (BB REFIS - Note
except earnings per share) KBEM B E o BEN) ot 2006
Turnover S 5 4,372
Cost of sales FER DN (2,194)
Gross profit E7 2,178
Other income H WA 5 114
Distribution expense DHEER (1,449)
Administrative expense THER (171)
Other operating expense Hihe s & (296)
Operating profit F il 5,6 376
Finance expense e E A 7 (1)
Share of profit of jointly controlled FE AL L[R2 i A 7]

companies il 17 8
Share of profit of an associate FEAL — Bt & R BE T 18 8
Profit before taxation B 5 A i A 391
Taxation iE 10 (173)
Profit after taxation B 76 1% i A 218
Profit attributable to: FEAG 5 F1

Shareholders of the Company ViN/NETR S 11 205

Minority interests LH PR 13

218

Dividends B 12 395
Earnings per share BRAF 13

Basic HAR 13.8¢

Diluted B 13.7 ¢
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BALANCE SHEETS
EERREX

December 31, 2007
—EFE+F+-_A=+—H

Note
(In HK$ millions) (UEEEETAEN) Hiiz
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B REE 14
Investment property BEYE 15
Interest in subsidiaries BT 1 Al 2 16
Interest in jointly controlled companies HEES DA S 17
Interest in an associate —B AR ER 18
Leasehold land and rental prepayments HELEASEMNFTE 19
Rental deposits HEZS
Deferred tax assets EXERIEEE 24
Current assets REBEE
Inventories & 20
Leasehold land and rental prepayments BET# RESENZE 19
Trade and other receivables P i B R % L b FE UK 21
Amounts due from subsidiaries YN S 16
Cash and bank balances ReRBITET 28
Total assets EELE

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED {£ L B A& R & 7
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BALANCE SHEETS
EERER

December 31, 2007
—EE+HF+-_A=+—H

Group Company
Note £F AT
(In HK$ millions) (BN EETREN) Hiiz 2006
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERLERE
Capital and reserves BARREE
Share capital [N 22 75
Reserves i 23 1,489
Proposed dividends BREE 12 298
Equity attributable to shareholders AARRE
of the Company L= 1,862
Minority interests YR REER -
Total equity A 1,862
Non-current liabilities k¥ REBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EXERBAE 24 -
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables JRE 151 B 3R R L A B A 3R 25 2
Bank loans RITE N 29 43
Taxation I8 -
45
Total liabilities EEHEE 45
Total equity and liabilities EnRkAEEE 1,907

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
25/
Director

EF

MAH Chuck On, Bernard

BHR
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

GERITRER

For the year ended December 31, 2007
HE-TELF+-_A=Tt—RAILEE

Note

(In HK$ millions) (BB HE TREN) Bt
Operating activities: R
Profit before taxation B 54 A 4 A
Adjustments for: .
Share of profit of jointly controlled FEAL LR HE H A A

companies i A 17
Share of profit of an associate FEAE — Bt R Rm 18
Loss on dilution of a jointly controlled BE—HRAESI AR ER

company 2 E1E
Amortization of leasehold land and HELTH EEEENFKIE

rental prepayments B 19
Interest income FE WA 5
Depreciation e 6
Impairment of property, plant and W - HEREE

equipment BE 6
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME - MEREREZ

plant and equipment FIEE 6
Interest on bank loans RITERA B 7
Share option expense BREER
Operating cash inflow before changes CEEE FNERBIBZEA

in working capital, interest and tax ZIEEH BN
Increase in inventories FE 28N

Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables

JRE Ui R R L At R LA R 2 3 A
& AT R R K% L At B A R 2 3 A

Cash generated from operations KEEBMEE RS

Interest paid EATFE

Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBENEN

Overseas tax paid [RENRISEIN

Net cash inflow from REEHK2
operating activities RERAFE

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED {£ L B A& R & 7
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For the year ended December 31, 2007

BE-—TEtE+-_A=-+-—ALEE

Note

(In HK$ millions) (BB HE TREN) Vioka 2007 2006
Investing activities: REXK
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE - s

equipment K& 14 (142) (111)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEME - HSREE

plant and equipment Z YA 3 1
Investment in a jointly controlled BER—HA
company ] = (10)
Increase in leasehold land and BELH KBS EMNKE
rental prepayments 2 380 (19) (4)
Increase in rental deposits MEZ e 2 (15) (2)
Interest received [=ELEESN 13 19
Dividends received from jointly B U £ B4

controlled companies NG ¢S 7 6
Dividends received from an associate B —E e R RIRE - 6
Net cash outflow REEKZ

from investing activities BEREFE (153) (95)
Financing activities: RMEXR
Proceeds from issue of shares BT < A 2 4
Dividends paid to minority shareholders 2 V8% IR & (12) (6)
Dividends paid =ENLEES (395) (395)
Additions/(repayment) of bank loans |ITER G M/ (EE) 38 (18)
Net cash outflow from financing BEEXEKZ2RESRE

activities T (367) (415)
Decrease in cash and ReRkBRLEE

cash equivalents Z D (177) (204)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHHReRESEE

the beginning of the year &1z 720 900
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEEE R H)

changes E2-4 24 24
Cash and cash equivalents at ERBEERBELEHE

the end of the year ®17 28 567 720

ANNUAL REPORT
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
BEBEX

For the year ended December 31, 2007
HE-TELF+-_A=Tt—RAILEE

(@) Group
&
Attributable to shareholders of the Company
ARARRELES
Capital Share (Note 28)
redemption options (HzE23) Minority
Share Contributed  reserve Share  reserve Exchange Other  Retained interests Total

(In HK$ millions) capital  surplus EX  premium BRE  reserve reserves  profits Total  HEBE  equity
(WEEETAEN) kx  #\BE RERE RHEE e EXRE HURE REEA i B BREE
At January 1, 2007
REBRLE-A-R ] LI 8 S 66 10O m_ moo A% 108 2,090
Exchange adjustment on translation of

overseas subsidiaries and branches
BINEAARAAAAEZER AR - - - - - 39 - - 39 (1) 38
Movement in net deferred tax liabilities

(note 24)
ERREAEFE ED (HiT24) - - - - - (2 - - (2 - (2)
Net gain recognized directly in equity
FHEERNERTED - - - - - 87 - - 37 (1) 36
Profit for the year
AEREH - - - - - - - 295 295 9 304
Total recognized gain
BRbmEE o T R o ., R % _ . ¥ 8 .] 40
Transfer among reserves
GEmaE - - - - @ ; ; 4 ] ) ;
Share option scheme
BREE

- Shares issue upon exercise of

share options

- B RBREREG2RH - - - 2 - - - - 2 - 2

- Share option expense

- %%%Efﬁ - - - - 1 - - - | - {
Dividends to minority shareholders
SERRRE - - - - - - - - - (12) (12)
2006 final and special dividends

(note 12(h))
ZERRERERENRS (KiE12() - - - - - - - (298) (298) - (298)
2007 interim and special dividends

(note 12(a))
“ERLEREREARS (Wi120) - - - - - - - (97) (97) - (97)
S T T g .. . R U - (12 404
At December 31, 2007
R-BELE+ZR=1-H 75 383 3 608 7 57 113 681 1,927 99 2,026

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED {£ m B E R QA



STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EaBE X

For the year ended December 31, 2007
BHE_ZZLHF + A=+—-HIEE
(a) Group (a) El
The comparative figures for 2006 are set out as follows: ZEENEZLBETOT
Attributable to shareholders of the Company
FRAREEGER
Capital Share (Note 28)
redemption options GER)) Minority
Share  Contributed ~ reserve Share  reserve  Exchange Other  Retained interests Total
(In HK$ millions) capital  surplus EX premium BRE  reserve  reserves profits Total  DERE equity
(WEEEETEEN) kr & R%  BEEE ROEE R EXRE  HbEE  REEN £% Br  BERfE
At January 1, 2006
REBEAF-A-R ] (L 8 S 62 10 GO m_ o1 212 8225
Exchange adjustment on translation of
overseas subsidiaries and branches
BIMBELARD ARG EL AR - - - - - 51 - - 51 3 54
Movement in net deferred tax liabilities
(note 24)
EREREEREE 2 (Hitod) - - - - - (1) - - (1) - (1)
Net gain recognized directly in equity
FREERRNERTER - - - - - 50 - - 50 3 53
Profit for the year
AEREHN - - - - - - - 205 205 13 218
Total recognized gain
Lt . S, SR S S S S 0 2 LI 271
Transfer among reserves
EmRE - - - - - - (6) 6 - - -
Share option scheme
BREE
- Shares issue upon exercise of
share options
- R ERERE 2R i - - 4 () - - . 1 ] .
- Share option expense
-BREER - - - - 1 - - - 1 - 1
Dividends to minority shareholders
PERRRE - - - - - - - - - (6) (6)
2005 final and special dividends
(note 12(h))
ZETREREREHRE (HE12(0)) - - - - - - - (298) (298) - (298)
2006 interim and special dividends
(no 12(a))
ZERREREREARS (Hi120) - - - - - - - (97) (97) - (97)
LA SR T o T 6 (369 (390 (6 (%]
At December 31, 2006
RZBERETZAZT-H 75 383 3 606 10 20 113 777 1,087 103 2,09
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
E@m B ER

For the year ended December 31, 2007
HE-TELF+-_A=Tt—RAILEE

(b) Company

YN
Capital Share
redemption options
Share Contributed reserve Share reserve  Retained Total
capital  surplus EX  premium BRE profits equity
(In HKS millions) (W ERFETAEN) Bx  #AR% EREE  RHEE B RRER  BR4E
Atdanvary 1,200 REBRLE-A-R L w S o o6 ... 0! 628 1862
Profit for the year (note 11) RERRH (W 11) - - - - - 61 61
Tota recognized gain L S T S RN, ISR L)
Transfer among reserves e - - - - (4) 4 -
Share option scheme Bl v hE
- Shares Issue upon exercise of share options - R BERERET R - - - 2 - - 2
- Share option expense - BREER - - - - 1 - 1
2006 final and special dividends ZEENERIREARE
(note 12(b)) (P& 12(b)) - - - - - (298) (298)
2007 interim and special dividends ZERCERERBAIRE
(note 12(a)) (HEE12(a) - - - - - (97) (97)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, R S R . SO . S )
At December 31, 2007 R-EZ+E+-B=1+-AH 75 540 3 608 7 298 1,531
The comparative figures for 2006 are set out as follows:
ZEEAFZHEETNT
Capital Share
redemption options
Share  Contributed reserve Share reserve  Retained Total
capital surplus EX premium Bl profits equity
(In HKS millions) (WEEEETAREL) kx  SAB%  EBORE  RhEE RE  AREN  ERER
Al Janvery 1,2006 REBERE-A-R "o Moo S 62 0 2005
Profit for the year (note 11) REFEH (Mit11) - - - - - 247 247
Tota recognized gan EoAaRE R T S SRR ur 27
Share option scheme B
- Shares issue upon exercise of share options - RERREn R kG 1 - - 4 1) - 4
- Share option expense - BREER - - - - 1 - 1
2005 final and special dividends “ERRERERBARE
(note 12(b)) (BE12(0) - - - - - (298) (298)
2006 interim and special dividends ZEEREPEREARE
(note 12(a)) (HsE12a) - - - - - (97) 97)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, L e L) B ..
At December 31, 2006 RZEERETZA=1-H 75 540 3 606 10 628 1,862

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED & ) B A R & 7



(a)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Giordano International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) distribute and sell
casual apparel under the brand names of Giordano,
Giordano Concepts, Giordano Ladies, Giordano Junior
and Bluestar Exchange/BSX through an extensive
retailing network with over 1,800 shops spanning over
20 countries. It also operates a limited manufacturing
capacity in Mainland China.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. lIts registered office is situated at Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda.
The Company has its primary listing on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 709).

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in million of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million)
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on March 28, 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out
below:

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The financial statements are prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of derivative financial instruments at fair
value.

(@

Br 35 R M A

December 31, 2007
—EELFE+ - F=+—H

—HEH

Giordano International Limited ([ "2 &) & H B A
A (GEIAEE]) R —E%E8E— T\ BRE/EHL
BN T ZEBRR 2 TE@EE D HRIEE Giordano -
Giordano Concepts ~ Giordano Ladies -~ Giordano
Junior } Bluestar Exchange/BSX % @82 (B iR - 2NEE
TR EBIAPEB R BRI ER

ApElB—BREREFMAIOERETAR - Hixf
PWERAIP Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Strest, Hamilton,
HM12, Bermuda ° R ARIMESFRBEBHE X S BR
REIAE—TH LT (RMHASE : 709) o

BRAFRIEERIN A MBHRRNEEIETREM -
HHRAMBRERENR_FTNF=ZA-_+/\RREEFS

FTESHEE

REAEBRTPIRAZ T BT BORRIEMT ¢

mRERE

AP BHRRIRBEBGAMAGRM 2B EM B REE
Al (THKFRS]) ~ A EHERI ([HKAS]) k2ERE - A
MBRERRELKALES  BUTEERTAERA
NEMERR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7% & B A

December 31, 2007
—ETEF+=-A=+—H

2.

(a)

(b)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs and HKASs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in note 4.

The accounting policies and methods of computation
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are consistent with those used in 2006 except for the
adoption of new and revised HKASs and HKFRSs
which are effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2007 as set out in note 2(b) below.

Impact of new and revised HKFRSs and
HKASs

The Group has adopted HKFRS 7 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosures”, and the complementary
Amendment to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements — Capital Disclosures” which introduced
new disclosures relating to financial instruments and
capital management, respectively. The following new
Interpretations are effective on January 1, 2007 but are
not relevant or do not have significant impact to the
Group’s operations:
HK(FRIC) - Int 7 Applying the Restatement
Approach under HKAS
29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies

HK(FRIC) - Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives
HK(IFRIC) — Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and

Impairment

ERAREBEBRAERLB

El

2.
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(b)

(%&)
R EE ()

8RR HKFRS & HKAS REN KRN HEE2ERA—LE
B A  c EERENSEERAREE 2 TR RE
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FREH_TERNFEZMBHRERARAAR

iR &85 2 HKFRS & HKAS
k) B2 488
rE
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BREATE .
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HKAS 29 B sk 2 575 =

HK(IFRIC) @272 7

HK(FRIC) 7% 8 HKFRS 2Ky % [E

HK(FRIC) 2% 9 ENTERARTET AR
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(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impact of new and revised HKFRSs and
HKASs (continued)

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards have been published that are
relevant to the Group’s business and are mandatory
for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2008 or later periods. The Group
has not early adopted the following new standards,
amendments and interpretations for the year ended
December 31, 2007:

HKFRS 8 - Operating Segments (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009).

HKAS 23 (Revised) — Borrowing Costs (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009).

HK (IFRIC) — Int 11 — HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury
Share Transactions (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after March 1, 2007).

HK (IFRIC) - Int 13 - Customer Loyalty Programmes
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after
July 1, 2008).

Apart from certain presentational changes, the
adoption of the above new standards, amendments
and interpretations will have no significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements. The Group will adopt
these new and revised HKFRSs when they become
effective.

2.

(b)

B 35 R M AL

December 31, 2007
—ETEF+-A=1+—H
FESHHE
(&)

i & £185] 2 HKFRS & HKAS

VR & (1)
BAEEEKIEMTLSERAEE —22 ) \F—F—B%
ZHBIR Y R EERA Y ETHIERIMB A2 2 &
TRRBEEET  BAEETRREBE_TTEF T
A=+ — B I FE B R IR B AN % S B 8 AR
REER 2 IsET R

HKFRS 8 -[&& 5 (AT NF—A—Bx &
R FEER) ©
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HK(IFRIC) %% 11 -[HKFRS 2 — £EELBEFERHZ S ]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7% & B A

December 31, 2007
—ETEF+=-A=+—H

2.

(c)

d

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to December 31, 2007.

All material inter-company transactions and balances
within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are dealt with in the consolidated profit
and loss account from or up to the effective dates of
acquisition or disposal.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary
represents the difference between the proceeds of the
sale and the Group’s share of its net assets together
with any goodwill which was not previously charged or
recognized in the consolidated profit and loss account.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the operating results and net assets of
subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company,
directly or indirectly, controls more than 50 percent of
its voting power or issued share capital or controls the
composition of its board of directors or has power to
govern its financial and operating policies.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on

which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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(d

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The
cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value
of the assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair
value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized
directly in the profit and loss account.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries are changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Investments in subsidiaries are carried in the Company’s
balance sheet at cost, less provision for impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and

receivable.

2.

(d)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7% & B A

December 31, 2007
—EE+LE+-A=T—H

2.

(e)

(f)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Jointly controlled companies

A jointly controlled company is an entity in which each
venturer has an interest and of which its financial and
operating policies are under contractual arrangements
jointly controlled by the venturers.

The Group adopts the equity method to account
for the interests in jointly controlled companies.
The consolidated profit and loss account includes
the Group’s share of the results of jointly controlled
companies for the year, and the Group’s balance sheet
includes the Group’s share of net assets of the jointly
controlled companies. When the Group transacts with
its jointly controlled companies, unrealized profits and
losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in jointly controlled companies.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the interests in jointly
controlled companies are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses. The results of jointly controlled
companies are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is a company over which the Group has
significant influence but does not control, generally
accompanying an equity interest of between 20 percent

and 50 percent.

The Group’s share of its associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognized in the profit and loss
account, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in reserves is recognized in reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognize further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.
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(f)

(9)

(h)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Associates (continued)

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the associates. Unrealized losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments
in associates are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of associates are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and
operations engaged in providing products or services
that are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of other business segments. A geographical
segment is engaged in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment that are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those
of segments operating in other economic environments.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s companies are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the company operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 AR MY A

December 31, 2007
—ETEF+=-A=+—H

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the transaction dates. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the profit and loss
account.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
companies (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
balance sheet date;

— income and expenses for each profit and
loss account are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average rate
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case, income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rate
on transaction dates); and

— all resulting exchange differences are
recognized in the exchange reserve.
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(h)

(i)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Group companies (continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign companies, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are taken to exchange reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognized in the profit and loss
account as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is stated at cost and is not amortized.

Buildings, leasehold improvements and other fixed
assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost
represents the purchase price of the asset and other
costs incurred to bring the asset into its existing use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the profit and loss account during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
cost over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

—  Freehold land is not depreciated.
—  Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated

over their estimated useful lives, being no more
than 50 years after the date of completion.

2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7% & B A

December 31, 2007
—ETEF+=-A=+—H

2.

(i)

1)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term
of lease or their estimated useful lives, being no
more than 50 years after the date of completion.

- Plant 5 years

—  Other property and equipment 3 - 5 years

Assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognized in the profit and loss account.

Investment property

An investment property is a property which is held for
long term rental yield or for capital appreciation, or
both.

Investment property comprises buildings held under
finance leases. It is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Cost represents the purchase price of the investment
property and other costs incurred to bring the property
into its existing use. Depreciation of investment property
is calculated to write off its cost over the unexpired

period of the lease.
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1)

(k)

U]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment property (continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the profit and loss account during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortization, which are at least tested annually for
impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets that
are subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value-in-
use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest level for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units).

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and is arrived at as follows:

() Raw materials and purchased goods - invoiced
prices plus procurement costs;

(i)  Work in progress and finished goods — cost of
direct materials, direct labor and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads, excluding
borrowing costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7% & B A

December 31, 2007
—ETEF+=-A=+—H

2.

U]

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Inventories (continued)

Net realizable value is the estimated price at which
inventories can be sold in the normal course of
business after allowing for the costs of realization and,
where appropriate, the cost of conversion from their
existing state to a finished condition.

(m) Trade and other receivables

(n)

(o)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost less provision for impairment. A
provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of receivables. The
amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognized
in the profit and loss account.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts
are shown within bank loans in current liabilities on the
balance sheet.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair
value and are subsequently stated at amortized cost

unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.
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(p)

(a)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the profit and loss
account in the period in which they are incurred,
except to the extent that they are capitalized as being
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using liability
method, on temporary differences between the tax
base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the financial statements. Taxation rates enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date are
used to determine deferred taxation.

Deferred tax assets generated from taxable losses are
not recognized unless it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized.

Deferred taxation is provided on the temporary
differences arising on investment in subsidiaries, jointly
controlled companies and associates, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled by the parent company and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 AR MY A

December 31, 2007
—EE+LE+-A=T—8

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r) Employee benefits

(i)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Pension obligations

Except for the pension scheme arrangements in
Taiwan, the Group operates defined contributions
schemes and, if applicable, participates in central
defined contribution provident fund schemes for
all qualified employees. The assets of the said
schemes are held by independently administered
funds separated from those of the Group.
Contributions to these schemes are made by both
the employers and employees at rates up to 20
percent on the employees’ salaries.

The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution plans and mandatory provident
fund scheme are expensed as incurred and, if
applicable, are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme or the
plan prior to vesting fully in the contributions. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been made.

The branches of wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Group in Taiwan have a defined benefit scheme
(“Old Scheme”) governed by the Labor Standard
Law and a defined contribution scheme (“New
Scheme”) governed by the Labor Pension Act
which became effective on July 1, 2005.

Under the Old Scheme, the Group has an
obligation to ensure that there are sufficient funds
in the scheme to pay the benefits earned for the
service years of all employees before the New
Scheme was effective and the subsequent service
years of employees who chose to continue to
participate in the Old Scheme. The branches
currently contribute at two percent of the total
salaries of participating employees as determined
and approved by the relevant government
authorities. The assets of the Old Scheme are
invested by the Central Trust of China.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Pension obligations (continued)

Under the New Scheme, the branches contribute
each month at six percent of the salary of
employees who choose to participate in the New
Scheme into individual pension accounts at the
Bureau of Labor Insurance.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognized as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted, excluding the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable. At each balance sheet date,
the Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to become exercisable.
It recognizes the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the profit and loss account,
and a corresponding adjustment to equity over the
remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when
the options are exercised.

(s) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0 7% 8 & B

December 31, 2007
—ETEF+=-A=+—H

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2. FEETHE
(#&)
(t) Revenue recognition (®)

I‘I&AEWI&\

WA B IEEE f & IR 38 & ) X FEFRIE BT - @A
NRREREEAEE - WARERIAT

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sales of goods
and services, net of value-added tax, rebates return
and discounts and after eliminating sales within the
Group. Revenue is recognized as follows:

(i) Sales of goods - wholesale () EmHEE—#z
Sales of goods are recognized when products Em s HERmTERNETRER  MEFPDENZ
are delivered to the customer, the customer has B kA BRERGIAD A R T WEIR R -

accepted the products and collectibility of the
related receivables is reasonably assured.

(ii) Sales of goods - retail (i) ERHEE—=E

Sales of goods are recognized when products are
sold to the customer. Retail sales are usually in
cash or by credit card. The recorded revenue is
the gross amount of sales, before netting off credit

EmZHERHEERTEPERR - TEHERT
MRS ERREE  Micskc WaR/HERRE B
PARIVBZZHENNERRER  LEEREREE
7 SRR

card fees payable for the transactions. Such fees
are included in distribution costs.

R#HE

(iii) Sales of services (iii)
Sales of services are recognized in the accounting AR5 S E IR ARTS R 2 & 5T ERfA N 3R
period in which the services are rendered.

(iv) Interest income (iv) FIEUWA

FEMWARBERARER 2 A BRI -

L1157 PR B PR R A BRRR ©

Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion 1B
basis using the effective interest method, taking
into account the principal amount outstanding and

the interest rates applicable.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED & ) B A R & 7
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(u)

(v)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
(v) Royalty income

Royalty income is recognized on an accrual basis
in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

(vi) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to
receive payment is established.

Derivative financial instruments

Certain derivatives, including forward foreign exchange
contracts, which do not qualify for hedge accounting,
are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and subsequently
re-measured at their fair value. Changes in fair value of
the derivatives are recognized immediately in the profit
and loss account.

Leases (as the lessee)
(i) Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Finance leases
are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the
lower of the fair value of the leased property and
the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, is included in current and non-current
borrowings. The interest element of the finance
cost is recognized in the profit and loss account
over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7% & B A

December 31, 2007
—ETEF+=-A=+—H

2.

(v)

(w)

(x)

(a)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (as the lessee) (continued)
(ii) Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets remain with the leasing
company are accounted for as operating leases.
Rental payments applicable to such operating
leases are charged to the profit and loss account
on the straight-line basis over the lease periods.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognized as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognized because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

With the exception of a contingent liability acquired
as part of a business combination which is initially
recognized at fair value (provided that the fair value can
be reasonably measured) in accordance with note 2(d),
a contingent liability is not recognized but is disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements. When a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, they will then be recognized as a provision.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities exposed it mainly to currency risk
and credit risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme seeks to minimize potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses
derivative financial instruments to manage certain risk
exposure when necessary.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from commercial
transactions, recognized assets and liabilities and
net investments in foreign operations.

As at the year end, the foreign exchange risk of
the Group arising from commercial transactions,
recognized assets and liabilities is considered
to be insignificant. This is due to the Group’s
transactions being generally denominated in the
functional currencies of the respective group
entities, while balances denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entity are generally settled promptly leaving
minimal outstanding foreign currency position as at
the balance sheet date.

To manage foreign exchange risk arising from
commercial transactions, recognized assets and
liabilities, companies in the Group may use forward
foreign exchange contracts when major fluctuation
in the relevant foreign currency is anticipated.

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed to
foreign currency translation risk. Currency exposure
arising from the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operation such as Japan is managed partially
through borrowings denominated in their relevant
foreign currencies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 AR MY A

December 31, 2007

—ETEF+=-A=+—H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(ii) Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and
other receivables, rental deposits and amounts due
from related parties. The carrying amounts of these
balances represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets. As at
December 31, 2007, all the bank deposits are
placed in the high quality financial institutions
without significant credit risk.

The table below shows the deposit balances with
banks of various rating as at December 31, 2007
and 2006. Management does not expect any
losses from non-performance by these banks.

The Group will limit the amount of credit exposure
to place deposits in reputable financial institutions
with credit rating of B+ or above only.

(a)

Bt i R b B 12
(%)

P EREE (&)

(ii)

FERR

AEEZEERRIZRERASMREFEY - BK
m&ﬁfﬂzﬁ%ﬂ&m CHERS - REREBA LR

c RFHEBRLEEERARENERMEEE SN
=®EERR R-_ZETLF+_A=1—8 A
fEﬁﬁmi’Jfﬁ/\%’%{ﬁﬁkﬁ%ﬁ Y EEREERR -

TRENIR -_ZFZLF T _A=+—HARR-ZTEX
F+ A=+ BEFRTRF R RITFREELR
EEERPIERZFRITTIEAOMELEMEE -

AEERRHEERR  SIFTRERARBEEFR
B+ %&QLAJ:Z%?I%M%T%ZBZ% °

Group

£
(In HK$ millions) (KB BB TREN) 2007 2006
Counterpart HESP:]
Banks with A+ rating B A+ 2 BT 227 418
Banks with A or A- rating FEARA s A- ZERTT 259 200
Banks with B+ rating TFHB+ 2 RTT 33 48

519 666

The source of current credit rating is from Standard &
Poor.
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El

HEIEERREIREERE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0% & M

December 31, 2007
—ETEF+-A=1+—H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. iIEKRER
(continued) (&)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (@ BEEBEEE (E)
(i) Credit risk (continued) i) =E&E (&)
Retail sales are usually made in cash, via popular TEHE—REBRES TNREBAFRHEEELDH
credit cards or through reputable and dispersed ZBEERRNR - AEBEREFER T EERE 2
department stores. The Group’s credit sales BRPETEEHE  EEHARNTRA -

are only made to wholesale customers with an
appropriate credit history and on credit terms
within 60 days.

The table below shows the major types of debtors TREVWARZEZHF+ A =1+—"HEZEETF
as at December 31, 2007 and 20086. +ZA=+—BZEXBEHA -

Group

58
(In HK$ millions) (BB GETRENRN) 2007 2006
Counterpart HESYal
Landlords ¥* 277 263
Department stores BERA 158 144
Multinational companies iz EI/N] 63 40
Related parties (note 33) RaEE A+ (BF7E33) 29 39
Credit card receivables s B RER 12 15

539 501

These counterparts have no default history in ST B AN EZEIRGE - AEEIFER %
the past. The Group holds a bank guarantee THEZRITEREELT =8 (ZET R FE:
of HK$73 million (2006: HK$73 million) from a BELCT=E87T) °
landlord.
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GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by
maintaining sufficient banking facilities and cash
and cash equivalents, which is generated from the
operating cash flow and financing cash flow.

The table below analyzes the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0 7% 8 & B

December 31, 2007
—ETEF+=-A=+—H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

(a)

Bt i R b B 12
(%)

P EREE (&)

(i) FRENE ZE R

AEEEBRFTMRITRENRKERLERGRE
Ek@ERERENRS LIRS EEY  REFIRBE
ZER

TEREXGEEAZAVZHARTHRENAEH
ZHBAEEMEAB AN 22T - RPABRESER
REHNRFTRAERE -

Between

Within 1 and
1 year 3 years Total
(In HK$ millions) (WEEBETRELL) - -Z=F ag
Trade payables IR 300 - 300
Accruals and other payables [ BRREMERR 343 3 346
Bank loans RITER 97 - 97
At December 31, 2007 R-ZEtE+-B=+-H 740 3 743
Trade payables IR 292 - 292
Accruals and other payables [ BRREMERR 297 10 307
Bank loans RITER 58 - 58
At December 31, 2006 R=22XE+=A=t-H 647 10 657
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0% & M

December 31, 2007
—ETEF+-A=1+—H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. BiIEKRERE
(continued) (48)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (@ HEREE (&)
(iv) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk vy BERERAFENRER
Except for the short-term bank borrowings of BRIZERFEGO 2 BN (ZEERF 5O —
HK$96 million (2006: HK$58 million) held at B st R EHRTEERE LT REET(ZE
effective interest rate of 2.6 percent (2006: 1.7 2/_\¢ BB RATNABEET) N AEBWESE KRG
percent); the Group has no significant interest- B & BE - LUFB BRI B RBRTEESAEER
bearing liabilities. The short-term bank borrowings %ﬂ‘iﬁimiﬂ$ﬂ[ﬂ CEZERREAER 2 FEW
at floating rate expose the Group to cash flow TEKX - AKEBZWARKZLEReRERE EAET
interest rate risk which is insignificant to the Group. SR REEFE - TIRBIEHANK B R R EF SN EY
The Group’s income and operating cash flows are TERK -

substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. Management does not anticipate
significant impact resulted from the changes in
interest rates.
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December 31, 2007
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GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern as well as maximizing returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group has a low gearing ratio of 5.0 percent (2006:
2.9 percent). In order to improve the capital structure,
the Group may raise long term debts, adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders and issue new shares.

The table below analyzes the Group’s capital structure.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. BiIEKRERE
(continued) (#&)
(b) Capital risk management (b) EXREHEEK
The Group’s objectives on managing capital are to AEENEAEERZ  RREAEESELSE LS

AR REREHEAC RN EMERTE AR

AEFEZERAGBHEERANZE (ZTTXRF: BHLZ
—EHN) REBICEAER  ARBEAEEMEEE
§ - BELRNTERRORSESE  MRRBEEARRET
FAS

TRABAREZENEEIN -

Group
£H
(In HK$ millions) (B EETAEN) 2007 2006
Total equity T = 1B R 2,026 2,090

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a solid base
to support the operations and development of its
business in the long term. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006.

ERAREBEBRAERLB
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

(i) Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in
numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgment is
required in determining the worldwide provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognizes liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

(ii) Assessment of impairment of non-current
assets

The Group conducts impairment reviews of non-
current assets that are subject to depreciation
and amortization whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. Management assesses
the recoverable amount of each non-current asset
based on its value in use or on its net selling price
(by reference to market prices), depending upon
the anticipated future plans for the assets. These
calculations require the use of judgments and
estimates.

BB R M A

December 31, 2007
—ETEF+-A=1+—H

4. EEEFHETR

# iR

et RAE 2 FHES B EETT - WABTERLRIE
MERERER  BEAEBNBATHRKEHNEGE
B -

EEETHERTR
EE

AREBHARRIELEET REBR - S22 FeHEFER LB
AR ERAERER o ATl 2 RRRE R
EEResIHER TEAMRFEREHEEMBEZ REEE
BEXHE -

0 FrEst

AEEBRZERIERGANEH - ERAEHE
ERRBEERFRIEHAEREMNHE - NAEER
BRETERZRERTERRNALR S RE - K&
BRIEE S A B HEEEINAR 2 T MR AR
BEITHEZAE - W FFRZ KEBHERELY]
TR &R TR BREZERZEFELETE 2B
WP H SR T TR -

@ FEFRBEERE

BEAFHEKBACEBBTAFTE REHZ IR
BEEZREERENAIREE  KAEEBHZEE
EETRERHN EEEFESERBEEZ TR
TEE - DRERARRERZEEE LS REE
EREEXHEEEFE(2RMSER) #1714 -
ZERTEAG B KA
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GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

AND JUDGMENTS (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(iii) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in
order to determine the amount of depreciation
to be recorded during any reporting period. The
useful lives are based on the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets. The depreciation
for future periods is adjusted if there are material
changes from previous estimates.

(iv) Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated
selling prices in the ordinary course of business
less estimated selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in economic conditions in places where
the Group operates and changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to changes in
market conditions. Management reassesses these
estimates at each balance sheet date.

ERAREBEBRAERLB
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December 31, 2007
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

4. EEEFMAETR
H (%)

EEETHERTR
B (&)

(i)

(iv)

e

W BB RREDREBEHERFRAEREN
E - AEETHENZEEE 2 RHEAFHUEE
REMREHAZIFTESHE - ERFHRIRIBEAEE
BB EEZBEERMERE - MBEZAEA
BEANE  RIPEERRARZFTEL

FEAUSRFE

T AT BB EIR B R R A R A R
% - AREETRERIT R ROB I & FLER 20
BATELE  ABBR AT AT L F AR AT 5 B2 A PR
RERBBLRES IR RS HTREED ALY
PRI TR EAES - ERER S H A B
FHEIL B A -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TURNOVER, OTHER INCOME AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The principal business of the Group is retail and
distribution of casual apparel and accessories under
Giordano, Giordano Concepts, Giordano Ladies,
Giordano Junior and Bluestar Exchange/BSX brands.
The Group also carries on garment trading and
manufacturing operation, supporting the Group’s retail
business and supplying products to third parties.

Turnover and other income recognized during the year are
as follows:

BB R M A

December 31, 2007

—ZEZEt+tF+ZAR=+—H
EXE - HBRARDH
i~
REEXEXEBRTE R HEHE Giordano - Giordano
Concepts * Giordano Ladies + Giordano Juniorf
Bluestar Exchange/BSX &Mk 7 @R NMECHE R - K&
ENRRSEENKES REERR  UWHEEEZTEXRK
TR WRAREEAINZ ATHEER °

REFOHERBZLEXBREMBBALT

Group
£
(In HK$ millions) (WEEEETRERL) 2006
Turnover EEE
Sales revenue from retail and distribution operation TERDBEB ZHERA 4,019
Sales revenue from garment trading and manufacturing RREGREEEK
operation HEKA 353
4,372
Other income Hf WA
Interest income FEHRA 19
Commission income ik ON 7
Rental income HelA 31
Royalty income BT ERA 19
Net exchange gain [ 5 U5 5 19
Other income HigA 19

114
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December 31, 2007
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5. TURNOVER, OTHER INCOME AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(a) Primary reporting format - business segments

Segment assets consist of primarily property, plant and equipment, inventories, receivables and operating cash
attributable to individual business segment. They exclude unallocated corporate assets.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. They exclude items such as taxation and unallocated corporate

borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment as set out in note 14.

Inter-segment sales were conducted in the normal course of business at prices and terms comparable to the other third

party customers of the Group.

Garment
Retail and trading and
distribution  manufacturing
2ER BEKEZ5K  Eliminations Group
PHEH HEEH B8 58
(In HK$ millions) (WEEBEETREN) 2007 2007 2007 2007
Turnover BEE
External sales HIMEE 4,420 530 -
Inter-segment sales DHEEE - 406 (406)
4,420 936 (406) 4,950
Segment results THEE
Operating profit LR 384 - - 384
Finance expense HEEH (2
Share of profit of jointly controlled companies  JE{& 3t [ | 2 7% 7 13 10 23
Share of profit of an associate EE—BEDFER 12 - 12
Profit before taxation BHRAEF 417
Taxation WA (113)
Profit after taxation BHEEH 304
Minority interests YRR ER (9)
Profit attributable to shareholders R E T 295
Assets BE
Segment assets NHEE 1,945 462 2,407
Interest in jointly controlled companies LERHARER 342 33 375
Interest in an associate —BEnaER 43 - 43
Unallocated corporate assets RAUSEZEE 110
Total assets BEAH 2,935
Liabilities =4
Segment liabilities AHaE 453 186 639
Unallocated corporate liabilities KASEZAE 270
Total liabilities RfERE 909
Other information HitEH
Capital expenditure (note 14) BERET (HF14) 126 16 142
Depreciation (note 6) & (H6) 103 15 118
Impairment of property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - #ERREHE
(note 6) (MizEe) 3 - 3
Amortization of leasehold land AEL BN FAEH
prepayments (note 6) (FizE6) 9 - 9

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED & ) B A R & 7
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EEE HERARSBES (F)
EBRETS - £BAH

g;ééix BEME #ENEE FE EEBESBRRERKFEREERS - DHEELTNEERAISERZEE
3 A
DHBERELERE - DHBEL TERBERNKREBERRAIDEZEXER -

WNHFE14PTE - BARX BREYE - BBEMRBZIRE

DEFEEERT ERERBENET  RZIERLKERTHEEEME=ER AL -
Garment
Retail and trading and
distribution  manufacturing
TER KREHR Eliminations Group
DEER BEEHK b &8
(In HK$ millions) (LBEEBEETREN) 2006 2006 2006 2006
Turnover EXH
External sales HIMEE 4,019 353 -
Inter-segment sales DEREEE - 603 (603)
4,019 956 (603) 4,372
Segment results ABEE
Operating profit R 334 42 - 376
Finance expense HEER 1
Share of profit of jointly controlled companies ~ Ef5 3 HT“%JR & 7l - 8 8
Share of profit of an associate BB D AEF 8 - 8
Profit before taxation BR 70 A A 391
Taxation i (173)
Profit after taxation Ryl 218
Minority interests DERFER (13)
Profit attributable to shareholders REEL R 205
Assets BE
Segment assets PHEE 1,877 408 2,285
Interest in jointly controlled companies HEEHAAER 332 26 358
Interest in an associate —BENRES 32 - 32
Unallocated corporate assets KAREEE 309
Total assets BELH 2,984
Liabilities =15
Segment liabilities PHaE 394 205 599
Unallocated corporate liabilities ﬂi PEZEE 295
Total liabilities BEAR 894
Other information BHitgR
Capital expenditure (note 14) BRRZ (f14) 96 15 111
Depreciation (note 6) & (H6) 98 12 110
Amortization of leasehold land METHERFEE
prepayments (note 6) GEXY 9 - 9
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December 31, 2007
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5.

(b)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

TURNOVER, OTHER INCOME AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Secondary reporting format - geographical
segments

Turnover is allocated based on the location of
customers. Total assets and capital expenditure are
allocated based on the location of those assets.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
turnover, capital expenditure and total assets by
geographical locations.

(b)

EEE . HHWARSBER

(&)

RERERN - wEDH

LSEBDREEFPAEMOE - BERBRBEAFRAITIR
BREEEMEMOR -

/I
o

Tiﬁ#&$%@%¥%‘ﬁ C BARRAX REEBBRIE N
ﬁ_j\‘

Capital Total

Turnover expenditure assets

EEE BXR% EE4E

(In HK$ millions) (NEEEETREN) 2007 2007 2007
Mainland China hE AR 1,465 4 1,087
Hong Kong B 963 20 608
Taiwan A& 677 27 231
Singapore Mg 409 15 122
Australia B 247 13 65
Middle East mE 203 - -
Korea EH 183 - -
Japan BA 93 1 23
Others Aty 710 25 343
4,950 142 2,479

Interest in jointly controlled companies HAEHAFARES 375
Interest in an associate —BENAER 43
Unallocated corporate assets RUNEZEE 38
Total assets BELE 2,935
Capital Total

Turnover expenditure assets

BEE EXRER EEES

(In HK$ millions) (LEEEETAEN) 2006 2006 2006
Mainland China PN 1,170 31 893
Hong Kong BA 925 19 858
Taiwan qE 696 18 264
Singapore g 409 12 122
Australia ZM 238 16 84
Korea £ 166 - -
Middle East FR 142 - -
Japan BA 129 1 43
Others At 497 14 296
4,372 111 2,560

Interest in jointly controlled companies HEZH D AR 358
Interest in an associate —BENAER 32
Unallocated corporate assets KA ZEE 34
Total assets BELE 2,984

ERAREBEBRAERLB
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December 31, 2007
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OPERATING PROFIT 6. K&EnHN
Group
£8
(In HK$ millions) (UEEEETREN) 2007 2006
The operating profit is stated after charging: REGFNEMBRTHEE
Amortization of leasehold land prepayments HEL BN KBS E 9 9
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AT EN & 4 3
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M WEREEINE 116 108
Depreciation of investment property BEWMERE 2 2
Impairment of property, plant and equipment W MERREAE 3 -
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEDE - %ﬁ‘%& St FEE 3 3
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings THREF I EEREER
- minimum lease payments - HEHEIH 619 588
- contingent rent - ZAHEEER 193 180
Provision for obsolete stock and stock written off BREF B EERIFEME 23 23
Staff costs (note 8) BIAA (FI5E8) 754 656
FINANCE EXPENSE 7. MEEH
Group
£
(In HK$ millions) (LB BEETREN) 2007 2006
Interest on bank loans RITENF B 2 1
STAFF COSTS 8. EIMXK
Group
£8
(In HK$ millions) (NEEEETREN) 2007 2006
Salaries and wages (including directors’ emoluments) 5eRhIB(BREEHS) 699 609
Share option expense BhEER 1 1
Pension cost — defined contribution plans BRE - REERETE 54 46
754 656

During the year, no unvested benefits were utilized by
the Group to reduce the level of contributions (2006:
HK$0.1 million). As at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
no unvested benefits were available to be utilized in the
future years.

KFEERN > AEBRAERREEDNZEHAI(ZZEER
FBELEL) WBERFKE R_ZEZLFR-F
ZRFFTZA=+—8 ' BB HKRFFERZREER

#3% -

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 & #

93



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0 7% 8 & B

December 31, 2007
—ETEF+=-A=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 9. EEREHREEAE
EMOLUMENTS i &

@ EEME

(a) Directors’ emoluments

BE_ZTTLHF T A=+ RHLEFERZESTNNEHF

The emolument of every director for the year ended

94

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

December 31, 2007 is set out below:

Fa

Employer’s

contribution

to pension

Other schemes
Fees Salaries Bonuses benefits’ EXE#4E  Total
Name of Directors BEEfg He E B Etzg s &3
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HKS$'000 HK$'000

2007
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter ElJEil - - 2,618 10,344 1,386 12 14,360
FUNG Wing Cheong, Charles ke - 1,919 - 104 50 2,073
MAH Chuck On, Bernard EN% - 2,132 1,500 218 12 3,862
AU Man Chu, Milton * B 275 - - - - 275
Barry John BUTTIFANT * BiEA 275 - - - - 275
KWONG Ki Chi * BHEF 275 - - - - 275
LEE Peng Fei, Allen * FER 275 - - - - 275
1,100 6,669 11,844 1,708 74 21,395
2006

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter 2 - 2,562 9,515 1,076 12 13,165
FUNG Wing Cheong, Charles ke - 1,902 - 93 45 2,040
MAH Chuck On, Bernard ENZ - 2,132 500 290 12 2934
AU Man Chu, Milton * B 275 - - - - 275
Barry John BUTTIFANT * 2N 275 - - - - 275
KWONG Ki Chi * BEF 138 - - - - 138
LEE Peng Fei, Allen * TR 275 - - - - 275
963 6,596 10,015 1,459 69 19,102

* Independent non-executive directors

#

Other benefits include insurance premium, housing and tax allowances

ERAREBEBRAERLB
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 9. ESREREEAE
EMOLUMENTS (continued) < (&)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) () =E=EE (&)
The aggregate amount of emoluments payable to MRAREERN @ MAATIESINZMEE8mmT :

directors of the Company during the year is as follows:

(In HK$ millions) (BB EE TREN) 2006
Fees e 1
Other emoluments: Hi e -

Basic salaries, housing allowances, AEXFHE  BERL -

other allowances and benefits in kind E bR R EYKE 8
Bonuses B4 10
Pension contributions RRE R -

19
(b) Five highest paid individuals b) ANESHEE

The five individuals whose emoluments were the RAFER  AEBAUGSHTREFBE=MN (ZEF
highest in the Group for the year include three (2006: NEFEZU)EE HeZ2FBER EXHE - T4
three) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the TR (ZEZRF : M) &aHBEMeRENT -

analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to
the remaining two (2006: two) individuals during the
year are as follows:

(In HK$ millions) (KB FETREN) 2006

Basic salaries, housing allowances, EXFHE  FEEL -
other allowances and benefits in kind EA 2B R EY R G 3
Bonuses TE4T -
Pension contributions BIREHR -
3
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9.

(b)

10.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Five highest paid individuals (continued)

The emoluments of the remaining highest paid
individuals fell within the following bands:

9. EENREREEAEMS

(%)

b EUKRSHFHE ()

BT REFBRERMSAREENT

Number of individuals

Emolument bands N
i < 48 5l 2006
HK$
B
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 2
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 -
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 -
TAXATION 10. B8
The charge for taxation in the consolidated profit and REBRRACHEBESINS
loss account represents:
Group
£E

(In HK$ millions) (WEEEETREN) 2006
Income tax FEHE
Current income tax AEEMEHE

- Hong Kong profits tax - BEFEH 26

- Overseas taxation - BIMEIE 74

- Withholding tax on distribution from subsidiaries - WBARR—£REG QA

and a jointly controlled company 2D BEMHRE 5

Under provision in previous year PEFEEETR

- Overseas taxation - BINPEIR 73

178

Deferred tax EEHE
Relating to the origination and reversal of EREEHEE T

temporary differences & c (9)
Effect of changes in tax rate MENE I HE -
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ )
Taxation charge BIEZ M 173

E A REKBAERAL
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10. TAXATION (continued)

Reconciliation of the Group’s profit before taxation at
the tax rate of Hong Kong to the taxation charge is as

December 31, 2007
—EELFE+ - F=+—H

10 ﬁIE (mﬁ)

REB 2 BIAT HEARRBARNBR E M E 2 BB A
MBIR 2 FEIRLAT

follows:
Group
£E
(In HK$ millions) (LB BETRER) 2007 2006
Profit before taxation (before share of profit of jointly BRERDEF (TR EEE L REH A
controlled companies and an associate) k& RTRH) 382 375
Calculated at a taxation rate of 17.5% % %FW AZttER
(2006: 17.5%) (ZZZRF B2 THER)FHE 67 66
Effect of different tax rates in other countries ﬁﬂl?fx?ﬂﬁ?z%é 29 13
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose TAMB 2 Z M 8 25
Deferred tax assets not recognized AERZEEHEELE 10 3
Income not subject to tax EEE S N (14) (17)
Utilization of previously unrecognized tax losses FREIAEER LA (1) -
Withholding tax nEH®E 13 10
Under provision in previous year BEFEEBERR - 73
Effect of changes in tax rates BERFE 1 -
Taxation charge BIEL 113 173
The provision for taxation of the Company and its Hong ARBIREBEMNB AR ZHIBEEZRBEATERES

Kong subsidiaries is calculated by applying the current
rate of taxation of 17.5 percent (2006: 17.5 percent) to
the estimated assessable profits earned in or derived
from Hong Kong during the year.

Taxation on the profits of other subsidiaries operating
overseas is calculated at the rates applicable in the
respective jurisdictions.

In 2006, the Guangzhou Municipal Office of the State
Administration of Taxation (the “SAT Guangzhou Office”)
of the People’s Republic of China conducted a review
of the Group’s transfer pricing policy in Mainland
China for the past years since 1996, focusing primarily
on royalties. As a consequence of this review, the
SAT Guangzhou Office made a demand for payment
of approximately RMB66 million additional Foreign
Enterprise Income Tax, which the Group has recognized
as a tax provision in 2006 and paid in 2007.

ﬁmﬁﬁ@%%zm%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%
EE(—? 7/\45'E E Z—f—t!lﬁﬁ)

BAZ T

E AR IMEE 2 BB A
R BE M

Az MBHRERRBERANE R

RITZEXRF hEARANBEEMNTREARGER ([ E
MTEBEB]) A EBEPBEABEREANE — LR ERE
CEERTETHREAEZAST  BHBNIETREA - 1B
BEZAS AR - BMNTENBE KRS EEREING
BECEMIINEDEMEROARB AT AAEET - A
SETR _ZTRFELES IREBHIN _TTLF
Bt e
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December 31, 2007
—ETEF+=-A=+—H

11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO 11. REREL
SHAREHOLDERS & A

The Group’s consolidated profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company of HK$295 million (2006:
HK$205 million) includes a profit of HK$61 million
(2006: HK$247 million) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

BRREGEBzGZREMNAEE _BhLTHAST (=%
ERFBE_ETHAET)  BREAQAMBEHRR
NEFAZBREEEMN/EE ST -—AET(ZZEER
FAB _ROTLAET) -

12. DIVIDENDS 12. 5 B
(a) Dividends attributable to the year: (@) XEEREWMT :
(In HK$ millions) (NEBEETREN) 2007 2006
Interim dividend declared and BEEMREIRE 2FERKE
paid of 4.5 HK cents FREEIHE AL
(2006: 4.5 HK cents) per share (ZEERF  SRBB I AN) 67 67
Special interim dividend declared and EEMREIRE ZERHHRE
paid of 2.0 HK cents SR (L
(2006: 2.0 HK cents) per share (ZZTERF BB ) 30 30
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, gy 97
Final dividend proposed REEAREZCREKE
after the balance sheet date of 5.0 HK cents FRB® R
(2006: 5.0 HK cents) per share (ZEERF  FREBERN) 75 75
Special final dividend proposed REERERER 2FRIRERE
after the balance sheet date of 10.0 HK cents BREE—A
(2006: 15.0 HK cents) per share (ZZEZRF : kBB —ARW) 149 223
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, Ce8N 298
321 395

R-ZBZENF=ZA-TN\BETZEFZEER L EFE
FRBERARBRRARE D H AEBREBE DI FEE
— A WERKEKSEEEE AL EERSAE -

At the board meeting held on March 28, 2008, the
directors proposed final and special final dividends of
5.0 HK cents and 10.0 HK cents per share respectively.
These proposed dividends have not been recognized as
a liability at the balance sheet date.
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12.

(b)

13.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIVIDENDS (continued)

Dividends attributable to the previous year,
approved and paid during the year:

12

(b)

B 35 R M AL

December 31, 2007
t&+=-A=+—8

—_

BB (&)

%EAJ: FE IRAFERBBREXTH

(In HK$ millions) (LEEEETREN) 2007 2006
2006 final dividend approved and EHfERRE S FRBKS

paid of 5.0 HK cents FRAE R

(2005: 5.0 HK cents) per share (ZZTRF  GRBERI) 75 75
2006 special final dividend approved and BHERRE _SENFRHAIRHERE

paid of 15.0 HK cents BREE-—ARI

(2005: 15.0 HK cents) per share (ZZ2Z1% : SREE—ARI) 223 223

298 298

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per
share are based on the consolidated profit attributable
to shareholders for the year of HK$295 million
(2006: HK$205 million).

The basic earnings per share is based on the weighted
average of 1,491,322,447 shares (2006: 1,490,228,540
shares) in issue during the year.

The diluted earnings per share is based on
1,491,322,447 shares (2006: 1,490,228,540 shares)
which is the weighted average number of shares in
issue during the year plus the weighted average of
787,037 shares (2006: 1,602,321 shares) deemed to
be issued if all outstanding share options granted under
the share option scheme of the Company had been
exercised.

13.

BEREFN

5 1A T T I O (R R R 2 P
—EATEAERR(CTEAF BB _BTHASR)
S -

H§§$E’ﬂ7ﬂf€$¢ﬁWﬁﬁéﬁﬁiﬁzmﬁéiﬁi’ﬂﬁﬁ%{
+PIM j-IJ:F E + :FIE‘EE+‘{:HX<—? ?/\
FrHOABATE=+Z Fﬁ;)\?ﬁﬁ@ﬂ%ﬁ)u‘l‘ﬁ

FREBRMNDETONEAT —B=1T_8
“THEAETER(ZFZTRF: TEEATE -+
BNATREME+R) - ARFADHETRND Z NEF K
B I ERBRIBADRBBEST &R 2B RITRE
PR BATEMBEIT 2B 2 PR BEE+N\ELT
E=+ER(ZEERF: —BATEZE-_T=Z=_1T—
PO EE -
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December 31, 2007
—ETEF+=-A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. 9% - WBERRE

Group £5
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture
Freehold & office
land & equipment
buildings HENE
KRERE #5 Motor
Z1#  Buildings  Plant MRk  vehicles Total
(In HK$ millons) (LR EETAEN) REP BT HE BAERE RE  AF
Cost BAE
At January 1, 2007 RZZZ+E—A—H 37 24 88 722 19 890
Translation difference BEZS - - 2 32 1 35
Additions NE 5 - 9 124 4 142
Disposals W& - - 1) (34) @ @
At December 31, 2007 S e = 42 24 98 844 22 1,030
Accumulated depreciation 2RITE
and impairment RAE
At January 1, 2007 RZZ2+F-A—H 7 1 69 538 14 629
Translation difference HEESD - - 1 24 1 2
Charge for the year TEEHE - 1 6 107 2 116
Impairment pERI - - - 3 - 3
Disposals e - - - (29) 2 ©)
At December 31, 2007 RZEELEF-A=1—H 7 2 76 643 15 743
Net book value at R-EEtE+-A=1-H
December 31, 2007 ZEERE 35 22 22 201 7 27
Impairment had been charged for the year ended BMECRZZTLFT A=+ —HUEFEZH - RESHE
December 31, 2007. The impairment charge was the ﬁfﬂf%%%ﬂk BRI A E R 2 BRFER L E AT U el

100 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

amount by which the carrying amount of the leasehold
improvements, furniture and office equipment exceeded
its recoverable amount which was determined based
on the value-in-use of the relevant assets estimated by
management as at December 31, 2007.

ERAREBEBRAERLB
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0% & M

December 31, 2007
—ETEF+-A=1+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. 9% - WBERRE

(continued) (&)
Group £E
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture
Freehold & office
land & equipment
buildings HENE
KAEE LN Motor
21 Buldings  Plant &@&  vehicles  Total
(In HK$ millions) (LU BETAEN) RETF BT Hes PLERE RE AR
Cost BAE
At January 1, 2006 RZZEE F—-A—H 37 24 83 680 19 843
Translation difference BHEZR - - - 19 1 20
Additions NE - - 5 105 1 1M
Disposals HE - - - (82) @ (84
At December 31, 2006 RZEERF+ZA=1—A 37 24 88 722 19 890
Accumulated depreciation 2REITE
At January 1, 2006 R-EE F-A—H 6 - 65 502 14 587
Translation difference BhEE®D - - - 14 - 14
Charge for the year TEEFE 1 1 4 100 2 108
Disposals HE - - - (78) (2 (80)
At December 31, 2006 RZEERE+=A=1+—8 7 1 69 538 14 629
Net book value at RZEZEXE+-A=1+-H
December 31, 2006 ZEEFE 30 23 19 184 5 261
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 8RR Y

December 31, 2007
—EFE+F+-_A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

(@)
(b)
(©

As at December 31 of 2007 and 2006, no property,
plant and equipment was held under finance lease.

The freehold land and buildings are situated in

Taiwan and Indonesia.

The analysis of the net book value of buildings is

as follows:

14. 9% - B RRE

(%)

@ R_FTLER_FTERF+_A=+—H0 LE
ME - EENRBARERETARE -
(o) XAXREzLMPEBFUREERIRE -

) BFZEmFEIWNLOT :

Group
%B
(In HK$ millions) (LEKEETREN) 2006
In Hong Kong, held on EEERE
- leases of between - TEERTFHEY 19
10 and 50 years
Outside Hong Kong, held on EEBLNEE
- leases of between - TEERTFHEY 1
10 and 50 years
- leases of over 50 years - ZRETERD 3
4
At December 31 W+=-A=+—-8 23

102 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M AL

December 31, 2007
—ETEF+-A=1+—H

14. 9% - HBERKRE

(continued) ()
Company ATE]
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture
& office
equipment
HEYE
Buildings #1{& - R R Total
(In HK$ millions) (KB EHETREN) By MAERE &5t
Cost RA{E
At January 1, 2007 and RZEE+F—HF—HRK
December 31, 2007 ZEE+F+ZA=+—H 11 3 14
Accumulated depreciation E2RnE
At January 1, 2007 RZZEZLF—H—H 1 3 4
Charge for the year REEFE 1 - 1
At December 31, 2007 RZZEZLF+=A=+—H 2 3 5
Net book value at R-ZEZELtF+=-HA=+—H
December 31, 2007 ZREFRE 9 - 9
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture
& office
equipment
HEMZE
Buildings  #{& - R & Total
(In HK$ millions) (LB EETTAEN) BF MAERME I
Cost A E
At January 1, 2006 and RZZEFERF-—HA—BRK
December 31, 2006 —EEXF+-A=1+—H 11 3 14
Accumulated depreciation E2FnE
At January 1, 2006 and RZZEERNF—A—HK
December 31, 2006 —EEXFt+-A=1+—H 1 3 4
Net book value at R-ZBERE+=BA=1+—H
December 31, 2006 ZIREFE 10 - 10
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 AR MY A

December 31, 2007
—ETEF+=-A=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The Group has a property which is held for long-term

15. REME

AEEFH —MEERBEHE -

rental yields.

Group

=4

(In HK$ millions) (BB B ETREN) 2007 2006
Cost RAE
At January 1 and December 31 RTATRERT=A=1—RH 101 101
Accumulated depreciation ES¢ig -
At January 1 Hn—HA—H 15 13
Charge for the year REEWE 2 2
At December 31 RT=A=t—-8 17 15
Net book value at December 31 R+-A=+—-HZEERE 84 86

The fair value of the investment property at December
31, 2007 was assessed by independent professional
qualified valuer, Greater China Appraisal Limited.
Valuation was based on current market value of the
land and on estimate of the replacement cost of
building adjusted for age, condition and functional
obsolescence. The total fair value of the property,
including leasehold land and the building portion,
was HK$158 million as at December 31, 2007 (2006:
HK$148 million). In the profit and loss account, rental
income relating to investment property of HK$10 million
(2006: HK$10 million) was included.

The net book value of the investment property is
analyzed as follows:

ZREMER ST LF+ A=+ —HZRAFEREY
MEEBEEERZETEARDRMGE - HEDREL
WIRAMERETEE RARRLDEZLLERERH
ERZEEEMELGR - R2TTLF T A=+~
B ZYEX(BRESLHEEBTHY) 2BRAFERE
BE—RETNEEST(ZFTRF: B —EHETNA
Bn) GRSXRTCEEZREVEZHSZBAREE
—TEIT(ZZTXRF B —T&T) -

REMEZEIFESNAT

Group
55
(In HK$ millions) (BB B ETREN) 2007 2006
Outside Hong Kong, held on lease EEBUINEE
of between 10 and 50 years +EFEERTFBELY 84 86
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB R M A

December 31, 2007

—EE+LF+ZAR=+—H

16. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 16.ff B D Rl fE =
Company
AT
(In HK$ millions) (BB EETREN) 2007 2006
Unlisted investment (at cost) JEETIRE (KAE) 898 898
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE S B B8 B 508 499 832

17.

As at the balance sheet date of 2007 and 2006,
amounts due from subsidiaries are non-interest bearing,
unsecured and repayable on demand.

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to
the financial statements.

INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
COMPANIES

The following list contains only the particulars of jointly
controlled companies, all of which are unlisted, which
principally affected the results or assets of the Group:

n=

BN
& TN ©

ZTHEN_TEAFHEER  BRUBARFIAS
RRB - EEHRRERE

TEMBRRZFBERNR I ERRMZES4S -

17.4%

42 &~ 8

B

THREFREIBFEAREXENEE ZIF LT ARES
RAZER

Issued and fully paid

Name of Place of share capital
jointly controlled incorporation Percentage of or registered capital
company and operation equity holding BRETRZHHERAE Principal activities
HEEHARER BIRSE DS FERO B LE HEMER TEXH
2007 2006
Giordano Republic of Korea 48.8 49.4 1,025,320 common stock of Retail of apparel and
Corporation RERE WONS5,000 each accessories
Limited* ZZERT=A=TK BETEREK
SREELTEEE TRR REH A
Speedy Garment Hong Kong 49.0 49.0 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each Trading of garments
Manufacturing (Hong Kong) &8 —REREEBE TRk and investment holding
Company Limited* BENRE S RIREER
AERRER (BH)
BB AR
AR ERIREIK Mainland China 49.0 49.0  HK$10,000,000 Manufacturing and
BB AR N BE-TETL trading of apparel
and accessories
BatERHERE
KB B m
Cheong Yiu Hong Kong 49.0 49.0 200,000 ordinary shares of Trading of
Enterprises Limited* /% HK$1 each packaging products
SRGEBRAA “tTER BERENHES

* jointly controlled companies held indirectly

BREEEY T EAK

* BRREZAFREHA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 7% 8 & B

December 31, 2007
—EFE+F+-_A=+—H

17. INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

17. HEEH QT #ER

106 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

COMPANIES (continued)

The Group’s share of the assets, liabilities, results and
commitments of its unlisted jointly controlled companies
are as follows:

(%)

UTRAKEMEZFFRLETAREF QR CEE &
RS VS

(In HK$ millions) (KB GETRENMN)
Current assets MEEE
Current liabilities mEAE
Non-current assets IERBEE
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Share of net assets Frih & = FE
Revenue I =

Expense =]

Profit before taxation B % A i
Taxation sl

Share of profit after taxation FEAG BR T 1% 5 7
Operating lease commitments EERE 7 RE

There are no contingent liabilities and capital
commitments relating to the Group’s interest in the
jointly controlled companies, and the jointly controlled
companies have no contingent liabilities and capital
commitments themselves.

/A REKBAERAL
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B E N EARFEE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0% & M

December 31, 2007
—EZEt+tF+ZAR=+—H

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. — & NAEDR
Group
&£ 5
(In HK$ millions) (BB FETREN) 2006
Unlisted shares (at cost) FEETARD (A AE) 1
Share of post-acquisition profits FFT A U5 B8 1% 0 T 29
Share of post-acquisition reserves Fir i W B8 1% % 1 2
32
The following list contains only the particulars of an TIRBRETEFEREBEEREEZIELTHE QT
associate which is unlisted and principally affected the ZER
results or assets of the Group:
Place of
Name of incorporation Percentage of Issued and fully paid
associate and operation equity holding share capital Principal activities
BENTERE B R Q&3 BFERGEOLE ERTRE2EHERAX TEEHR
2006
Giordano United Arab 20.0 3,000 shares of AED1,000 each Retail of apparel and
Fashions Emirates =ThEekEE accessories
LLCx P hr{A —F R A A RETERE
AT RE BREEANE 2 G5 REH A
* an associate held indirectly * BBREIHBEL ]
The Group’s interest in its unlisted associate is as REERAZIFELTHERAERWT
follows:
(In HK$ millions) (BB FE T RBEN) 2006
Assets BE 43
Liabilities BfE (11)
Share of net assets FriE B EFE 32
Revenue Wz 72
Profit before taxation B % B & 8
Taxation Fi1g -
Share of profit after taxation FEAG BR T 1% 05 7 8
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 R R MY R

December 31, 2007
¥+ -_A=+—H

19. LEASEHOLD LAND AND RENTAL
PREPAYMENTS

Group

(In HK$ millions)

19. HELHRHESEAFS

IE

£HE

(WEREETREN)

Net book value at January 1
Translation difference
Additions

Amortization for the year

R-A-BZ&E#E
HEER

AE

AEEHRH

Net book value
at December 31
Current portion

RT-A=+-R2Z
REFE
SEED)

Long-term portion

Company

Leasehold land prepayments are analyzed as follows:

MELWFAMNKBEIFTOT

(In HK$ millions) (WEBEETHEN) 2006
Net book value at January 1 R—A—BZEAFE 171
Amortization for the year TEEHH (6)
Net book value at December 31 RTZA=+-AZEEFE 165
Current portion SR (5)
Long-term portion R 160

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E A REKBER

n

7



19.

20.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LEASEHOLD LAND AND RENTAL
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Leasehold land prepayments represent prepaid
operating lease payments. The costs are amortized
over the leasehold period and their net book values are
analyzed as follows:

19.

B 35 R M AL

December 31, 2007
—EE+HF+-_A=+—H

HELwREASES
R ()

MELANFRIECBIEERES H - ZEFXA
BREFGEEFIMEE - EREFEDNDT

Group Company
8 AH
(In HK$ millions) (LB EETAREN)
In Hong Kong, held on EEERA
- leases of between 10 and 50 years - TEERATERED
Outside Hong Kong, held on EEBUINEE
- leases of between 10 and 50 years - TEERTFERY
- leases of over 50 years - SZRETFRY
INVENTORIES 20.%7 &
Group
£F
(In HK$ millions) (LB EETREN) 2006
Raw materials R 66
Work in progress EEEm 51
Finished goods 2UpK 305
422

The cost of inventories recognized as expense and
included in cost of goods sold amounted to HK$2,593
million (2006: HK$2,194 million).

FEECHARERYLCKREHEXN AT /B
K+ ERAT=ZB88R(CZETETRF EE
“t—EBATIHAET) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 7% 8 & B

December 31, 2007
—EFE+F+-_A=+—H

21.

(a)

110 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(In HK$ millions)

21

& W Bl R B2 L £l B W K

Group
£E

Company
AT
(BB EETRENL)

Trade receivables
Less: Provision for impairment

R E R

Trade receivables - net
Other receivables, including
deposits and prepayments

EUERFE
Hib kR - B
BESENES

Other than cash and credit card sales, the Group
normally allows an average credit period of 60 days to
its trade customers.

Despite some of the trade receivables being settled
after the credit period, management expects that the
balances are recoverable within one year; therefore,
these balances are classified as current assets.

Ageing analysis
As at the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis from

the invoice date of trade receivables (net of allowance
for doubtful debts) is as follows:

(a)

BREREARHEEN  AEEEERBEATHETEES

BEP¥ARTBEER-

HAMOEREEFENEERREE - BEEEHAEYL
FERAANFARD - FAUREEBBRADBERRD

AR 2 AT

REEE B REERR (NBRRERE) 2 RERRIBERZ AN
m

Group
£=H
(In HK$ millions) (BB EE T REN) 2006
0 - 30 days TE=+H 236
31 - 60 days =t—=Xx1+H 54
61 — 90 days ANt—Zhn+H8 13
Over 90 days # L+ H 14
317

The carrying amount of trade receivables are stated
approximately at fair value. There is no concentration
of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as the
Group has a large number of internationally dispersed
customers.

/A REKBAERAL
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21.

(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Ageing analysis (continued)

As at December 31, 2007, trade receivables of HK$36
million (2006: HK$29 million) were past due but not
impaired. These related to a number of customers for
whom there had been no recent history of default. Their
ageing analysis from the due date is as follows:

B 35 R M AL

December 31, 2007
—ETEF+-A=1+—H

21. FEWNBR AR R H b FE L =X

(a)

(&)
ARl o AT (&)

RZZBZLF+-RA=+—H aHEIERELER
ERAGBEE =T REET(ZZ2ZRF : BE_TNLEE
TT) c METABTEPAESOYEERCE - RIZZHA
Bl 2 BRERDMTIAT

Group
58
(In HK$ millions) (BB B ETREN) 2007 2006
0 — 30 days TE=1+H 18 10
Over 30 days Bm=+H 18 19
36 29
Impairment of trade receivables (b) FEWBERFHIBEE

Impairment loss in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against
trade receivables directly.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year, including both specific and collective
loss components, is as follows:

FEWBRSKARLEETE - TIABBRA AR - BRIEAEER
AWERFOEEHRN - FUBERT  REBBRRERE

FARERENEY (BREERERERSE)WT

Group

£®
(In HK$ millions) (BB B ETREN) 2007 2006
At January 1 and December 31 Wn—A—BERt+=ZA=+—8 10 10

The individually impaired receivables relate to customers
that are in financial difficulties and management
assesses that only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific
allowances for doubtful debts were recognized. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

EREREMNEBEERELRMBRRENTS - EEEE
AHETEEI R P E AR ) MR TR - UL RE SR AR T R BRI
o AEREYERABERRFEB T AERR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 AR MY A

December 31, 2007
—ETEF+=-A=+—H

22. SHARE CAPITAL 22 A
(In HK$ millions) (WEFEETEEN) 2007 2006
Authorized: EE:
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of —HERER
HK$0.05 each AEBER L% 100 100
Issued and fully paid: RELIES ¢ i

1,491,512,518 ordinary shares
(2006: 1,490,852,518
ordinary shares)
of HK$0.05 each

THEAT-BRt-E-TRE-T)\K
(ZZERE TEEATENTEE
“FRE-TAR)
SREESERI LER 75 75

Details of the movement in the issued share capital
during the year are set out below:

RAFEER  BERTRAZEHFERMOT

Number of shares
3iE

2007 2006
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each BREEASERI LRR
At January 1 R®—A—H 1,490,852,518  1,489,630,518
Issue of shares Bkl 660,000 1,222,000
At December 31 R+ZA=1—H 1,491,512,518  1,490,852,518

(a) Issue of shares (@ TG

Pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company,
the Company issued 660,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.05 each in the capital of the Company to option-
holders who exercised their rights attached to share
options during the year.

All the new ordinary shares issued by the Company in
the year ranked pari passu with the then existing shares
of the Company in all respects.

(b) Share option information

A summary of the share option scheme and details of
the movement in share options of the Company during
the year are set out on pages 127 to 132.

(c) Repurchase of shares

During the year, the Company did not repurchase any
of its shares.

(d) Shares held by a jointly controlled company
As at December 31, 2007, 1,800,000 ordinary shares

(2006: 1,800,000 shares) were held by a jointly
controlled company.
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(b)

(0

d

BARRZ B ARRRAFEARNBRERSS
ATTRERERAEN T 2 A M &7 T SREERS Dl 23
BRI N RNERR -

KRB AREERNETZIAFTERBRERARRERZIR
ERMDES T EHYZERS #E

BEREAS ZHER AR RBRERAFEEAN 2 EBFE
HRE—B-_ttEz2—B=t=H-

=] B B% 17

KRB A E A I 8 [ AT AR D

—HEEF QAR EFENRED

RIBZELF+-_A=+—H —HEZEHQIRAFER
AE—ANTEREERRN (ZTTRF: —BATE
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23. RESERVES

The reserves of the Group and the Company as at
December 31, 2007 are analyzed as follows:

(In HK$ millions)

December 31, 2007
—EELFE+ - F=+—H

23.(#%E

MRIBEBLE+-A=+—0  ANEBERARFTZHEED
Mk

Contributed surplus
Capital redemption reserve
Share premium

Share options reserve
Exchange reserve

Other reserves

Retained profits

Group Company
%8 AT
(LEEEETTAZ) 2007 | 2006 | 2007 2006
BARR 383 383 540 540
EARERRFE 3 3 3 3
W15 % B 608 606 608 606
BRI 7 10 7 10
N 57 20 - -
H it 113 113 = -
BT A 681 777 298 628

Proposed final and special dividends

1,852 1912 = 1,456 1,787
B R 5 Bl B 2

(note 12(a)) (Mtzx12(a)) (224)  (298) | (224) (298)
Total reserves e 1,628 1,614 | 1,232 1,489

The contributed surplus of the Group and the Company
represents credit arising from a group reorganisation
pursuant to a scheme of arrangement which was
completed on May 29, 1995. Under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus
is distributable to the shareholders.

Details of the main items in other reserves are as
follows:

(@) According to the relevant laws and financial
regulations, the statutory reserve funds of the
subsidiaries in Mainland China may be used to
make up prior years’ losses, if any, and to increase
the capital of the subsidiaries.

(b) In accordance with the Korean Tax Incentive
Limitation Law and Korean Commercial Code,
the statutory reserve fund and other reserves of
the jointly controlled company in the Republic of
Korea may only be used to offset a future deficit
or be transferred to capital stock, but not for cash
dividends.

(c) According to the United Arab Emirates Commercial
Companies Law, the statutory reserve fund of the
associate in United Arab Emirates is not available for
distribution except as provided in the Federal Law.

AREBRARNRBZHABBTEREESHEMES 2ERK
B MEESADRER - NANAEAFEA - TNABETK
ZHHEABMET - REARE-NN-FRFDE(KE
7)) BMABBRA DK TR

HibHEz EBHBFBWT

(@) RIEFEAREABEELMBER - HEXEZHE
REZEERBESAARBHETFEER (WA) &
FRAEINZEMB AR ZEAREE -

(b) RIFBEHB BRI LBEHERER - ABE
B2 KRAEFI AR OAEHEES REMREEBR AN
RERERKEBERKEEEAR - AR AEREARE
K% -

() RIFFHAEAERBEBERRDED - WAABA P
REZBZRROAEREBES - RBAEREN -
RAEDBCZ A e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R MY A

December 31, 2007
—ETEF+=-A=+—H

24. DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method at the rates
applicable in the respective jurisdictions.
The movement in the Group’s deferred tax assets and

liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the same
taxation jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

(In HK$ millions)

4.3 FiE B 18

ELERERAAEINEEEERZERNE AR
BERME B -

AEERFRNEERBEERAE 2 ZE (ER—EH
ol 2 AERRIKEHAT) 20T

EaESiE (BE)/AE

Accelerated
accounting Unremitted
depreciation profits
mix K4K2Z Others Total
(WEREETREN) BifFE  REEA Hfy A%t

At January 1, 2007 N-2Z+E-HF—H (3) 89 (17) 69
Translation difference HhEEH - - M 0
Charged/(credited) to profit and loss account REZERHRIZ/(GTA) - 7 (5) 2
Charged to equity REERZ - - 2 2
At December 31, 2007 RZEZLET-A=t-H (3) 96 (21) 72
At January 1, 2006 RZZE F-A-H - 78 (100 68
Translation difference BEES - 8 (1) 7
(Credited)/charged to profit and loss account REZRS (BEA) /5% (8) 5 A
Charged to equity REZRZ - - 1 1
Reversal of temporary difference BEMNSHEL

on withholding tax EEHZR - 2) - )
At December 31, 2006 ZEERFTZA=TH (3) 89 17 69
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

The deferred taxation charged to equity during the year
comprised the tax on the unrealized exchange gain of a
long-term loan to a subsidiary.

The Group has unrecognized deferred tax assets of
HK$67 million (2006: HK$44 million) arising mainly from
tax losses. These unrecognized deferred tax assets to
the extent of HK$36 million (2006: HK$27 million) will
expire within 1 to 7 years from December 31, 2007.
The remaining portion is mainly related to the losses
of subsidiaries in Australia and Germany which has no
expiry date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The
following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet.

BB R M A

December 31, 2007
—ETEF+-A=1+—H

4 EFERE (#8)

FARBERPIIXNEERENEERPERT —HBELQ
Bl Z REIIME AR R T 5| B2 IR -

AEBEARBRECHAEERE AT LAET(ZEF
NECBBENTOARET) TERNHE - HERERR
ERBEEETER =T "BET(Z_ZTXF: B
—TEAEETD) SR _EFEF+ _A=+—HE—ZEt
FRER - SR T2 B0 TEdRMNREENB AR ZER
HIR RS2 -

RERMFFRIT - HREFTSHS MR — M ERKE - &
FERIRE E A EURIE R R R E G AREE - TSR EERT
ANBERHFR  NEEEERBERAIRE -

Group
&HE
(In HK$ millions) (XEEFETREN) 2007 2006
Deferred tax assets BIEFIEE E (37) (34)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 109 103
72 69
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December 31, 2007
—EFE+F+-_A=+—H

25.

26.

27.

116 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 7% 8 & B

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. B BRI EL b FE (F =X
Group Company
B AF
(In HK$ millions) (WEBEETAEN) 2006 2006
Trade payables TR 292 -
Other payables and EERHR
accrued expenses ERER 307 2
599 2
The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: AN AR ZBREE DT
Group
%8
(In HK$ millions) (LEBEETAEN) 2006
0 - 30 days TZ=1H 218
31 - 60 days =t+-EX1H 39
61 - 90 days AT-ENTH 20
Over 90 days = 15
292

The carrying amount of trade payables are stated
approximately at fair value.

NET CURRENT ASSETS

The Group’s net current assets, defined as current
assets less current liabilities, amounted to HK$736
million and HK$862 million in 2007 and 2006
respectively. The Company’s net current assets was
HK$469 million and HK$794 million in 2007 and 2006
respectively.

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

The Group’s total assets less current liabilities
amounted to HK$2,135 million and HK$2,193 million
in 2007 and 2006 respectively. The Company’s total
assets less current liabilities was HK$1,531 million in
2007 compared with HK$1,862 million in 2006.

/A REKBAERAL

El

26.

27.

PR RRAR Z BRI B XA R FETIRR -

ERBEE

AEEZFRBDEERRDEENRARBDEE - AKHE
R-BETLFR-_ZFTRFIERDEENHRAEH
TtE=TARBETRBBENEAT _BET  A2F
R-ZZLFER_ZTRNFZIERDEEDHNREE
mEAThESTRERATHEST -

EEABEHNRRE
&&

REER _TTLFR_TTRFZEERABNRRBD AR
DRREE —_+—R=THRELEE _+—RhT=8"
Bt ARAR_STLF2EERBARADEE
RAEBTAR=T—AET M_TT FRREE
TNEARFT_BET-
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29.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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December 31, 2007
—ZEZE+F+-_A=+—H

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND 28.BENIRESEEHETR
CASH EQUIVALENTS 2O
(In HK$ millions) (WEBEETHEN) 2006
Cash and bank balances ReRBMER 723
Less: Bank deposits with maturity over three B BHARZMAN L5
months from date of deposits ZBAIEEER (3)
720

Included in the cash and bank balances of the Group
are cash and bank balances totaling HK$277million
(2006: HK$208 million) denominated in Renminbi.

The effective interest rate on bank deposits of the
Group was 3.4 percent (2006: 3.6 percent); these

deposits have an average maturity of less than 3
months.

BANK LOANS

(In HK$ millions)

29.

AEBEMN FZ2RE MIRTEFE
BIL(ZEZEXREFE B _EZ
RITHETE -

REEEE _BLTtR
NEETL) 2 ARBRER

AEBEEMEANERNELRBEAZ =M (Z2ERX
R FHBHBARR DR

Trust receipts bank loans (unsecured)
Short-term bank loans (unsecured)

F:BOZ=HN) %EHFES
=fEA -
SRITEX
Group Company
&8 AF
(WEEBETAEN) 2006
EREBER(BER) -
RARTER (BER) 43
43

Certain inventories were held under trust receipts bank
loans arrangements.

The effective interest rate of Group’s trust receipts
and short term bank loans was 2.6 percent (2006: 1.7
percent); these bank loans have an average maturity of
less than 3 months.

AETHFEREERRERRT

ERLZHTHA -

AEBZEZARBEEREEHIRT
ZERN(ZEERF B Z—
YRR AR =EA -

TERNERFEEE D
Zht) - ZERITERZ
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December 31, 2007
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30. COMMITMENTS

Commitments under operating leases

(a)

118 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

As at December 31, 2007, the Group and the
Company had future aggregate minimum lease
charges payable under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of retail shops, office premises,
factories and warehouses as set out below:

30. % &
HEHEE 2 RE

(@)

R-FELF+-A=+—8  ARBERALART
EEE  BAE  TRREAZ T RRIHE
ERENSEETREBANT ;

Group Company
1] A
(In HK$ millions) (WEEEETREL) | 2007 2006 2007 2006
Within one year —FR 624 522 2 3
After one year but within five years —FRERER 834 638 - 2
Over five years BENE 32 42 - -
1,490 1,202 2 5

The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses
and renewal rights. The operating lease rentals
of certain outlets are based on the higher of a
minimum guaranteed rental or a sales level based
rental. The minimum guaranteed rental has been
used to arrive at the above commitments.

As at December 31, 2007, the Group and the
Company has future aggregate minimum lease
income receivable under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of retail shops and factories as
set out below:

REMEANBES TRERER BB HELE
i - BTz HERS NIRERERIEES
FNHEREAEZHE UARGERE) - LlAEET
meEREEHSHE -

R-BTLFT-A=+—F  AEBRARARE
A0 R T R AT AR A 2 48 L S
W ERALT :

Group Company
&6 A
(In HK$ millions) (WEFEZETAEL) | 2001 2006 2007 2006
Within one year —ER 24 24 17 10
After one year but within five years —FHARFR 39 7 29 -
63 31 46 10

ERAREBEBRAERLB

El



31.

32.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at December 31, 2007, the Group has the
following capital commitments in respect of leasehold
improvement, furniture and fixtures:

31.

BB R M A

December 31, 2007
—ETEF+-A=1+—H

BEAREIE

RIZEZLF+-RA=+—HB AEEAUTEAREED
FEE  BRRRAEREB 2 EARAE

Group Company
% A
(In HK$ millions) (LB B Z T BEN) 2007 2006 | 2007 2006
Contracted but not provided for BENEREE 1 - - -
Authorized but not contracted for ERERREL - 1 - -
1 1 - -
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 32.0THEE€mT A

As at December 31, 2007, the total notional amount
of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts to
which the Group has committed are as follows:

R-ZEZLF+-A=1+—8 AEECAEERTEZ
EMINERBA D ZRERBNT

Group Company
58 AT
(In HKS millions) (WEBEETAER) | 2007 2006 | 2007 2006
Forward foreign exchange contracts RESMNERLBAEL 13 25 - -

The fair value loss of the outstanding forward foreign
exchange contracts was estimated to be approximately
HK$2 million at December 31, 2007 (2006: gain of
HK$1 million). The fair value was calculated based
on market values of equivalent instruments at the
balance sheet date and was included in other
payables at December 31, 2007 (2006: included in
other receivables). These outstanding forward foreign
exchange contracts will expire at various dates between
one month to six months from the balance sheet date.

R-FZLF+_A=1t—8 EHSMNEXBEHNFE
ZEBAOABE _AET(ZZETRF  KahB¥E—78
Bt) ZAFEDNREBERASTIAREERERBZTS
BEET  YTEEREMENRA(ZZEETRF: 8ER
Hip R R A) - EHSMNE LB HOBNEERBRA
E—ZEXEARNTRZIBARE -
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December 31, 2007
—ETEF+=-A=+—H

33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 3B.EREHAL
TRANSACTIONS X8

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party

BRAB AT ERSIERESN S 77 - REELRTBHE R
LERRRYE R —TIREEAFENZAL - KRZMA

or exercise significant influence over the other party EHSRMABRFE N2 ALIVR ABEA L -
in making financial and operating decisions. Parties
are also considered to be related if they are subject to

common control or common significant influence.

(a) During the year, certain subsidiaries traded with
jointly controlled companies and an associate in

(a) REAFEA  AEEETHBARR —MRERATEL
WIBEE THEZEHAAR —BEQRREITEER
the ordinary and usual course of business. Details 5 BZEXRSFHMINT

relating to these transactions are as follows:

Group
|
(In HK$ millions) (KB EETREN) 2007 2006
Sales to: HEL:
jointly controlled companies HEZEH A F 159 164
an associate NG| 204 142
363 306
Purchases from: BEa:
jointly controlled companies H[EHZE S A A 438 209
Rental income from: HEWAR:
a jointly controlled company — H[E 5 R A 10 10

120 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED  {£ W BB R 2 7



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Amounts due from/to these related parties at
December 31 are:

BB R M A

December 31, 2007
—ZEZEt+tF+ZAR=+—H

3J.ERBEBAL
X% (&)

Rt A=+—B R/ BB A LA

Group
58
(In HK$ millions) (BB E TREN) 2006
Amounts due from: FE M BB A = FA
jointly controlled companies HEZEH R F] 20

an associate

—BER 19

39

Amounts due to:
jointly controlled companies

FE 1 RA RS A £ 30IA
HREZEHIA A -

As at December 31, 2007, the above amounts due
from related parties and amounts due to related
parties are reflected in trade receivables and other
payables respectively.

Key management compensation

The directors regard the five highest paid
individuals as the key management of the Group
whose remuneration is disclosed in note 9 to the
financial statements.

(b)

RoBBLFET=AST—8  EREKEBALSR
R B A TS H0HE 5 BIRBE AR SR R A
REE

EEEHEERMH

z
m
%

EERREZEEBARSFOMEE
BTSRRI OBEE -
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December 31, 2007
—EFE+F+-_A=+—H

34. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

4. FTEWE AT

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries of the AARR —_ZEZE+E+-_H=1+—BZ2FTEWEAT
Company as at December 31, 2007: ORNE

Effective
percentage of

Issued and fully paid
share capital

Name of Place of equity holding or registered capital Principal activities/
subsidiary incorporation BERGZ CRITREZEHE place of operation
MEARERE R L3 B L CERES PR SRt & AN TEER/LEHE
2006
Bluestar Exchange Hong Kong 100 3,000,000 ordinary Retail and distribution of
Limited * B shares of HK$1 each apparel and accessories/
BN ERDR" “HER Hong Kong
BREESE—T RETERDHE
2 EER FRERECHAm/EE
Bluestar Exchange Hong Kong 100 650,000 ordinary Retail of apparel
Worldwide Limited * Bh shares of HK$1 each and accessories/
RERKES ATRER Taiwan
BRAFE BREEBE—T RETERE
2 EBR REHAm/ &
East Jean Limited * Hong Kong 100 100,000 ordinary Retail of apparel
0 shares of HK$10 each and accessories/
+ER Taiwan
BREEBS T BETERE
ZEBR REHAm/ &g
G & B Sourcing Macao Macau 100 MOP100,000 Garment trading/Macau
Commercial Offshore 1! RFET8TT KK E 5/ 8
Limited *
BRRFIBEEEE
fREBR AR

122 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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34. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of
subsidiary
MEARER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.TEMBATF (&)

B 5 R AR B &

December 31, 2007

T+ F+A=+—H

Giordano (Australia)
Pty. Limited *

Giordano (Japan)
Limited *

Giordano Limited *

ERRERRE *

Giordano (M)
Sdn. Bhd.

Effective Issued and fully paid
percentage of share capital
Place of equity holding or registered capital Principal activities/
incorporation BERGZ CRITREZEHE place of operation
R332 BERES=E BRA SRt & AN TEER/LEHE
2006
Australia 79 700,000 ordinary Retail of apparel
N shares of AUD1 each and accessories/
++ER Australia
BREERT RETERE
ZE B R ECHR A dm /M
Japan 100 1,020 ordinary shares Retail of apparel
A7 of JPY50,000 each and accessories/
—FE-+i Japan
BREELERT RETERE
ZE B RECHAm/ B A
Hong Kong 100 50,000 ordinary Retail and distribution of
HE shares of HK$100 each apparel and accessories/
Bk Hong Kong
BREEBS—AT RETERDH
ZE B PRE KB m/ &8
Malaysia 100 350,000 ordinary Retail of apparel
BRAD shares of RM1 each and accessories/
“tHER Malaysia
BREESKRAEE RETERE
—TLZ R KEcHAm/ SRAR

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 & #
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B R M A

December 31, 2007

—EE+F+ZA=+—H
34. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of
subsidiary
MEARERE

Giordano (Macau)
Limited *
ENPRPIERRE ¥

Giordano QOriginals
(Singapore) Private
Limited

Gloss Mind Apparel
(Hong Kong) Limited *
TERE (BE)
ARAR *

PT. Giordano Indonesia *

124 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

4.TEMBATF (&)

Effective Issued and fully paid
percentage of share capital
Place of equity holding or registered capital Principal activities/
incorporation BERGZ ERTREZEEE place of operation
BRIt B L ERES RA M E A TEER/LEHE
2006
Macau 100 MOP50,000 Retail of apparel
SR represented by 2 quotas and accessories/
BB RS Macau
DARRAR & IR & RETERE
K ECHE A o/ RS
Singapore 100 $$1,900,002 Retailing and trading of
N FIEE-BNTESE =T apparel and accessories/
Singapore
RETEREH
FREE K RO AR am /3 AN
Hong Kong 51 2 ordinary shares Trading of apparel
E of HK$1 each products and providing
& apparel sourcing services/
SREEAS—T Hong Kong
ZEBER REREES
RREAEERRS/ BB
Indonesia 40 1,500 ordinary shares Retail of apparel,
ENfe of IDR1,000,000 each accessories and related

E A REKBERLA

—FhEk
BREE-BEHER
ZEER

products/Indonesia
RETERE  E#Am
REBHER/HE



34. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 R AR B &

December 31, 2007
—EEt+tF+ZA=+—H

4.TEMBATF (&)

Effective Issued and fully paid
percentage of share capital
Name of Place of equity holding or registered capital Principal activities/
subsidiary incorporation BERGZ CRITREZEHE place of operation
MEARERE B it B BRESX PRt E A TEER/LEHE
2006
Shenzhen Tiger Mainland China 100 RMB210,100,000 Investment holding,
Garment Ltd. * (note) AR AREZE—TFETEL manufacturing and
FNREEK retailing of apparel
BRAR * (HF) and accessories/
Mainland China
REZR  8ER
HERE RECHAm/
REIARE
Tiger Enterprises Hong Kong 100 1,000 ordinary Investment holding,
Limited s shares of HK$1 each, trading of garment
REEEERAT 60,000,000 non-voting products and provision
deferred shares of of management services/
HK$1 each Mainland China
—F& REER  KKEHK
BREEBE—T RALE R IR/ B AR
ZE B
NTER
BREEEE—T
ZERFRERTER
Walton International Cayman Islands 100 102 ordinary shares Licensing of trademarks

Ltd. *

FEES

of US$1 each
—BER
ShREE—XT
ZERR

HEAEENE
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December 31, 2007
—ZEFE+F+-_A=+—H

34. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 4.FTEHBELAT (&)
Effective Issued and fully paid
percentage of share capital
Name of Place of equity holding or registered capital Principal activities/
subsidiary incorporation BERGBZ ERTRZBER place of operation
MEAREH B B ERESE B A A TEER/REHE
2006
R ERRE Mainland China 51 HK$5,000,000 Manufacturing of apparel/
BRAR * (&) FE KR BEIEET Mainland China
REEERE/
B R RE
REnBRE Mainland China 51 HK$10,000,000 Manufacturing and trading
BRAR * () FBIARE BE—FTEL of apparel/Mainland China
REEEREERE/
B R RE
Note: These are wholly foreign owned enterprises. Bt - HEL G BN EEE D -
* subsidiaries held indirectly * [BEIFE B ]

35. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 35.8##EkREB

The financial statements were approved by the board of TFEEFBBERERZZEENF A=+ \BHEESFE
directors on March 28, 2008. A o

126 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED {£ m B 5 B A 7



SHARE OPTION INFORMATION
BREER

B E
AARRAE B (%81 ZHEQMT -

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Summary of the share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”)

is as follows:

(1) Purpose

As incentives or rewards for the contribution or potential

contribution to the Group from the selected eligible persons.

(2) Eligible persons

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(@) any director or proposed director (whether executive or
non-executive, including any independent non-executive
director), employee or proposed employee (whether full
time or part time) of, or

(b) any individual for the time being seconded to work for;

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or
any company controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any controlling shareholder or any company

controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or a
company controlled by a controlling shareholder:

(@) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor, agent or representative of,

(b) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to,

(c) any supplier of goods or services to,

(d) any customer of, or

(e) any landlord or tenant (including any sub-tenant) of;

and, for the purposes of the Scheme, shall include any

company controlled by one or more persons belonging to any
of the above classes of eligible persons.

(1)

(2)

B8
ZAtElE En B M EBpH AKEERER K
HAEHBERZEERERAL -

BERAL

() (6 EMEFLBECES(THENT
ST BB ERTE
%) EAIHEFEZEA (ThE:
B W) - o

(o) EEERZEM[A

B A = B ] AR B s A AR R =
AR R IZ B AR A ¢ 3

(i) 447 7 58 0 7 B o A T PR B A
PRI IR P ) 2 VPR 8517 2 (AR 2
HEA %

ARE B ERIAK B S AT AT AR A R 3k f 4% A
PRI Z (E R A RIEY

(iif)

(a) FEEBHEERE  FFEER
XEA  AERE - RIEBIREK

(o) fEfIALTSIEBIEHHAT  BRK
Hih i ek R - B -
EENHAMRY -

(c) HEHAEmARBEHEER -

(d) EMEEP - sk

() AMEXRAR (BESHEBEER)

WHtZetElimE - BEeEm —fkZA

MBI LEAAERALATES ZER

NI
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(3

(4)

)

(6)

128 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Maximum number of shares

As at March 28, 2008, the maximum number of shares available
for issue is 103,278,851, representing approximately seven
percent of the issued share capital of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible person

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company to any eligible person
(including canceled, exercised and outstanding options), in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed one
percent of the shares in issue.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such date on
or after the date on which the option is granted as the directors
may determine in granting the option and expiring at the close of
business on such date as the directors may determine in granting
the option but in any event shall not exceed ten years from the
date of grant (which is the date of offer of grant if the offer for the
grant of the option is accepted).

Acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is
HK$1.00.

ERAREBEKBRAERLQET

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

RIDEE LR

RZZFZN\F=ZA=1+/\B - AI&ETZBRHHUA
ERBR—B=B-_TEENTNABR T+
HRERARRBEETRDZED ZE -

BUAEBALTTERERS LR

BUAERATEARANTZEAR(EERE
fERRREE B IL) - BIRZGT 8l AR AMEA At
FERR T 2R « BRI (BIEE N - BT
R RITEZBRE) TAITER - FIETR
15817 2 ) ERTSHBBARA R BITRNG
ZBEDZ— e

BB IR AT

BRI RBEZF EIERZRE - REZRY
BRER - RERBZBEREEAIHERKRAT
FIATTE - EEEFROBIERCDREZAH
BER R REER - ENMEMBERT - @R
HEREE R (A REEREOBEREZOE R
Mz BRI EOER T ) At T BB 4 -

EIRHBREZEYN

BREERARIBEHBEREZEY  BER
REEANZHE=THAN(BREREEENER)
BRXBUEEY - REIRLBIRE 2 2108 -
BRNEE—TT



0]

8

SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

Basis of determining the option exercise price

The option price per share payable on the exercise of an option is
to be determined by the directors provided always that it shall be
at least the higher of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares on the date of offer;

(i) the average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and

(i) the nominal amount of a share.

The remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme remains in force until January 24, 2012.

BREEHR

(7) BEEBRETEEZEE
TERBAERET S 2 SRR 2 R
e ERE A EEAN TR
X

() BORLBEEERZERODEHE

(i) BERBHORLBEEEBAIDERSA
ZFHWRTE R

(i) R ZEIE -

(8) =T8I Gk 2 AN
ZEtElBRHE T ——F—A=-tMHAER -
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION
EBREER

MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS

During the year, movements of the Company’s share options are

set out below:

Number of share options

BREzZ29

RAFER  ARBEREZ

BEHBERFINT

BREHE
Canceled/
Balance as at  Granted Exercised lapsed Balance as at
01/01/2007 during during during 12/31/2007 Exercise
R=ZEZF+LHE theyear theyear theyear R-ZEEtHF price
Eligible person —B—H REAFER REFER RAFER +=-BA=+—H pershare Date of grant Exercisable period
RERAL i g I FEHE/KX 2% BROTKEE BREBH fTfEE
HK$  (MM/DDIYYYY) (MMIDDIYYYY)
BT (A/H/%) (A/8/E)
Director
B2
FUNG Wing Cheong, Charles 1,666,000 - - - 1,666,000 4.650 04/08/2002 04/08/2003 - 04/07/2012
BKE 1,666,000 - - - 1,666,000 4.650 04/08/2002 04/08/2004 - 04/07/2012
1,668,000 - - - 1,668,000 4.650 04/08/2002  04/08/2005 - 04/07/2012
5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
MAH Chuck On, Bernard 1,666,000 - - - 1,666,000 4.650 04/08/2002  04/08/2003 - 04/07/2012
Ok 1,666,000 - - - 1,666,000 4.650 04/08/2002  04/08/2004 - 04/07/2012
1,668,000 - - - 1,668,000 4.650 04/08/2002 04/08/2005 - 04/07/2012
5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
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MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Number of share options

BrEz28 (HF)

EBREHE
Canceled/
Balance as at  Granted Exercised lapsed Balance as at
01/01/2007 during during during 12/31/2007 Exercise
R-ZZ+HF theyear theyear theyear R-ZZ+HF price

Eligible person —B—HB REXEER REEER WEAEER +t=-B=t+-H per share Date of grant Exercisable period
RERAL i g 8 SEH/IEN i BRITHEE RAAH TR
HK$ (MM/DDIYYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)
BT (R/B/E) (A/8/F)
Continuous Contract 1,940,000 - - 848,000 1,092,000 4.650 04/08/2002 04/08/2003 - 04/07/2012
Employees 2,158,000 - - 878,000 1,280,000 4.650 04/08/2002 04/08/2004 - 04/07/2012
BEANIESR 2,402,000 - - 1,010,000 1,392,000 4.650 04/08/2002  04/08/2005 - 04/07/2012
666,000 - - 333,000 333,000 2.795 02/05/2003 02/05/2004 - 02/04/2013
666,000 - - 333,000 333,000 2.795 02/05/2003 02/05/2005 - 02/04/2013
836,000 - - 334,000 502,000 2.795 02/05/2003 02/05/2006 - 02/04/2013
444,000 - 96,000 26,000 322,000 2.650 06/10/2003 06/10/2004 - 06/09/2013
606,000 - 134,000 66,000 406,000 2.650 06/10/2003 06/10/2005 - 06/09/2013
1,310,000 - 410,000 88,000 812,000 2.650 06/10/2003 06/10/2006 - 06/09/2013
64,000 - - - 64,000 2.785 08/20/2003 08/20/2004 - 08/19/2013
4,000 - - - 4,000 2.785 08/20/2003 08/20/2005 - 08/19/2013
6,000 - - - 6,000 2.785 08/20/2003 08/20/2006 - 08/19/2013
22,000 - - 16,000 6,000 3.300 09/19/2003 09/19/2004 - 09/18/2013
54,000 - 10,000 22,000 22,000 3.300 09/19/2003 09/19/2005 - 09/18/2013
78,000 - 10,000 22,000 46,000 3.300 09/19/2003 09/19/2006 - 09/18/2013
132,000 - - 132,000 - 4.150 01/27/2004 01/27/2005 - 01/26/2014
198,000 - - 198,000 - 4.150 01/27/2004 01/27/2006 - 01/26/2014
204,000 - - 204,000 - 4.150 01/27/2004 01/27/2007 - 01/26/2014
1,082,000 - - 402,000 680,000 4.500 06/16/2004 06/16/2005 - 06/15/2014
1,272,000 - - 590,000 682,000 4.500 06/16/2004 06/16/2006 - 06/15/2014
1,280,000 - - 592,000 688,000 4.500 06/16/2004 06/16/2007 - 06/15/2014
10,000 - - 10,000 - 4.850 07/07/2004 07/07/2005 - 07/06/2014
10,000 - - 10,000 - 4.850 07/07/2004 07/07/2006 - 07/06/2014
10,000 - - 10,000 - 4.850 07/07/2004 07/07/2007 - 07/06/2014
28,000 - - - 28,000 4.235 08/17/2004 08/17/2005 - 08/16/2014
34,000 - - - 34,000 4.235 08/17/2004 08/17/2006 - 08/16/2014
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 4.305 09/30/2004 09/30/2004 - 09/29/2014
316,000 - - 52,000 264,000 4.875 12/30/2004 12/30/2004 - 12/29/2014
- 2,692,000 - - 2,692,000 3.896 11/27/2007 11/27/2008 - 11/26/2017
- 2,692,000 - - 2,692,000 3.896 11/27/2007  11/27/2009 - 11/26/2017
- 2,814,000 - - 2,814,000 3.896 11/27/2007  11/27/2010 - 11/26/2017

16,832,000 8,198,000 660,000 6,176,000 18,194,000
Others 1,680,000 - - 40,000 1,640,000 4.150 01/27/2004 01/27/2005 - 01/26/2014
Hit 1,880,000 - - 20,000 1,860,000 4.975 12/29/2004 12/29/2004 - 12/28/2014

3,560,000 - - 60,000 3,500,000

Total
a7 30,392,000 8,198,000 660,000 6,236,000 31,694,000
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION
BREER

MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Notes:

1. The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before
the date on which the options were exercised by the Continuous
Contract Employees was HK$3.74.

2. The market value per share as at December 31, 2007 was HK$3.74.

3. The closing price of the shares immediately before

November 27, 2007, being the date of grant of the 8,198,000 share
options, was HK$3.84.

VALUATION OF SHARE OPTIONS

The fair value per share option granted during the financial year 2007
was HK$0.44. The fair value of each option granted was estimated on
the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with
the following assumptions:

Risk-free interest rate 3.9 percent, being the approximate yield of
ten-year Exchange Fund Note on the grant
date

Expected dividend average historical dividends of 26.5 HK cents
per share

Expected volatility 32.0 percent based on historical volatility

Expected life ten years

The Black-Scholes option pricing model is developed to estimate the
fair value of publicly traded options that have no vesting restrictions
and are fully transferable. In addition, such option pricing model
requires input of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected
stock price volatility. Any changes in the subjective input assumptions

may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of
Giordano International Limited (the “Company”) will be held at Block B,
3rd Floor, Tin On Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong on Wednesday, May 14, 2008 at 9:30 a.m. for
the following purposes:

As ordinary business:

1.  To receive and consider the audited financial statements and
the reports of the directors and auditors for the year ended
December 31, 2007;

2. To declare a final dividend for the year ended December 31, 2007;

3. To declare a special final dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2007;

4. To re-elect the retiring director;

5. To re-appoint the auditor and authorize the directors to fix its
remuneration;

As special business:

6. To consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without modifications,
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“THAT:

() a general mandate be and is hereby unconditionally given
to the directors of the Company during the Relevant Period
to allot, issue or otherwise deal with additional shares in
the capital of the Company and to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require the exercise of
such power, subject to the following conditions:

(@) such mandate shall not extend beyond the Relevant
Period save that the directors of the Company may
during the Relevant Period make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require the exercise
of such powers at any time during or after the end of the
Relevant Period; and
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(1)

134 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares in the capital
of the Company which may be allotted, issued or
otherwise dealt with by the directors of the Company
pursuant to such mandate, otherwise than pursuant
to (i) a Rights Issue; or (i) the exercise of rights of
subscription or conversion under the terms of any
warrants or other securities issued by the Company
carrying a right to subscribe for or purchase shares of
the Company; or (i) the exercise of any option under
any share option scheme of the Company adopted by
its shareholders for the grant or issue to eligible persons
options to subscribe for or rights to acquire shares of
the Company; or (iv) any scrip dividend or other similar
scheme implemented in accordance with the Bye-Laws
of the Company, shall not exceed ten percent of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue at the date of passing this Resolution;
and

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this
Resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(@) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company;

(b) the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by its
Bye-Laws or any applicable laws of Bermuda to be held;
and

(c) the revocation or variation of the authority given
under this Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period
fixed by the directors of the Company to holders of shares on
its Register of Members on a fixed record date in proportion
to their holdings of shares (subject to such exclusions
or other arrangements as the directors of the Company
may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional
entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or obligations
under the laws of or the requirements of any recognized
regulatory body or stock exchange in any territory outside
Hong Kong).”;
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To consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without modifications,

the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“THAT:

()

(1)

a general mandate be and is hereby unconditionally given to

the directors of the Company during the Relevant Period to

exercise all powers of the Company to purchase shares in the

capital of the Company subject to the following conditions:

(@)

the exercise of all powers pursuant to such mandate
shall be subject to and in accordance with all applicable
laws and the requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited or of any other applicable stock exchange;
and

the aggregate nominal amount of shares in the share
capital of the Company which may be purchased
pursuant to such mandate shall not exceed ten percent
of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
of the Company in issue at the date of passing this
Resolution; and

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this

Resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(a)

the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company;

the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by its
Bye-Laws or any applicable laws of Bermuda to be held;
and

the revocation or variation of the authority given
under this Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.”; and
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8. To consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without modifications,
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“THAT subject to the passing of the above resolutions numbered
6 and 7, the general mandate granted to the directors of the
Company to allot, issue, or otherwise deal with additional
shares of the Company during the Relevant Period (as defined
in that resolution) be and is hereby extended by the addition to
the aggregate nominal amount of shares in the capital of the
Company which may be allotted, issued or otherwise dealt with
pursuant to such general mandate of an amount representing the
aggregate nominal amount of shares in the capital of the Company
purchased by the directors of the Company pursuant to their
exercise of the powers of the Company to purchase such shares,
provided that such amount shall not exceed ten percent of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in
issue at the date of passing this Resolution.”.

By Order of the Board
YUNG Mei Yee
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, April 16, 2008

Notes:

(i) A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by
the above notice is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend
and, on a poll, vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a shareholder of
the Company.

(i) To be valid, a form of proxy together with the power of attorney or
other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a notarially certified
copy of such power of attorney or authority must be deposited
at the Company’s branch share registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor
Abacus Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not less than 48 hours before the time
appointed for holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting.
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(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii

=

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, May 9, 2008 to Wednesday, May 14, 2008, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final and special
final dividends (which will be payable on or about Monday, May
19, 2008), all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited, at 26th
Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, May 8,
2008.

In relation to the above resolution numbered 4, Mr. KWONG Ki Chi
and Mr. AU Man Chu, Milton will retire by rotation at the annual
general meeting pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company.
Mr. AU Man Chu, Milton will not offer himself for re-election
whereas Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, being eligible, will offer himself for re-
election at the annual general meeting. Information of a Retiring
Director Proposed to be Re-elected which contains requisite
details of the retiring director to be re-elected is appended to this
annual report.

In relation to the above resolutions numbered 6 and 7, approval
is being sought from shareholders for a general mandate to be
given to the directors of the Company to allot new shares and to
repurchase shares of the Company.

In relation to the above resolution numbered 8, approval is being
sought from shareholders for an extension of the general mandate
sought to be granted to the directors of the Company to allot
shares by adding to it the number of shares which shall have been
repurchased under the authority granted pursuant to resolution
numbered 7 of this notice.

An Explanatory Statement which contains important information
concerning the above resolution numbered 7 is appended to the
annual report.

Pursuant to Bye-Law 70 of the Bye-Laws, a poll may be
demanded by: (a) the chairman of such meeting; (b) at least three
shareholders present in person or in the case of a shareholder
being a corporation by its duly authorized representative or by
proxy for the time being entitled to vote at the meeting; (c) a
shareholder or shareholders present in person or in the case
of a shareholder being a corporation by its duly authorized
representative or by proxy and representing not less than
one-tenth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having the
right to vote at the meeting; or (d) a shareholder or shareholders
present in person or in the case of a shareholder being a
corporation by its duly authorized representative or by proxy and
holding shares conferring a right to vote at the meeting being
shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up equal to
not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all shares
conferring that right.

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)
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138 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
A B BR

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for
the contents of the following information, makes no representation as
to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of the following information.

SHARE REPURCHASE MANDATE

The following is the explanatory statement, as required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), to provide
information to shareholders of Giordano International Limited (the
“Company”) for their consideration of the proposed granting of a
general mandate to the Company’s directors (the “Directors”) to
repurchase shares of the Company (the “Share Repurchase Mandate”).
The Share Repurchase Mandate, upon obtaining shareholders’ approval
at the Company’s annual general meeting to be held on May 14, 2008
(the “2008 Annual General Meeting”), gives a general authority to
the Directors to repurchase, at any time until the next annual general
meeting of the Company or such earlier period as stated in the relevant
resolution, the issued and fully paid ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each
in the capital of the Company (the “Shares”), up to a maximum of ten
percent of its issued share capital at the date of passing of the relevant
resolution.

(A) Proposed Share Repurchase Mandate

It is proposed that the Directors may exercise the powers of the
Company to repurchase up to ten percent of the Shares in issue
as at the date of passing of the resolution to approve the granting
to the Directors the Share Repurchase Mandate. As at March 28,
2008, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of
this annual report (the “Latest Practicable Date”), the number of
Shares in issue was 1,491,538,518 Shares. Subject to the passing
of the proposed resolution for approving the Share Repurchase
Mandate and on the basis that no further Shares are issued or
repurchased by the Company prior to the date of the 2008 Annual
General Meeting, the Company would be allowed under the Share
Repurchase Mandate to repurchase up to a limit of 149,153,851
Shares.

(B) Reasons for Repurchases

The Directors believe that it is in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders for the Directors to have a general
authority from shareholders of the Company to repurchase
Shares in the market. A repurchase of Shares may, depending on
market conditions and funding arrangements at the time, lead to
an enhancement of the net asset value of the Company and/or
its earnings per share and will only be made when the Directors
believe that such repurchase will benefit the Company and its
shareholders.
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(C)

(D)

Funding of Repurchases (C) BE &S
Repurchases must be funded out of funds legally available for BRERRDAEZES  VWARKIEARE
such purposes in accordance with the laws of Bermuda and the AP R AN xR AR 4 E R2 KM X 4R A T AR E AT
Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company. The BEERANZARZES - EFEZIREEL
Directors propose that repurchases of Shares under the Share A& 0 $#  VE 2 Bk (0 BE B % R AR & &) 2 A EB
Repurchase Mandate would be financed from the Company’s BRI A ZRITEEL -
internal resources or existing banking facilities.
Whilst the Share Repurchase Mandate, if exercised in full, may HEARIIREHEZE-_ZEZ+tF+ A
have a material adverse impact on the working capital or gearing —t A FEZEERTBERRMFEEZ
position of the Company, as compared with the position disclosed MAME @ BEROBEEMNEEENEET
in the Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended AR ARArEEESKABRBRAER
December 31, 2007, the Directors expect to exercise such pvi-Z \E%%Xﬁ%ﬁfﬂi:ﬁﬁﬁﬁu%ﬂ&
mandate if and to such extent only as they are satisfied that the WA EERMEEANIFE 2B &7
exercise thereof will not have such a material adverse impact. FRIBERES o
Share Prices (D) K&
The highest and lowest prices per Share at which Shares have BE+T-_EAAGAEBMIAIERSETRERNZ
traded on the Stock Exchange in each of the previous 12 months e MERIEENT
were as follows:
Highest Lowest
BS 5315
HK$ HK$
BT BT
2007 —EBLHF
March = 3.820 3.320
April aA 4.180 3.710
May HHAH 3.950 3.250
June ~NH 4.120 3.630
July + A 3.920 3.410
August J\H 3.800 3.150
September NA 4.000 3.740
October +A 3.900 3.510
November +—AH 4.070 3.570
December +=—H 3.740 3.430
2008 —EENF
January —A 3.950 3.060
February —A 3.350 3.030
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(E) General Information

The Directors have undertaken to the Stock Exchange to exercise
the powers of the Company to make repurchases pursuant to the
Share Repurchase Mandate in accordance with the Listing Rules,
the laws of Bermuda and the Memorandum of Association and
Bye-Laws of the Company.

None of the Directors nor (to the best of their knowledge having
made all reasonable enquiries) their associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) have any present intention to sell any Shares to the
Company under the Share Repurchase Mandate if such is granted
by the shareholders.

No other connected persons of the Company (as defined in the
Listing Rules) have notified the Company that they have a present
intention to sell Shares to the Company, or have undertaken not to
do so, in the event that the Share Repurchase Mandate is granted
by the shareholders.

During the six months prior to the Latest Practicable Date, the
Company has not repurchased any Shares whether on the Stock
Exchange or otherwise.

If a shareholder’s proportionate interest in the voting rights of the
Company increases on the Company exercising its powers to
repurchase Shares pursuant to the Share Repurchase Mandate,
such increase will be treated as an acquisition for the purpose of
The Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases.
As a result, a shareholder or a group of shareholders acting in
concert could obtain or consolidate control of the Company and
become obliged to make a mandatory offer in accordance with
Rules 26 and 32 of The Code on Takeovers and Mergers.
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The interests or short positions of the following shareholders
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which have
been disclosed to the Company, at the Latest Practicable Date,
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) and have been recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO;
together with the respective total interests would be increased in
the event that the Directors exercise in full the Share Repurchase
Mandate:

THBERNRE AT A MERERE S R PG &G
(TE2M&BI ) EXVEBE —RFE=D AR QA
B YERBZENE=8=1TKEIA
HENARBFEZELM  HAEARRE 2K
MR 2 BEZIAE - MMEEESITE

ERENBRIRD -

BRI -

A S BERN AR R Z AR

Approximate
percentage of

interests if
the Share
Repurchase
Mandate is
Approximate exercised in full
percentage BEITERL
Name No. of shares of interests BERAOZEZ
8 B EE EREIEHD EREIEHD
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc
and its associates 219,420,018 14.71% 16.35%
Tang Yu Ming, Nelson 93,288,000 6.25% 6.95%
% G54
Sanderson Asset Management Limited 90,600,000 6.07% 6.75%
Franklin Resources, Inc. 83,857,058 5.62% 6.25%
Matthews International
Capital Management, LLC 75,113,000 5.04% 5.60%

Accordingly, the Directors are not aware of any consequences
which may arise under The Code on Takeovers and Mergers as
a result of any repurchase made under the Share Repurchase
Mandate.
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INFORMATION OF A RETIRING DIRECTOR PROPOSED TO BE RE-ELECTED

EREEREESE2EN

In accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company, Mr. KWONG Ki Chi,
Director of the Company, will retire from office at the 2008 annual
general meeting and will offer himself for re-election. The following is
the brief biographical particular of this Director for the shareholders’
information:

Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, JP (Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 57, joined the Company as an Independent Non-executive
Director on April 26, 2004 and is a member of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Mr. Kwong graduated from The University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor of Science degree in Physics and Mathematics
and was awarded a Master of Philosophy degree in Economics and
Politics of Development by the University of Cambridge, England. He
has served in the Government of Hong Kong for 27 years and held
positions principally in the economic and financial fields. He was the
Secretary for the Treasury from 1995 to 1998, with responsibility
for the public finances, and Secretary for Information Technology
and Broadcasting from 1998 to March 2000, with responsibility for
information technology, telecommunications and broadcasting. He
left the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
in March 2000 to join the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited as executive director and first Chief Executive, following the
demutualization and merger of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, the
Hong Kong Futures Exchange and their associated clearing houses and
retired in April 2003. From January to June 2004, Mr. Kwong was the
managing director of Hsin Chong International Holdings Ltd.. He was
a non-executive director of Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. (“Hsin
Chong”) from August 2004 to August 2007 and Synergis Holdings
Limited (“Synergis”) from September 2004 to September 2007, the
shares of both Hsin Chong and Synergis are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. Prior to acting as a non-executive director of
Hsin Chong and Synergis, he was an alternate director of Hsin Chong
from January to August 2004 and Synergis from January to September
2004. Mr. Kwong was also an independent non-executive director
of CDC Corporation, a NASDAQ listed company, from June 2003 to
September 2005 and the managing director of Hongkong Sales (Int’l)
Limited from July 2004 to July 2006. He is currently an executive
director of Macau Legend Development Ltd., a company based in
Macau and engaged in the leisure industry.

Mr. Kwong is a non-official Justice of the Peace in Hong Kong and
has been awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. He holds a number of public
service positions, including Vice Patron of The Community Chest of
Hong Kong.
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Mr. Kwong does not have any relationship with any directors, senior
management or substantial shareholders of the Company nor hold any
other position with the Company and other members of the Group. As
at March 28, 2008, he does not have any interests in the shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

There is no service contract entered into between the Company and
Mr. Kwong. He is appointed for a term of three years and subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant to the Bye-Laws
of the Company. He is entitled to receive an annual director’s fee of
HK$275,000 which is determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities with the Company and the prevailing market conditions.

There is no information which is discloseable nor is/was he involved
in any of the matters required to be disclosed pursuant to any of
the requirements under Rules 13.51(2)(h) to 13.51(2)(v) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, and there is no other matter which needs to be brought
to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.
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INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

REESZEH

IMPORTANT DATES

Closure of Register of Members

May 9, 2008 to May 14, 2008
(both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting

May 14, 2008

Dividends

Interim Dividend
Special Interim Dividend
Paid on
Proposed Final Dividend
Proposed Special Final Dividend
Payable on

STOCK CODE

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Bloomberg
Reuters

4.5 HK cents per share
2.0 HK cents per share
September 14, 2007

5.0 HK cents per share

10.0 HK cents per share

May 19, 2008

709
709 HK
0709.HK

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

William YUE

Director of Corporate and External Affairs

Giordano International Limited

5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building

777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone : (852) 2746 4668

Facsimile (852) 2370 8864

e-mail investorrelations@giordano.com.hk
WEBSITE

www.giordano.com.hk
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Giordano International Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building
777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road
Kowloon, Hong Kong
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